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Dyddiad: 18 Gorffennaf 2017	

AT:	Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu, y Prif Gwnstabl ac Aelodau’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio (Mr A Kenwright, Mr A Morgan, Mr G Evans, Mr M MacDonald)

Copi at:	Mrs J Woods, Prif Swyddog Ariannol
ACPO ac Uwch Swyddogion/Staff 
		Cynrychiolwyr o TIAA a Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
		Y Wasg a Llyfrgelloedd 

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,

Cynhelir cyfarfod o’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio ar ddydd Mawrth 25 Gorffennaf 2017 am 10:00y.b. yn Ystafell SCC002 o’r Ganolfan Gydlynu Strategol, Pencadlys yr Heddlu, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin er mwyn trafod y materion ar yr agenda sydd ynghlwm. Mae hawl gan aelodau o’r Wasg a’r Cyhoedd fynychu’r cyfarfod hwn. I gymryd rhan drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, gofynnir i Aelodau o’r Cyhoedd roi o leiaf 7 diwrnod o rybudd er mwyn sicrhau darpariaeth o’r fath fel yr hysbysir ar ein gwefan. Os daw hysbysiad hwyr, gwnawn ein gorau i ddarparu’r gwasanaeth hwn ond nid oes sicrwydd y bydd ar gael. 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir
[image: ]
Mrs Carys F Morgans
Pennaeth Staff

Amg.
A  G  E  N  D  A
1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
2. Datganiadau o ddiddordeb 
3. Cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 29 Mawrth 2017 


Materion i’w Penderfynu
4. Ystyried a chymeradwyo Cylch Gorchwyl y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio 


5. Ystyried Adroddiad Blynyddol drafft y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio ar gyfer 2016/17 


Materion i’w Trafod
6. Derbyn y Llythyr Sylwadau drafft ar gyfer 2016/17
a. Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu 


b. Y Prif Gwnstabl 




7. Derbyn ymateb rheolwyr i’r ymholiadau archwilio ar drefniadau ar gyfer atal a datrys twyll 


8. Ystyried Llythyr Rheoli ac Adroddiad Datganiadau Ariannol 2016/17 Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 


9. Ystyried y Datganiad o Gyfrifon Blynyddol drafft ar gyfer 2016/17 
a. Cyfrifon Grŵp


b. Cyfrifon y Prif Gwnstabl 



10. Ystyried yr Adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol ar gyfer 2016/17 


11. Derbyn adroddiad cymhariaeth y Cynllun Blynyddol Archwilio Mewnol EITHRIEDIG 




12. Ystyried adroddiad cynnydd yr archwilwyr mewnol (SICA)


13. Ystyried adroddiadau canlynol yr archwilwyr mewnol: 
a) Trefniadau Fetio 
b) Llywodraethu – Trefniadau Cydweithio 
c) Rheoli AD – Trefniadau Dysgu a Datblygu 
ch) Rheoli Fflyd – Atgyweiriadau a Chynnal 
14. Ystyried Cofrestri Risg Corfforaethol SCHTh a’r Heddlu EITHRIEDIG 
15. Derbyn cyflwyniad ar brosesau craffu ategol a risg SCHTh 
16. Ystyried adroddiad ar Ystadegau Taliadau 


17. Derbyn cofnodion y Grŵp Llywodraethu Corfforaethol a gynhaliwyd ar 12 Mehefin 2017 


18. Unrhyw fusnes arall
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Members: Mr Gawain Evans (GE)(Chair) 


Mr Alasdair Kenwright (AMSK) 


Mr Malcolm MacDonald(MM) 


Mr Andre Morgan (AM) 


Also 


Present: 


Mr Mark Collins, Chief Constable (CC) 


Mr Edwin Harries, Director of Finance (DoF) 


Mr Dafydd Llywelyn, Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC) 


Mrs Carys Morgans, Chief of Staff (CoS) 


Mrs Jayne Woods, Chief Finance Officer (CFO) 


Mr Jason Garcia, Audit Manager, WAO (JG) 


Ms Vicky Davies, Audit Director, TIAA (VD) 


Ms Rachel Jones, Legal (RJ)(agenda item 18 only) 


Mrs Sharon Richards, Governance Manager & Dep Monitoring Officer 


(SR) (agenda item 16 only) 


Mrs Anne Williams, Business Support Officer 


Apologies: Mr Adrian Williams, Director of Resources  


Mr John Herniman, Engagement Director, WAO 


Declarations 


of Interest: 


None 


 


ACTION SUMMARY FROM MEETING ON 6th December 2016 


Action No. Action Summary Progress 


A79 


2016/17 


The CFO to check the Committee’s quorum. 


 


Complete 


A81 


2016/17 


That a general discussion on the Police & Crime 


Plan be placed on the agenda for the JAC training 


day 16th January. 


Complete 


A81 


2016/17 


The draft Plan to be shared with Members at the 


appropriate time. 


Complete 


A83 


2016/17 


The CFO to check the Committee’s Terms of 


Reference in relation to the Committee’s 


responsibility to either approve or endorse the 


changes within the Annual Plan. 


Complete 


A86 


2016/17 


The CFO to check the Terms of Reference of the 


Joint Audit Committee in relation to HMIC and to 


update SB of any changes in going forward. 


Complete 


A86 


2016/17 


To invite Vince Tether to periodic Corporate 


Governance Group meetings. 


Complete 


Meeting: Joint Audit Committee 
Venue: Police HQ 


Date:  29th March 2017   


Time:  10:00 – 13:00 
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The outline of Joint Audit Committee Minutes has been changed to correspond 


with formats of all Minutes produced by the OPCC.  


Welcome 


With the agreement of Members the Chair changed the order of the agenda. 


A90 2016/17 Minutes of the meeting held on 6th December 2016 and 


Matters Arising 


A quorum for the Joint Audit Committee was confirmed as three Members to be in 


attendance. 


It was the Joint Audit Committee’s responsibility to accept and approve changes within 


the Internal Audit Annual Plan.  This matter was for discussion under a later agenda 


item. 


The Terms of Reference had been updated and HMIC activity was a matter for discussion 


under a later agenda item.  Vince Tether had agreed to attend a future meeting of the 


Joint Audit Committee.  


Decision:   The minutes of the meeting held on 6th December 2016 were 


accepted as a true record. 


A91 2016/17 To consider the Wales Audit Office (WAO) Draft 2017 Audit 


Plan  


JG thanked the Committee for agreeing to change the order of the agenda. 


The 2017 Audit Plan outlined how WAO would carry out their work to determine whether 


the financial statements of both the Dyfed-Powys Police & Crime Commissioner and Chief 


Constable were true with proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in the use of resources. 


JG referred to the financial statements audit risks and highlighted the main change and 


potential risk in moving towards earlier closure of year-end accounts.  In working 


towards revised deadlines, the Finance team had committed to produce 2016-17 draft 


financial statements by 16th June 2017 with the aim to complete the audit by end of July.  


The date of the July Joint Audit Committee meeting had been changed to accommodate 


this. 


JG highlighted a slight reduction in the estimated 2017 audit fee to deliver WAO work. 


The timetable of work was similar to previous years with the exception of reporting in 


July instead of September for the audit of financial statements and opinion on the 


financial statements. 
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In relation to the change in timescales, the PCC questioned the impact on the Force 


internally in relation to the revised deadlines.  Whilst deadlines would prove challenging, 


the DoF was confident of it being achievable and alluded to a fall-back position. 


JG referred to hold ups towards the end of audit in making any amendments to the 


accounts.  In order to meet tighter deadlines JG asked the Committee to consider 


whether the organisation wanted to make amendments to any errors found in the 


accounts below the material value level, as the organisation was not obliged to make 


such changes. 


Members considered this suggestion to be useful. 


JG left the meeting at this point. 


Decision:  Members to consider the option to make amendments to any errors 


below the material value. 


A92 2016/17 Police & Crime Plan and supporting Delivery Plan 


In December 2016 Members had an early presentation and in January 2017 received a 


first draft copy of the Police & Crime Plan; both of which had proved extremely beneficial.  


The PCC was grateful for this feedback to aid future planning. 


Members were circulated with two handouts and the content of each was summarised. 


Priorities had been formed through wide consultation with the public and local 


stakeholders and SR briefly detailed aspects of the four Priorities. 


The published version of the Plan contained more detail in terms of objectives set under 


each Priority. 


In response to the Police & Crime Plan the CC had developed a Delivery Plan to 


demonstrate the organisation’s delivery against the Priorities.  The PCC will monitor 


progress against the areas to demonstrate the difference made.  Emphasis was made on 


how the Code of Ethics underpinned the Plan. 


Both the Police & Crime Plan and Delivery Plan were in the process of being launched 


with a series of launch events scheduled across the Force.  Both documents are available 


to the public on the Force and PCC’s websites. 


SR detailed arrangements in place to embed the ‘Plan on the Page’ across the 


organisation to raise awareness of the Priorities and way forward. 


A discussion ensued around operational working and the PCC emphasised how service 


delivery and activities underpinning the Police & Crime Plan were already in place and 


referred to investment in body worn cameras improving processes and delivering 


standards. 
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The CC referred to the introduction of a new performance framework with face to face 


contact with staff around the organisation to assist with the delivery of the Plan. 


In response to a question as to whether the ‘Plan on the Page’ was intended for external 


consumption the PCC referred to the Inaugural Commissioning Board and confirmed that 


as well as being operationally focussed, partnership working was also critical to its 


delivery.  


A discussion ensued on how the ‘Plan on the Page’ could be best shared internally and 


externally as it presented a useful summary for the public.  


The PCC thanked Members for their observations. 


A bilingual version, an easy read version and a British Sign Language version were also 


to be added on the website, and MM asked for consideration to other languages and an 


audio version. 


The CC and PCC planned to hold regular public meetings to engage with communities to 


determine any noted public difference.  


Decision: That consideration be given to producing a public version, an audio 


version and other languages. 


A93 2016/17 HMIC Peel: Police Effectiveness 2016 report. 
 


Members were appreciative of having sight of the full HMIC report and seeing Dyfed-
Powys’ position in respect of certain aspects. 
 


The Chair asked for a discussion on the role of the Committee in terms of HMIC reports 
and questioned the Force’s progress in response to the report. 


 
Members discussed how their observations on HMIC reports fitted into the Annual 
Governance Statement as the Committee had the ability to strengthen the Annual 


Governance Statement through their observations. 
 


In accepting some of the recommendations within the report, the CC provided Members 
with clarification and reassurance of work in progress on areas of performance requiring 
improvement. 


 
In response to a question by AMSK on whether the Force had resources to implement the 


recommendations within the report, the CC alluded to the appointment of specialist 
transferees and plans for Force internal training.  The PCC stated that some of the 
highlighted areas required additional investment and efficiency savings on that 


investment was likely to prove challenging. 
 


Besides noting and asking questions the Chair questioned whether there was further 
scrutiny which the Committee could offer in relation to HMIC reviews. 
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The CC suggested that one Member lead on HMIC matters and for that Member to be 
invited to internal meetings to monitor the Force’s response on recommendations and 


report back to full Committee. 
 
Members were in favour of this suggestion and agreed to discuss the matter further at 


the end of the meeting when discussing the Committee’s Terms of Reference and 
Governance. 


 
Decision: For one Member to lead on HMIC matters and attend internal 
meetings. 


 
Decision: To consider HMIC’s offer of joint reporting on HMIC progress on 


recommendations when discussing Terms of Reference. 


A94 2016/17 Final Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 


This was the approved Plan presented at the December meeting. For completeness the 


Plan was brought back to Committee with one amendment to reflect Dyfed-Powys Police 


not being part of a collaborative review of the Joint Scientific Investigation Unit. 


A general discussion ensued around collaborative internal audit reviews that could 


provide assurance of governance and collaboration structures in place. 


The recently held Joint Audit Committee training with other Forces recognised that TIAA 


being a common Auditor gave an opportunity for comparative internal audit matters to 


be cross referenced with other Forces.  MM welcomed the prospect of a report to other 


Welsh Forces to discuss best practice on comparative type work. 


Following earlier issues raised on HMIC activity, the CFO suggested that Members may 


wish to use these as a basis for looking at the programme for internal audit.  


VD stated that other Forces were reviewing compliance with the Welsh language 


standards which Dyfed-Powys may wish to consider.  


VD agreed to raise commonality reviews at other Welsh Force meetings. 


In response to a question, VD confirmed that Members would be provided with 


Satisfaction Questionnaires following the Annual Report. 


Action: TIAA to report on comparative work with other Welsh Forces to 


determine best practice. 


A95 2016/17 Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 2016/17 


The summary report provided Members with an update on the progress of work as at 21st 


March 2017.  Copies of finalised reports had been provided to the Joint Audit Committee 


and Members discussed their evaluations individually. 
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In response to an observation on new developments in Governance, Risk, Control and 


Counter Fraud, the DoF briefed Members on changes to contracting (IR35 rules) affecting 


the Public Sector.   Members welcomed VD’s offer to share briefing notes on TIAA’s 


Online Client Portal with Members. 


Due to a full agenda and time restrictions Members agreed to discuss only reviews of 


limited assurance on this occasion  


Action: VD to share TIAA’s Client Portal with Members. 


A96 2016/17 a)  Review of the internal auditors on Creditor Arrangements 


The review considered the arrangements for authorising and paying costs incurred by the 


organisation and the arrangement for control of the organisation’s cheques and 


automated payments.  The review awarded limited assurance with one Priority 1, three 


Priority 2 and one Priority 3 recommendations.  VD highlighted the Priority 1 


recommendation in relation to duplicate payments and payments to wrong suppliers.  


The Business Support Unit (BSU) had since undertaken a review of all payments 


appearing to be duplicates and a process was in place to contact each of the suppliers to 


discuss reimbursement.  A spreadsheet of these payments was being used to monitor 


receipt of this money with a target implementation date for full reimbursement of 31st 


March 2017. In addition, a quarterly review will be undertaken by the BSU Co-Ordinator 


of all payments to identify any future duplicate payments.  VD referred to TIAA’s 


sophisticated analytical process to look for duplicate payments which will be shared with 


BSU to run quarterly checks.   


The DoF expressed his disappointment with the limited assurance. He highlighted 


weaknesses in the system in relation to duplicate payments and reassured Members that 


supplementary measures had been put in place on a quarterly basis to check systems. 


Processes to improve prompt payment were also receiving attention. 


MM referred to methods for consideration within the year end accounts in relation to non-


recoveries. 


The Chair requested an update in relation to BSU Creditors 30 day payments at the next 


meeting and the DoF agreed to circulate such a report.   


Action: That an update on Creditor payments be provided at the next meeting. 


The PCC and CC left the meeting at this point. 


 b)  Internal Auditors Review of Fixed Assets arrangements 


The review considered the identification of assets recorded in the asset register, the 


identification, locating and recording of assets, inventories and the disposal of assets. 
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The review awarded reasonable assurance with one Priority 1 recommendation 


highlighting that the insurance broker for land and buildings was not aware of the 


existence of one radio mast used by the Force. Implementation of the recommendation 


had by now been completed.  


 


 


AM highlighted other pleasing review reports and for completeness those reviews are 


listed below.   


 c) Internal Auditors Review of General Ledger Arrangements 


The review considered the arrangements for providing an effective audit trail for data 


entered onto the general ledger and the appropriateness of the reports generated.  The 


review awarded substantial assurance and there were no matters for discussion. 


 d) Internal Auditors Review of Treasury Management 


The review considered the arrangements for controlling the investment and borrowing 


arrangements, compliance with the organisation’s overall policy, banking arrangements, 


reconciliations and the reporting to Committee.  The review awarded substantial 


assurance and there were no matters for discussion. 


 e) Internal Auditors Review of Business Continuity Planning 


The review considered the arrangements for Business Continuity planning including 


policy/strategy and procedures, organisational responsibility, plan details for various 


scenarios and testing.  The review awarded reasonable assurance and Members were 


content that Business Continuity was now fully embedded. 


 f) Internal Auditors Year End Follow Up Review 


The follow up review established the management action taken in respect of Priority 1 


and 2 recommendations arising from internal audit reviews.  The Chair observed the 


timescales and deadlines for delivery by target date listed within the report. 


A97 2016/17 Draft Accounting Policies for 2016/17 Annual Statements 


The Accounting Policies are included in each Statement of Account and these are the 


specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied when preparing and 


presenting the financial statements.  The 2016/17 draft Statements of Accounts will be 


presented to Members at the end of June and the draft Accounting Policies have been 


prepared in advance as requested by Members to allow the opportunity to review and 


consider this element of the Statements of Accounts at an earlier stage. 
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The CFO referred to changes made to the draft Accounting Policies for 2016/17 in line 


with changes to the Code of Practice.  The amendments were highlighted within the 


Executive Summary of the report. 


Members asked appropriate questions in relation to detail on Property, Plant and 


Equipment and a discussion followed in relation to assets and assets held for sale which 


the CFO agreed to raise with Wales Audit Office. 


Action:  That the CFO discuss and confirm the most appropriate method of 


valuating different classes of assets in the accounts with Wales Audit Office.  


Decision: To note the report. 


A98 2016/17  The Chief Finance Officer (PCC) and Director of Finance (CC) 


Annual Governance Statements for 2016/17 


The DoF presented the Annual Governance Statement prepared by the Chief Constable.  


The statutory document provides a high level summary of Governance arrangements in 


place for the 2016/17 financial year and reports on the outcome of the reviews of the 


effectiveness of the system of internal control and governance undertaken during the 


year.  It also contains details of the risks and gaps identified as part of the process and 


the actions planned to improve governance. 


The DoF highlighted salient points within the report and welcomed comments on the 


draft report.  The DoF confirmed that this document, subject to any amendments, will be 


added as a draft into the draft Statement of Accounts in June. 


VD agreed to provide the Force with the appropriate draft wording on the Head of 


Internal Audit’s annual opinion in advance in order to meet deadlines.  


VD left the meeting at this point. 


MM made observations appropriate to both DoF and CFO’s Statements and highlighted 


areas for strengthening and areas within the reports requiring consistency.  MM agreed 


to share all his observations with staff.  The Chair observed the content size as a point to 


consider in future. 


AM observed that the report was concise and comprehensive and the DoF thanked 


Members for their useful comments. 


MM agreed to discuss Business Continuity within the CFO’s Statement with the CFO 


outside of the meeting.  


The CFO asked for an opinion on the layout of the agreed action plan within the 


Statement and asked Members to observe the change in signatories necessary to meet 


new requirements.  
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The CFO thanked Members for all comments which will be taken into consideration.  


Amendments will be incorporated and the report re-issued electronically for further 


comments and amendments to meet the deadline date prior to the next meeting. 


Before AMSK left the meeting, the Chair asked Members to circulate any comments on 


the draft Joint Audit Committee Annual Report prior to the next meeting. 


Action:  VD to provide the Force with the draft wording of the audit opinion in 


preparation of a draft Statement of Accounts. 


Action:  Following amendments the report on Annual Governance Statements 


for 2016/17 be re-issued for further comments and amendments. 


Action:  Due to a restriction on time, in relation to agenda item 5 the Chair 


asked Members to circulate any comments in relation to the draft Joint Audit 


Committee Annual Report in advance of the next meeting. 


Action:  In relation to agenda Item 4 Terms of Reference for the Joint Audit 


Committee, Members were asked to circulate any comments in advance of the 


next meeting. 


Action:  Members to meet in advance of the next meeting to discuss and agree 


outstanding items in relation to Joint Audit Committee Annual Report and Terms 


of Reference.    


In response to a question the CoS confirmed that the Joint Audit Committee be 


comprised of up to five Members. 


AMSK left the meeting at this point. 


A99 2016/17  Treasury Management Strategy 


The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2017/18 sets out the policies and 


procedures the PCC has in place for meeting statutory requirements.  The CIPFA Code 


requires the PCC to approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each 


financial year and the Guidance on Local Authority Investments requires the PCC to 


approve an investment strategy before the start of each financial year.   


The CFO highlighted one previously reported breach of the Prudential Code Indicator in 


relation to debt and the Capital Financing Requirement.  Discussions had taken place 


with Treasury Management Advisors and the CFO provided Members with an explanation 


and rationale.  The organisation was to look at ways of reducing the need to borrow 


externally in 2018/19 and 2019/2020.  


The CFO sought feedback on the circulated Strategy.    


The Chair questioned borrowing and debt figures over the coming years within the 


Strategy report and the CFO referred to an uncertainty on the Formula Funding review 
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and the need for flexibility within the Forward Plan and for early discussions on an 


allocation to Capital Programme.  


Decision:  Members noted the report. 


Decision:  The CFO agreed to update Members on the Indicator position at an 


appropriate time. 


A100  2016/17  The Force and OPCC Corporate Risk Registers 


Due to a restriction on time the Chair asked for this item to be carried forward to the 


next meeting.   


Decision:  Members agreed to discuss the Force and OPCC Risk Registers at the 


next meeting. 


A101  2016/17  Reserves Policy 


The CFO brought one amendment to the Members’ attention.  There were no issues for 


discussion. 


A102  2016/17  Capital Strategy for 2017/18 to 2020/21 


MM had previously raised the issue of income from capital receipts within the Capital 


programme. 


AM highlighted his concerns on the amount of borrowing within the Capital Strategy.  The 


CFO echoed Members’ concerns and agreed to bring the matter back to the September 


Joint Audit Committee meeting by which time the outcome of Formula Funding review 


and Home Office budgets will be known.  


Decision: To discuss the Capital Strategy at the September Joint Audit 


Committee meeting. 


A103 2016/17  Data Protection Breaches 


RJ provided Members with an update on nine incidents of alleged breaches reported to 


the Information Commissioner’s Office since 29th November 2016. 


RJ answered appropriate questions in relation to the alleged breaches. 


The Chair indicated that nine breaches as high for a small organisation.   


RJ gave a brief summary of past breaches and the outcomes of those breaches in relation 


to fines. 


Decision:  The Chair asked for an update in six months on any new and follow 


up action in relation to the nine breaches.   
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Decision: It had previously been agreed to report Data Protection Breaches as a 


standing item to quarterly JAC meetings but Members agreed that a regular 


agenda item every six months would suffice from here onwards. 


RJ alluded to changes within Data Protection which came into force in May 2019 on the 


obligations and requirements for organisations on Data Protection. 


The CoS stated that a number of recommendations from the ICO’s office were being 


worked through by the Legal team. The draft Joint Audit Committee Annual Report 


referred to future priorities and the CC encouraged members to give consideration on 


how the Committee could best discharge their responsibilities in line with the CC’s offer 


of one Member attending HMIC meetings. Similarly the offer of attending the Force 


Information Board as part of that scrutiny role was for consideration. 


Decision:  To discuss the offer of a Member to attend the Force Information 


Board during a discussion on the Terms of Reference. 


A104 2016/17  Feedback from the All Wales JAC Training Day 


MM confirmed the worthwhileness of the training day. 


The CoS agreed to circulate actions raised as a result of the training day prior to the next 


meeting. 


Action:  The CoS to circulate Members with actions arising from the JAC training 


day.   


A105  2016/17  Minutes of the Corporate Governance Group meeting 1st March 


2017  


Due to a mix up in dates MM attended the Group meeting on behalf of the Chair. 


Decision: The Committee noted the Minutes of the Corporate Governance Group 


meeting held on the 1st March 2017. 


At the end of the meeting it was agreed: 


Decision:  JAC pre-meet to commence at 8.30am (Chair) 


                 JAC Members to meet at 9.30am  


                 JAC meeting to start at 10am 
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DECISIONS ARISING FROM MEETING 29th March 2017 


Decision 


No 


Decision Summary To be 


progressed by 


A90 


2016/17 


The minutes of the meeting held on 6th December 


2016 were accepted as a true record. 


Completed 


A91 


2016/17 


Members to consider the option to make 


amendments to any errors below the material value. 


Members 


A92 


2016/17 


That consideration be given to producing a public 


version, an audio version and other languages. 


SR 


A93 


2016/17 


For one Member to lead on HMIC matters and attend 


internal meetings. 


Members (MM 


agreed) 


A93 


2016/17 


To consider HMIC’s offer of joint reporting on HMIC 


progress on recommendations when discussing 


Terms of Reference. 


Members 


A97 


2016/17 


To note the report on the draft Accounting Policies 


for 2016/17 Annual Statements. 


Completed 


A99 


2016/17 


Members noted the report on Treasury Management 


Strategy. 


Completed 


A99 


2016/17 


The CFO agreed to update Members on the Indicator 


position at an appropriate time. 


CFO 


A100 


2016/17 


Members agreed to discuss the Force and OPCC Risk 


Register at the next meeting. 


Members 


A102 


2016/17 


To discuss the Capital Strategy at the September 


Joint Audit Committee meeting. 


Members 


A103 


2016/17 


The Chair asked for an update in six months on any 


new and follow up action in relation to the nine 


breaches.   


RJ/Legal 


Team 


A103 


2016/17 


It had previously been agreed to report Data 


Protection Breaches as a standing item to quarterly 


JAC meetings but Members agreed that a regular 


agenda item every six months would suffice from 


here onwards. 


Completed 


A103 


2016/17 


To discuss the offer of a Member to attend the Force 


Information Board during a discussion on the Terms 


of Reference. 


Members 
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ACTION SUMMARY FROM MEETING ON 29th March 2017 


Action No Action Summary To be 


progressed by 


A94 
2016/17 


TIAA to report on comparative work with other 


Welsh Forces to determine best practice. 


TIAA 


A95 


2016/17 


VD to share TIAA’s Client Portal with Members. TIAA 


A96 


2016/17 


That an update on Creditor payments be 


provided at the next meeting. 


DoF 


A97 


2016/17 


That the CFO discuss and confirm the most 


appropriate method of valuating different classes 
of assets in the accounts with Wales Audit Office.  


CFO 


A98 
2016/17 


VD to provide the Force with the draft wording of 
the audit opinion in preparation of a draft 


Statement of Accounts. 


TIAA 


A98 


2016/17 


Following amendments the report on Annual 


Governance Statements for 2016/17 be re-
issued for further comments and amendments. 


CFO 


A98 
2016/17 


Due to a restriction on time, in relation to agenda 
item 5 the Chair asked Members to circulate any 
comments in relation to the draft Joint Audit 


Committee Annual report in advance of the next 
meeting. 


Members 


A98 
2016/17 


In relation to agenda Item 4 Terms of Reference 
for the Joint Audit Committee, Members were 


asked to circulate any comments in advance of 
the next meeting. 


Members 


A98 
2016/17 


Members to meet  in advance of the next 
meeting to discuss and agree outstanding items 
in relation to the Annual Report and Terms of 


Reference.    


Members 


A104 


2016/17 


The CoS to circulate Members with actions 


arising from the JAC training day.   


CoS 


 


The meeting ended at 1pm. 


Date of next meeting:  25th July 2017 


 


A105 


2016/17 


The Committee noted the Minutes of the Corporate 


Governance Group meeting held on the 1st March 


2017. 


Members 


 JAC pre-meet to commence at 8.30am (Chair) 


JAC Members to meet at 9.30am  


JAC meeting to start at 10am 


Members 
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Terms of reference 


 


Meeting Title: Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) and Chief 
Constable (CC) for Dyfed-Powys Joint Audit Committee 


Statement of meeting 
purpose: 


Our Joint Audit Committee is a key component of the Dyfed-
Powys Local Policing Body’s corporate governance. It provides 
an independent and high level focus on the audit, assurance and 
reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and 
financial standards. 


The purpose of our Joint Audit Committee is to provide 
independent assurance to the PCC and CC on the adequacy of 
the governance and risk management frameworks, the internal 
control environment, and financial reporting, thereby helping to 
ensure efficient and effective arrangements are in place.  


Meeting objectives: The committee provides independent review of the effectiveness 
of governance arrangements, risk management and control 
frameworks, including financial reporting, annual governance 
processes, and internal and external audit findings. To achieve 
this, the Committee will: 


 


Governance, risk and control 


 Advise the PCC and CC according to good governance 
principles. 


 Recommend approval of the Annual Governance 
Statements for inclusion in the Statements of Accounts. 


 Recommend approval of and Code of Corporate 
Governance for the Force or the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner (OPCC). 


 Consider and comment upon any policy or strategy 
regarding commissioning. 


 Consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls 
and monitor the implementation of agreed actions. 


 Consider HMIC and other external review findings to the 
extent in which they relate to governance and internal 
control matters. 


 Monitor the effective development and operation of risk 
management within the OPCC and Force, including 
monitoring the OPCC and Force Corporate Risk Registers. 


 


Financial Management 


 Provide assurance regarding the Statements of Accounts 
and that the appropriate accounting policies have been 
applied. 


 Monitor the integrity of any published financial statements 
and any formal announcements relating to financial 
performance. 


 Consider and comment upon any policy or strategy 
regarding reserves. 


 Comment on the budget planning process. 
 Consider and comment upon the Financial Strategy 







 


 


(Medium Term Financial Plan). 
 Consider and comment upon any policy or strategy 


regarding asset management. 


Internal and External Audit 


 Approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan. 
 Oversee the appointment and review the effectiveness of 


Internal Audit. 
 Monitor the progress of implementing recommendations 


from Internal Audit reports. 
 Receive and review reports from the external auditors 


including the annual audit report, audit opinion etc. 
 Consider and comment upon any proposals affecting the 


provision of the external audit service. 
 Consider the level of fees charged by external audit. 


Deliverables: The Joint Audit Committee will: 


 Recommend approval of the Annual Governance 
Statements for inclusion in the Statement of Accounts. 


 Recommend approval of any Code of Corporate 
Governance for the Force or OPCC. 


 Recommend approval of the Internal Audit Strategy and 
Plan. 


 Provide independent assurance in relation to the adequacy 
of the risk management framework and the associated 
control environment. 


 Provide independent scrutiny of Force and OPCC financial 
performance. 


 Oversee the preparation and publication of the statutory 
accounts. 


 Complete an Annual Report, to sit in conjunction with the 
PCC’s and CC’s Annual Governance Statement on the 
performance of the Joint Audit Committee. 


 Consider any other matter that either Corporation Soles ask 
the committee to comment and advise upon. 


 


Governance 


Chair: The Chair of the Joint Audit Committee will be appointed from the 
membership of the Committee. The appointment of the Chair will 
take place annually. The Chair may be re-appointed but will 
serve no more than two consecutive years as Chair. If two years 
are served as Chair, there must be a break of at least two years 
before the person can be re-appointed as Chair. 


Frequency: 4 formal committee meetings and up to 2 workshops/seminars 
will be scheduled per annum. The Chair of the Joint Audit 
Committee may convene additional meetings as they deem 
necessary. The PCC and CC may ask the Joint Audit Committee 
to convene further meetings to discuss particular issues on which 
they want the Committee’s advice. 


Provides advice to:  Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 


Membership (post The Joint Audit Committee will comprise of up to five people, 
independent of Dyfed-Powys Police Force, the Office of the 







 


 


title, responsibility, 
and nominated 
second) 


Police and Crime Commissioner and the Police and Crime Panel. 


Members will be appointed jointly by the PCC and CC. Members 
will serve on the Committee for a four year term. Care should be 
taken to avoid all members terms ending at the same time to 
ensure continuity. No individual will serve on the Committee for 
more than eight years in total. 


To enhance the credence and standing of the decisions that the 
Joint Audit Committee makes a quorum of three members will be 
set. 


Co-option may be beneficial for the injection of an independent 
view where specialist discussion is required. Any co-opted 
member will not have voting rights. 


The PCC and CC should attend or be appropriately represented 
at formal meetings of the Joint Audit Committee. 


Also in attendance will be: 


 Chief of Staff, OPCC 
 Chief Finance Officer, OPCC 
 Director of Finance, DPP 
 Internal Audit 
 External Audit 
 Other officers of both the OPCC and Force when required 


Members of the committee may also sit as advisors on Force 
groups, for example the Corporate Governance Group, in 
support of their role. 


Arrangements Administration to support the Joint Audit Committee will be 
provided by the OPCC. 


Papers will be provided to Members for their consideration 5 
working days in advance of the meeting. 


The agenda, reports and minutes of formal meetings will be 
made available bilingually where possible on the OPCC website. 


Any decision made to hold an element of the meeting in closed 
session will be based on those principles outlined in the Local 
Government Act 1972. 


The Chair will meet in closed session with the PCC and CC on 
an annual basis, or as necessary. 


All Members will meet in closed session with the internal and 
external auditor at least annually. 


Appropriate and timely training will be provided to Members to 
ensure the necessary skills and knowledge. 


Version control 


Author: Carys Morgans and Jayne Woods 


Date of approval:  


Date for review: March 2018 


Version number: 02_2017 
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Mae 2016/17 wedi bod yn flwyddyn o newid sylweddol i Wasanaeth Heddlu Dyfed-Powys. Yr 


ydym wedi gweld newid o ran arweinyddiaeth gyda Chomisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu 


newydd a Phrif Gwnstabl newydd wedi cychwyn ar eu swyddi yn ystod y flwyddyn, ac felly  rydym 


yn estyn croeso cynnes i'r ddau ac yn dymuno'n dda iddynt yn eu rolau dros y blynyddoedd 


nesaf. 


Fel Pwyllgor, rydym hefyd wedi gweld newid o ran aelodaeth yn ystod y flwyddyn. Hoffwn gymryd 


y cyfle hwn i ddiolch i Ann Williams am ei hymrwymiad a'i chyfraniad diwyd fel aelod gwerthfawr 


o'r Pwyllgor ers 2012.  Rwyf yn falch o ddweud y bydd ymgysylltiad Ann â Swyddfa Comisiynydd 


yr Heddlu a Throseddu yn parhau gan ei bod wedi'i phenodi'n Ymgynghorydd i Banel Sicrhau 


Ansawdd y Comisiynydd.  


Wrth i dymor Ann mewn swydd ddirwyn i ben, croesawn Andre Morgan i’r Pwyllgor. Mae ganddo  


lawer o brofiad gwerthfawr a fydd o les i ni, rwy’n siŵr. Mae hefyd yn bleser gen i ddweud y bydd 


Alasdair Kenwright yn parhau yn aelod o’r Pwyllgor am dymor arall. Edrychaf ymlaen at weithio 


gyda’r ddau ohonoch, ochr yn ochr â Malcolm MacDonald, wrth gyflawni'n cyfrifoldebau i 


ddarparu sicrwydd a chyngor annibynnol am ddigonolrwydd ac effeithiolrwydd trefniadau 


llywodraethu, rheoli risg a rheoli fframweithiau.   


I gloi, ar ran y Pwyllgor, hoffwn ddiolch i swyddogion Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu a’r Prif 


Gwnstabl, ynghyd â’r  Archwilwyr mewnol a Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, sydd wedi cefnogi ein 


gwaith yn ystod y flwyddyn.    


 


Gawain Evans 


Cadeirydd y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio    
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Mae Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu a’r Prif Gwnstabl yn 


elfen allweddol o lywodraethu corfforaethol Gwasanaeth Heddlu Dyfed-Powys. Mae'n 


darparu ffocws annibynnol, lefel uwch ar ddigonolrwydd trefniadau ymchwilio, sicrwydd 


ac adrodd sydd wrth wraidd llywodraethu da a safonau ariannol. Mae’r annibyniaeth hon 


yn bwysig gan fod y pwyllgor, gan hynny, mewn sefyllfa unigryw o ran ei allu i ddarparu 


sicrwydd a chyngor. 


Pwrpas y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio yw darparu sicrwydd annibynnol i Gomisiynydd yr Heddlu a 


Throseddu (SCHTh) a’r Prif Gwnstabl (PG) am ddigonolrwydd y fframweithiau llywodraethu a 


rheoli risg, yr amgylchedd rheoli mewnol, ac adrodd ariannol, ac felly’n helpu i sicrhau bod 


trefniadau effeithlon ac effeithiol ar waith. 


 


 


Tabl: Presenoldeb aelodau yn 2016/17 
 


Aelod Nifer o 
gyfarfodydd a 


gynhaliwyd 
 


Nifer o 
gyfarfodydd a 


fynychwyd 


%  y cyfarfodydd 
a fynychwyd 


Gawain Evans 4 4 100% 


Alasdair Kenwright 4 4 100% 


Malcolm MacDonald 4 4 100% 


Ann Williams 3 3 100% 


Andre Morgan 1 1 100% 


 


Mae’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio wedi cael ei 


sefydlu yn unol â Chod Ymarfer Rheolaeth 


Ariannol y Swyddfa Gartref, a 


gyhoeddwyd dan Ddeddf Diwygio’r Heddlu 


a Chyfrifoldeb Cymdeithasol 2011 ac yn 


unol ag arweiniad Sefydliad Siartredig 


Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifyddiaeth 


(CIPFA). 


Cafodd y Cylch Gorchwyl ar gyfer y Cyd-


bwyllgor Archwilio ei adolygu a'i 


ddiweddaru yn ystod 2016/17, ac mae’n 


crynhoi swyddogaethau craidd y Pwyllgor 


a’r protocolau sydd ar waith i’w alluogi i 


weithredu’n annibynnol, yn gadarn ac yn 


effeithiol. 
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Yn ychwanegol i gyfarfodydd ffurfiol y 


Pwyllgor, mae aelodau’r Cyd-bwyllgor 


Archwilio hefyd yn cyfarfod yn breifat, heb y 


CHTh na’r PG, gyda'r archwilwyr mewnol ac 


allanol, ddwywaith y flwyddyn. Mae hi hefyd 


yn arferol i’r Cadeirydd gynnal trafodaethau 


gyda’r Swyddogion Statudol am  faterion sy’n 


codi sy’n ymwneud â materion llywodraethu. 


Hefyd, gwahoddwyd aelodau i 


uwchgynhadledd Gyllidol Comisiynydd yr 


Heddlu a Throseddu ym mis Rhagfyr 2016, a 


roddodd i’r rhanddeiliaid olwg gyffredinol ar yr 


heriau gweithredol ac ariannol sy'n wynebu'r 


gwasanaeth. Rhoddodd hyn y rhaglen o waith 


llywodraethu roedd y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio 


yn ei gyflwyno mewn cyd-destun ac ystyriwyd 


ei fod o fudd i bawb oedd yn gysylltiedig â hi. 


Er mwyn cefnogi datblygiad yr Aelodau, 


cynhaliwyd diwrnod datblygiad Cymru 


Gyfan ar gyfer aelodau’r Cyd-bwyllgor 


Archwilio ym mis Ionawr 2017. Rhoddodd 


hyn gyfle i’r aelodau ddysgu sut oedd Cyd-


bwyllgorau Archwilio eraill yn gweithredu a 


rhannu arfer da a syniadau ar gyfer 


datblygu. Yn ystod cwrs y dydd, ystyriodd yr 


Aelodau ffurf Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio 


effeithiol, sut y mae rhaglenni gwaith Cyd-


bwyllgor Archwilio’n mynd i’r afael â 


meysydd gwaith allweddol, a sut maen 


nhw’n mynd i’r afael â pherfformiad 


archwilio. Gweithredwyd eisoes ar ddysgu 


o’r sesiwn hwn, ac o ganlyniad uniongyrchol 


i’r dydd, adolygwyd Cylch Gorchwyl y 


Pwyllgor a newidiwyd ei ffocws i roi eglurder 


diben i’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio. 


Mae CHTh a’r PG yn mynychu cyfarfodydd 


y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio, yn ogystal â Phrif 


Swyddog Ariannol CHTh a’i Bennaeth Staff 


(fel y Swyddog Monitro), a Cyfarwyddwr 


Cyllid y PG. Mae swyddogion eraill yn 


bresennol i roi gwybodaeth am 


archwiliadau, rhaglenni gwaith, neu unrhyw 


faterion eraill yn ôl yr angen. 


Rhaid bod gan Aelodau’r Cyd-bwyllgor 


Archwilio ddealltwriaeth o faterion ariannol, 


risg a rheoli, a materion llywodraethu 


corfforaethol sy’n wynebu’r PG a’r CHTh. 


Rhaid bod ganddynt allu i herio, cwestiynu, 


holi, a gofyn am eglurhad gan y CHTh a’r PG 


fo angen. 


Aelodaeth y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio yn ystod 


2016/17 yw: 


Gawain Evans Cadeirydd  


Alasdair Kenwright Aelod  


Malcolm MacDonald Aelod  


Ann Williams Aelod (Hyd 31/12/2016) 


Andre Morgan Aelod (O 01/01/2017) 


 


Mae pob aelod o’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio wedi 


pasio proses wirio’r heddlu ac wedi cwblhau 


ffurflen datgan diddordeb. 


‘Rwy’n fodlon bod gan y Comisiynydd a’r Prif 


Gwnstabl drefniadau priodol mewn grym yn 


ystod y flwyddyn er mwyn sicrhau economi, 


effeithlonrwydd ac effeithiolrwydd o ran eu 


defnydd o adnoddau’ Adroddiad Archwilio 


Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru ar gyfer 2015-16 a 


dderbyniwyd gan y Pwyllgor ym mis  


Tachwedd 2016 
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Llywodraethu: Derbyniodd y Cyd-bwyllgor 


Archwilio gofnodion cyfarfodydd chwarterol y 


Grŵp Llywodraethu, sy’n cael ei fynychu gan 


gynrychiolwyr y Prif Gwnstabl a’r Comisiynydd, 


ac aelod o’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio. Mae’r grŵp 


hwn yn cynnal ac yn adolygu effeithiolrwydd y 


Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol, ac yn 


ystyried y ffactorau mewnol ac allanol sy’n 


effeithio ar lywodraethu corfforaethol. 


Cymeradwyodd Aelodau’r Cyd-bwyllgor 


Archwilio’r Datganiadau Llywodraethu 


Blynyddol drafft ar gyfer y CHTh a’r PG. Ar 


ddiwedd 2015/16, codwyd materion mewn 


perthynas â rheoli gwybodaeth, sydd wedi 


parhau’n ffocws ar gyfer y Pwyllgor yn ystod 


2016/17. Mae’n dda nodi bod y Sefydliad wedi 


ymateb yn brydlon i’r argymhellion a wnaed 


gan Swyddfa’r Comisiynydd Gwybodaeth ac 


mae gwaith yn parhau er mwyn sicrhau 


cydymffurfiaeth â gofynion statudol.  


Rheoli risg: Mae’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio wedi 


olrhain cynnydd er mwyn ymgorffori rheoli risg 


o fewn y Gwasanaeth, ac ystyriodd sut y mae’r 


risgiau Corfforaethol yn cael eu rheoli. Roedd 


hi’n dda gan y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio weld y 


cynnydd sylweddol a gyflawnwyd gan y 


sefydliad mewn perthynas â Pharhad Busnes. 


Mae dal gwaith i’w wneud mewn perthynas ag 


integreiddio rheoli risg i mewn i drefniadau 


llywodraethu a chynllunio busnes, a bydd hyn 


yn flaenoriaeth ar gyfer y pwyllgor yn ystod y 


flwyddyn i ddod. 


Cynllunio Parhad Busnes: O fod yn gam 


gweithredu blaenoriaeth un, mae’n dda adrodd 


bod cynnydd sylweddol wedi digwydd yn ystod 


y flwyddyn er mwyn cael cynllun effeithiol sy’n 


sicrhau parhad gweithgareddau sefydliadol.  


AHEM: Derbyniodd y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio 


ddiweddariadau ar weithgarwch archwilio 


AHEM yn ystod y flwyddyn. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Cyfarfu’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio 4 gwaith 


yn 2016/17. Roedd y rhaglen waith yn 


cynnwys y canlynol: 


Adrodd Ariannol: Adolygodd y Cyd-


bwyllgor Archwilio’r datganiad blynyddol o 


gyfrifon ar gyfer 2015/16, ac ystyrion nhw’r 


Strategaeth Rheoli Trysorlys, y Polisi 


Cronfeydd Wrth Gefn a’r Strategaeth 


Gyfalaf.  


Rheoliadau Mewnol: Adolygodd y Cyd-


bwyllgor Archwilio Fframwaith Sicrwydd 


Rheoliadau Heddlu Dyfed-Powys, yn 


seiliedig ar y gwaith archwilio mewnol a 


gynhaliwyd gan TIAA.  


Archwilio Mewnol: Goruchwyliodd y Cyd-


bwyllgor Archwilio’r gwaith a gyflawnwyd gan 


archwilwyr mewnol (TIAA), gan gynnwys 


adolygiadau o feysydd sy’n gysylltiedig ag 


AD megis trefniadau recriwtio a rheoli oriau 


hyblyg, meysydd Cyllid megis cyflogres a 


hawliau treuliau a theithio electronig, a 


threfniadau sefydliadol megis parhad busnes 


a rheoli dyletswydd. Hefyd, ystyriodd y Cyd-


bwyllgor Archwilio’r cynllun archwilio mewnol 


blynyddol ar gyfer 2017/18.  


Archwilio Allanol: Ystyriodd y Cyd-bwyllgor 


Archwilio Archwiliad Swyddfa Archwilio 


Cymru o Ddatganiadau Ariannol ar gyfer 


2015/16. Mewn ymateb i ymgynghoriad 


Llywodraeth Cymru y llynedd ar yr amserlen 


ar gyfer cau cyfrifon yn gynt ar gyfer cyrff 


llywodraeth leol a chyrff heddlu, a’r prosesau 


sydd angen er mwyn bodloni’r amserlenni 


hynny, cynhaliwyd gwaith er mwyn hwyluso 


cau’r cyfrifon yn gynt ar gyfer 2016/17. 


 
‘Dydyn ni ddim wedi nodi unrhyw beryglon sy’n 


dod i’r amlwg a allai effeithio ar effeithlonrwydd 


cyffredinol fframwaith perygl, llywodraethu a 


rheoli mewnol y sefydliad.’ Adroddiad Sicrwydd 


Rheoliadau Mewnol Cryno Archwilwyr Mewnol 


TIAA 2016/17 
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Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer 2017/18 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


Mae blaenoriaethau ar gyfer y pwyllgor yn 


2017/18 yn cynnwys: 


- Adolygu Cylch Gorchwyl a modus 


operandi’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio ar y 


cyd â’r Prif Gwnstabl a Chyd-


bwyllgorau Archwilio eraill yng 


Nghymru;  


 


- Ystyried ac ymgynghori ynghylch 


trefniadau llywodraethu corfforaethol, 


sydd yn cael eu hystyried ar hyn o 


bryd er mwyn bodloni gofynion y tîm 


Arweinyddiaeth. Bydd y Fframwaith 


Llywodraethu Corfforaethol yn cael ei 


adolygu er mwyn adlewyrchu’r 


strwythurau llywodraethu y mae’r 


cyfuniad newydd o gorfforaethau 


undyn eisiau gweld mewn grym yn 


ystod eu cyfnodau mewn swydd; 


 


- Goruchwylio integreiddio rheoli risg i mewn 


i drefniadau llywodraethu a chynllunio 


busnes; 


 


- Ffocws ar AHEM a chanfyddiadau 


adolygiadau allanol eraill i’r graddau y 


maen nhw’n ymwneud â llywodraethu a 


materion rheoli mewnol; 


 


- Ffocws ar drefniadau rheoli gwybodaeth a 


chydymffurfiaeth â gofynion statudol; 


 


- Ffocws ar ganfyddiadau archwilio mewnol 


sydd wedi arwain at sicrwydd cyfyngedig 


yn cael ei roi i faes busnes; a  


 


- Asesu’r gallu i weithredu mewn cyfnodau 


parhaus o gyfyngiadau ariannol. 


 







  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Cysylltwch â’r CHTh 


Ffôn: 01267 226440 


E-bost: opcc@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 


SCHTh, Blwch Post 99, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin, SA31 2PF 


Cysylltwch â’r Heddlu 


Ffôn: 01267 222020 / 101 


PO Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen, SA31 2PF 
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Mr. Mark Collins 


Prif Gwnstabl / Chief Constable  


 
Pencadlys Heddlu Dyfed-Powys, Blwch Post 99, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin, SA31 2PF. 
Dyfed-Powys Police Headquarters, PO Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen, SA31 2PF.


  


• Ffôn/Tel : 01267 226308 
• Ffacs/Fax :  01267 226310 
• E-bost/E-mail : carol.price@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 


 


 


 


 


 


              
 


 


Auditor General for Wales 


Wales Audit Office 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


 


25
th
 July 2017 


Representations regarding the 2016-17 financial statements 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Chief 


Constable of Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31st March 2017 for the purpose of expressing an 


opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we consider 


sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:  


 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative requirements and 


the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting; in particular the financial 


statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith. 


 The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent and 


detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 


We have provided you with: 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Eich cyf/Your ref : 
Ein cyf/Our ref :   
Gofynnwch am/Please ask for :  


 


Prif Gwnstabl • Mr. Mark Collins •  Chief Constable 


 Y Wobr Brydeinig am 
Wasanaeth o Safon 
 


The National Awar d 
For Quality of Service 


 


Mae Heddlu Dyfed-Powys yn croesawu 
Gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg neu’r Saesneg. 


 
Dyfed-Powys Police welcomes 


Correspondance in either Welsh or English. 


Buddsoddwyr 
Mewn Pobl 


 
Investors in 


People 







 


 Full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 


financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, 


minutes of meetings and other matters; 


‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; 


and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit 


evidence. 


 The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 


misstated as a result of fraud. 


 Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Chief 


Constable for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


 Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 


statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others. 


 Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected  


non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 


preparing the financial statements. 


 The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of 


which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 


reflected in the financial statements. 


Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 


value, are reasonable. 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed. 


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure have 


been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 


preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 


disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 


 


The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects of 


uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the 


aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 


 


 







 


Representations by the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


I acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been discussed with 


us. 


I acknowledge my responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 


accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. I approved the financial statements 


on 25
th
 July 2017. 


I confirm that I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken in order to make myself aware 


of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated to you. I confirm 


that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which you are unaware. 


  


 


 


 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Director of Finance – Chief Constable Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Mr Edwin Harries and Mrs Jayne Woods 


Director of Finance and Chief Finance Officer, Office for the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 


Dyfed Powys Police 


Police Headquarters,  


PO BOX 99 


Llangunnor,  


Carmarthen  


SA31 2PF 


 


Dear Ed and Jayne 


Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys Police 2016-17 


Audit enquiries to those charged with governance and management 


 


As you will be aware I am required to conduct my financial audit in accordance with the 
requirements set out in International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  As part of the requirements 
of the ISAs I am writing to you to formally seek your documented consideration and 
understanding on a number of governance areas that impact on my audit of your financial 
statements. These considerations are relevant to both management and ‘those charged with 
governance’ (the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable). 
I have set out below the areas of governance on which I am seeking your views. 
 
1. Management processes in relation to: 


 


 undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated due to fraud; 


 identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation; 


 communication to employees of views on business practice and ethical behaviour; 
and  


 communication to those charged with governance of the processes for identifying 
and responding to fraud. 


Reference  


Date 31
st
 March 


2017 


Pages 1 of 8 







 


   


 


 
2. Management’s awareness of any actual or alleged instances of fraud. 


 
3. How management gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 


complied with. 
 
4. Whether there is any potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial statements. 


 
5. Management processes to identify, authorise, approve, account for and disclose related 


party transactions and relationships. 
 


 
The information you provide will inform our understanding of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable’s arrangements and business processes and support our 
work in providing an audit opinion on their 2016-17 financial statements. 
 
I have included your responses for 2015-16 in Appendix 1 and would be grateful if you could 
these to reflect your current arrangements.  Could you please provide this information on behalf 
of both management and those charged with governance by 30th June 2017. In the meantime, if 
you have queries, please contact me on 07854 022649. 


Yours sincerely 


 


 


Jason Garcia 


Audit Manager 







 


Appendix A 


 
International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240 – The auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit 
of financial statements  
 
Background 


 
Under the ISA, the primary responsibility for preventing and detecting fraud rests with both management and ‘those charged 
with governance’, being the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. This includes fraud that could impact on 
the accuracy of the annual accounts. The ISA requires us, as external auditors, to obtain an understanding of how the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable exercise oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding 
to the risks of fraud and the internal controls established to mitigate them. 
 
What is ‘fraud’ in the context of the ISA? 
 
The ISA views fraud as either: 


 the intentional misappropriation of assets (cash, property, etc); or 


 the intentional manipulation or misstatement of the financial statements. 
 
What are we required to do? 


 
We have to obtain evidence of how management and those charged with governance are discharging their responsibilities if 
we are to properly discharge our responsibilities under ISA240. We are therefore making requests from both management 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable: 
 


Enquiries of management  


Question 2015-16 Response 2016-17 response 


1) What is management’s 
assessment of the risk 
that the financial 


Management’s assessment of the risk of 


material misstatement of the Financial 


Statements due to Fraud would be low. The 


Management’s assessment of the risk 


of material misstatement of the 


Financial Statements due to Fraud 







 


   


 


statements may be 
materially misstated due 
to fraud and what are the 
principle reasons? 


principle reasons are: 


 Corporate Governance Framework 


controls 


 Chief Officer Group  


 Policing Board 


 Comprehensive staff vetting 


arrangements 


 High materiality limits 


 Computerised Purchase ordering 


 Regular budget monitoring to COG and 


locally 


 Joint Internal Audit - Targeted Audit 


(Arrangements for Counter Fraud 


around payroll arrangements and 


Treasury Management) 


 Transparency – publication of 


expenditure over £5K 


 HMIC work on integrity in policing 


 Independent professional procurement 


support 


 Separation of duties / input / authorising 


 Professional Standards / Integrity work 


However recognise added risk from: 


 Staff Turnover in key roles e.g. people 


leaving / new processes  


 Greater discretion / freedoms to make 


local decisions 


 Greater reliance on IT 


 Vulnerability of organisation to external 


fraud activity by ICT means 


would remain low.  


The principle reasons are: 


 Corporate Governance 


Framework controls 


 Chief Officer Group review 


 Policing Board oversight 


 Comprehensive staff vetting 


arrangements (see below) 


 High materiality limits 


 Computerised Purchase ordering 


 Regular budget monitoring to 


COG and within Departments 


 Joint Internal Audit - Targeted 


Audit (Arrangements for Counter 


Fraud around payroll 


arrangements and Treasury 


Management) 


 Transparency – publication of 


expenditure over £5K 


 HMIC work on integrity in policing 


 Professional procurement support 


 Separation of duties / input / 


authorising 


 Professional Standards / Integrity 


work 


 Code of ethics work and referral 


processes 


 New Chief Officer Team and 


Chief Constable Roadshows 


which is providing staff an 


opportunity to communicate and 







 


   


 


raise concerns and issues 


afresh 


However recognise added risk from: 


 Staff Turnover in key roles e.g. 


people leaving / new processes  


 Greater discretion / freedoms to 


make local decisions 


 Greater reliance on IT 


 There is a significant backlog of 


vetting cases to be progressed 


in relation to existing staff and 


officers 


 Vulnerability of organisation to 


external fraud activity by ICT 


means 


 Limited assurance in relation to 


creditor payments audit and 


Public Service Bureau 


 Governance arrangements are 


undergoing a process of 


evolution 


2) How can management 
assure the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and 
Chief Constable that it 
has not been 
inappropriately influenced 
by external pressures? 


 Business Interest Processes 


 Integrity Unit Proactive Work 


 Whistle blowing arrangements / 


“Safecall” 


 Gifts and Hospitality Register 


 Business Interest Processes 


 Integrity Unit Proactive Work 


 Confidential reporting 


mechanisms through Bad Apple 


and “Safecall” 


 Gifts and Hospitality Register 


3) Are management aware 
of any organisational 
pressure to meet revenue 


Yes – there were dual pressures both to 


make significant savings e.g. during “Public 


First” / “Spending Wisely” and other initiatives 


Yes – there were dual pressures both 


to make significant savings but also to 


spend the available monies included in 







 


   


 


and capital budgets or 
other financial 
constraints? 


– but also to minimise contributions to 


reserves and to spend capital and revenue 


budgets 


Equally we recognise the scope for 


operational performance related pressures 


around reporting / investigations and 


outcomes. 


 


capital and revenue budgets. 


 


Equally we recognise the scope for 


operational performance related 


pressures around reporting / 


investigations and outcomes. 


 


4) What processes are 
employed to identify and 
respond to the risks of 
fraud more generally and 
specific risks of 
misstatement in the 
financial statements? 


As above As above 


5) How has management 
communicated 
expectations of ethical 
governance and 
standards of conduct and 
behaviour to all relevant 
parties, and when? 


Some considerable work has been 


undertaken on integrity and ethics in policing 


over the year as evidenced in the Annual 


Governance documents. The College of 


Policing guidance is being rolled out to 


officers and the importance of staff “doing the 


right thing” for victims and customers has 


been a key and consistent theme. 


Confidential reporting arrangements and an 


Ethics Committee have been established and 


the results of misconduct cases are 


published. 


 


Some considerable work has been 


undertaken on integrity and ethics in 


policing over the year as evidenced in 


the Annual Governance documents. 


The College of Policing guidance has 


been incorporated into Vision / Mission 


/ Values. This has been rolled out to 


officers and the importance of staff 


“doing the right thing” for victims and 


customers has been a key and 


consistent theme. Confidential reporting 


arrangements and an Ethics Committee 


have been established and the results 


of misconduct cases are published. 


PDR Processes include business 


interest declarations and standards of 







 


   


 


professional behaviour. 


 


6) What arrangements are 
in place to report about 
fraud to those charged 
with governance? 


 Professional Standards processes 


 New Triage service with OPCC 


 Monthly COG Reporting / Policing 


Board operational updates 


 “Safecall” / Whistle blowing and “Bad 


Apple”  arrangements 


 Ethics Committee 


 Professional Standards 


processes 


 New Triage service with OPCC in 


respect of public dissatisfaction 


 Monthly COG Reporting / Policing 


Board operational updates 


 “Confidential reporting 


mechanisms through Bad Apple 


and “Safecall” 


 


 Ethics Committee online referral 


processes 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable  


Question 2015-16 Response 2016-17 response 


1) How does the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and 
Chief Constable, exercise 
oversight of 
management's processes 
for identifying and 
responding to the risks of 
fraud within the Force 
and the internal control 
that management has 
established to mitigate 
those risks? 


 Through regular reporting in COG / 


Policing Board 


 Corporate Governance Group 


 Professional Standards Updates / COG 


 Integrity Department 


 Internal Audit Planning processes 


 Joint Audit Committee 


 Through regular reporting in COG 


/ Policing Board 


 Corporate Governance Group 


 Professional Standards Updates / 


COG 


 Integrity Department 


 Internal Audit Planning processes 


Joint Audit Committee 







 


   


 


2) Has the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable knowledge of 
any actual, suspected or 
alleged fraud since 1 April 
2014? 


We are dealing with some cases where staff 


members are claiming for hours they haven’t 


worked. Technically this may be counted as a 


fraud 


None. 


3) Has the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable any suspicion 
that fraud may be 
occurring within the 
organisation? 


No. No. 


4) Are the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable satisfied that 
internal controls, 
including segregation of 
duties, exist and work 
effectively? If ‘yes’, 
please provide details. If 
‘no’ what are the risk 
areas? 


Yes – Comprehensive Corporate 


Governance Framework and Internal Audit 


assurances.  


Corporate Governance Group assurances 


and quarterly Review of Governance 


arrangements 


Yes – Comprehensive Corporate 


Governance Framework and Internal 


Audit assurances.  


Corporate Governance Group 


assurances and quarterly Review of 


Governance arrangements 


5) How do you encourage 
staff to report their 
concerns about fraud and 
what concerns about 
fraud are staff expected 
to report? 


Focus on integrity and ethics with all staff and 


officers. “Safecall “ and “Bad Apple” reporting 


arrangements 


Confidential reporting mechanisms 


through Bad Apple and “Safecall” 


 


Reinforcement of Standards of 


Professional Behaviour which include 


“challenging and reporting improper 


behaviour” 


6) From a fraud and 
corruption perspective, 
what are considered by 
the Police and Crime 


Business Interests / Procurement / Budget 


Responsibility / Chief Officers / Press / Media 


/ Treasury Management / Finance / payroll / 


income / officers seizing assets / financial 


Those with external Business Interests / 


involved in Procurement activity / with 


Budget Responsibility / Chief Officers / 


Press & Media / staff engaged in 







 


   


 


Commissioner and Chief 
Constable to be high risk 
posts within the 
organisation and how are 
the risks relating to these 
posts identified, assessed 
and managed? 


investigators. 


 


Integrity Unit work / targeted audit / Corporate 


Governance Framework. 


Treasury Management / those with 


access to Finance / payroll / income / 


officers seizing assets / financial 


investigators. 


 


How Managed? 


Integrity Unit work / targeted audit / 


Corporate Governance Framework 


including sign off requirements. 


 


Higher risks posts will have a higher 


level of vetting, which is subject to more 


stringent checks and review periods. 


7) Are the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable aware of any 
related party relationships 
or transactions that could 
give rise to instances of 
fraud and how does they 
mitigate the risks 
associated with fraud 
related to related party 
relationships and 
transactions? 


No. There was instance which was referred 


to the IPCC for investigation which WAO are 


aware of however this concluded that there 


was no case to answer in relation to 


wrongdoing. 


No. There was instance which was 


referred to the IPCC for investigation 


which WAO are aware of however this 


concluded that there was no case to 


answer in relation to wrongdoing. 


8) Are the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable aware of any 
entries made in the 
accounting records of the 
organisation that it 
believes or suspects are 
false or intentionally 


No. No. 







 


   


 


misleading?· 


9) Are the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable aware of any 
organisational, or 
management pressure to 
meet revenue and capital 
budgets or other financial 
constraints? 


Yes – there were dual pressures both to 


make significant savings e.g. during “Public 


First” / “Spending Wisely” and other initiatives 


– but also to minimise contributions to 


reserves and to spend capital and revenue 


budgets 


Equally we recognise the scope for 


operational performance related pressures 


around reporting / investigations and 


outcomes. 


Yes – there were dual pressures both 


to make significant savings e.g. during 


“Public First” / “Spending Wisely” and 


other initiatives – but also to spend 


available capital and revenue budgets 


fully. 


 


Equally we recognise the scope for 


operational performance related 


pressures around reporting / 


investigations and outcomes. 







 


   


 


International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 250 – Consideration of laws and regulations in an audit of 


financial statements  


Background 


 
Under the ISA, in the UK and Ireland, the primary responsibility for ensuring that the entity's operations are conducted in 
accordance with laws and regulations and the responsibility for the prevention and detection of non compliance rests with 
both management and ‘those charged with governance’, being the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. 
The ISA requires us, as external auditors, to obtain an understanding of how they gain assurance that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with. 
 
What are we required to do? 
 
We have to obtain evidence of how management and those charged with governance are discharging their responsibilities, if 
we are to properly discharge our responsibilities under ISA 250. We are therefore making requests from both management 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. 
 


Enquiries of management  


Question 2015-16 Response 2016-17 Response 


1) How have you gained 
assurance that all relevant 
laws and regulations have 
been complied with? 


 Monitoring Officer Role  


 Director of Legal and Compliance role 


 Legal Advice when required 


 Staff Training 


 CFO role for PCC and CC re unlawful 
expenditure 


 Through Policing Board / COG 


 Monitoring Officer Role  


 Director of Legal and Compliance 
role 


 Legal Advice when required 


 Staff Training 


 CFO role for PCC and CC re 
unlawful expenditure 
Through Policing Board / COG 


2) Are there any potential 
litigations or claims that 
would affect the financial 
statements? 


Litigation claims are compiled by the Director 
of Legal and Compliance on behalf of the 
Force and by the Monitoring Officer in the 
PCC 
 


Litigation claims are compiled by the 
Assistant Director of Legal and 
Compliance on behalf of the Force and 
by the Monitoring Officer in the PCC.  







 


   


 


 A list of all litigation claims received is 
maintained and an estimate of liability 
is included in the accounts as a 
provision / or reserve. 


The following legal issues / areas are 
included in the accounts: 


 Milne Vs GAD - historic commutation 
Factors 


 Bear Scotland – holiday pay claim 


 Deduction of ESA from injury benefits 


 Assessment of litigation claims 


 A list of all litigation claims 
received is maintained and an 
estimate of liability is included in 
the accounts as a provision / or 
reserve. 


The following legal issues / areas are 
included in the accounts: 


 Milne Vs GAD - historic 
commutation Factors 


 Bear Scotland – holiday pay claim 


 Deduction of ESA from injury 
benefits 


 Leigh Day Pension Challenge 


 Undercover Policing Inquiry 


 Assessment of litigation claims 
 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable  


Question 2015-16 Response 2016-17 Response 


1) How do the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and 
Chief Constable, exercise 
oversight of 
management's processes 
to ensure that all relevant 
laws and regulations have 
been complied with?  


 Through COG and the Policing Board 


 Monitoring Officer Role (PCC) 


 Director of Legal and Compliance Role 
(CC) 


 CFO role for PCC and CC 


 Through COG and the Policing 
Board 


 Monitoring Officer Role (PCC) 


 Director of Legal and Compliance 
Role (CC) 
CFO role for PCC and CC 


2) Are the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable aware of any 
non-compliance with 
relevant laws and 
regulations? 


No. No. 


3) If there have been N/A N/A 







 


   


 


instances of non-
compliance what are they, 
and what oversight has 
the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief 
Constable Board had to 
ensure that action taken 
by management to 
address and gaps in 
control? 


 
International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 550 – Related parties  
 
Background 
 
The nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some circumstances, give rise to higher risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements than transactions with unrelated parties. For example: 
 


 Related parties may operate through an extensive and complex range of relationships and structures, with a 
corresponding increase in the complexity of related party transactions. 


 Information systems may be ineffective at identifying or summarising transactions and outstanding balances between 
an entity and its related parties. 


 Related party transactions may not be conducted under normal market terms and conditions; for example, some 
related party transactions may be conducted with no exchange of consideration. 


 
Because related parties are not independent of each other, many financial reporting frameworks establish specific 
accounting and disclosure requirements for related party relationships, transactions and balances to enable users of the 
financial statements to understand their nature and actual or potential effects on the financial statements.  An understanding 
of the entity's related party relationships and transactions is relevant to the auditor's evaluation of whether one or more fraud 
risk factors are present as required by ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, because fraud may be more easily committed through 
related parties. 
 
 
 







 


   


 


 
 
What are we required to do? 
 
Where the applicable financial reporting framework establishes requirements for related parties, the auditor has a 
responsibility to perform audit procedures to identify, assess and respond to the risks of material misstatement arising from 
the entity's failure to appropriately account for or disclose related party relationships, transactions or balances in accordance 
with the requirements of the framework. We are therefore making requests from both management and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable: 
 


Enquiries of management  


Question 2015-16 Response 2016-17 Response 


1) What controls are in place 
to identify, authorise, 
approve, account for and 
disclose related party 
transactions and 
relationships? 


 


Individual returns by officers identifying any 
related party transactions annually. An 
instance has been reported to the IPCC 
around incomplete disclosure however the 
investigation has concluded that there was 
no case to answer 


Individual returns by officers identifying 
any related party transactions annually. 
An instance has been reported to the 
IPCC around incomplete disclosure 
however the investigation has 
concluded that there was no case to 
answer. 


2) Confirm that you have: 


 disclosed to the auditor 
the identity of the entity's 
related parties and all the 
related party relationships 
and transactions of which 
you are aware; and 


 appropriately accounted 
for and disclosed such 
relationships and 
transactions in 
accordance with the 
requirements of the 
framework. 


Confirmed – these are stated in the 
Financial Statements 
This includes a note on the above instance. 


Confirmed – these are stated in the 
Financial Statements 
This includes a note on the above 
instance. 







 


   


 


 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable  


Question 2015-16 Response 2016-17 Response 


1) How do the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and 
Chief Constable, exercise 
oversight of management's 
processes to identify, 
authorise, approve, account 
for and disclose related 
party transaction sand 
relationships? 


 As above.  


 Business Interest Monitoring. 


 Professional Standards work 


 IPCC investigation also in the last 
financial year 


 As above.  


 Business Interest Monitoring. 


 Professional Standards work 
IPCC investigation also in the 
last financial year 
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This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 


In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  


is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  


The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 


authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 


General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 


disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 


infoofficer@audit.wales. 


We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 


not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 


gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 


The team who delivered the work comprised John Herniman, Jason Garcia and Leanne Malough  
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Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Introduction 


1 The Auditor General is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the 


financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys (the 


Commissioner) and of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys (the Chief Constable) 


give a true and fair view of their financial position at 31 March 2017 and of their 


income and expenditure for the year then ended. 


2 We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are 


correctly stated, but adopt the concept of materiality. In planning and conducting 


the audit, we seek to identify material misstatements in your financial statements, 


namely, those that might result in a reader of the accounts being misled. 


3 The quantitative levels at which we judge such misstatements to be material are:  


 Police and Crime 


Commissioner 


Chief Constable Police Pension 


Fund 


Income and 
Expenditure items 
and other 
balances 


£1.532 million £1.532 million £0.613 million 


Whether an item is judged to be material can also be affected by certain qualitative 


issues such as legal and regulatory requirements and reader sensitivity.  


4 International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 requires us to report certain matters 


arising from the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance 


of a body in sufficient time to enable appropriate action. For Police bodies, those 


charged with governance are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 


Constable. 


5 This report sets out for consideration the matters arising from the audit of the 


financial statements of the Commissioner and the Chief Constable, for 2016-17, 


that require reporting under ISA 260.  We have not included any specific 


recommendations in this report and we will issue a separate report to summarise 


the less significant issues identified during the audit along with any relevant 


recommendations 


Status of the audit 


6 In 2016-17 we agreed with both the Commissioner and Chief Constable to pilot 


earlier deadlines for both the accounts preparation and audit delivery.  The 


statutory deadlines remain as 30 June for accounts preparation and 30 September 


for audit certification, however for 2018/19 onwards these dates will be brought 


forward to 31 May and 31 July respectively.  


7 As agreed, we received the draft financial statements for both the Commissioner 


and the Chief Constable for the year ended 31 March 2017 on 16 June 2017.  We 


have now substantially completed the audit work and are planning on signing off 
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Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


the 2016-17 financial statements for both the Commissioner and Chief Constable 


by end of July 2017, two months ahead of the statutory deadline.  


8 This is a significant achievement by the finance team and we would like to thank 


them for helping us achieve these tight deadlines. Undertaking the production and 


audit of the accounts to these earlier deadlines has identified a number of learning 


points for both the finance team and ourselves. We will consider these in more 


detail at a future post project learning session to ensure they are captured and built 


into processes for future years.   


9 We are reporting to you the more significant issues arising from the audit, which we 


believe you must consider prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit 


team has already discussed these issues with the Chief Finance Officer of the 


Police and Crime Commissioner’s office and the Director of Finance for the Chief 


Constable. 


Proposed audit report 


10 It is the Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the 


financial statements of both the Commissioner and Police Constable once you 


have provided us with a Letter of Representations based on those set out in 


Appendix 1 and 2.  


11 The proposed audit reports are set out in Appendix 3 and 4.  


Significant issues arising from the audit 


Uncorrected misstatements  


12 Where we identify misstatements that are not trivial but have no impact on our 


opinion, we raise them with management who have the option to amend for them. 


Where they decide not to amend, their decision needs to be ratified by those 


charged with governance to ensure they agree. We set out below the misstatement 


we identified in the financial statements, which has been discussed with 


management who have decided not to amend it due to it not being material and 


therefore not having a significant impact on the accounts or our opinion. 


£114k of receipts relating to the disposal of the Police Helicopter was incorrectly included 


in the 2016-17 financial statements  


 During 2015-16 the Force disposed of the Police helicopter.  The Force 


received £233k receipts from the sale of the helicopter and this was agreed 


to be paid over a 4 year period in different instalments.  These receipts were 


included in the calculation for the loss on disposal included in the 2015-16 


financial statements.   
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However in 2016-17, the second year’s payment of £114k was received but 


this has been recognised once again in the Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure account as income, rather than reversing out the debtor balance 


that had been set up in 2015-16.   


Corrected misstatements 


13 There are misstatements that have been corrected by management, but which we 


consider should be drawn to your attention due to their relevance to your 


responsibilities over the financial reporting process. They are set out with 


explanations in Appendix 5. 


Other significant issues arising from the audit 


14 In the course of the audit, we consider a number of matters both qualitative and 


quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you. 


There were no issues arising in these areas this year: 


 We have no concerns about the qualitative aspects of your accounting 


practices and financial reporting.  


We found the information provided to be relevant, reliable, comparable, 


material and easy to understand. We concluded that accounting policies and 


estimates are appropriate and financial statement disclosures unbiased, fair 


and clear. 


 We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit.  


We received information in a timely and helpful manner and were not 


restricted in our work. 


 There were no significant matters discussed and corresponded upon 


with management, which we need to report to you.  


 We have addressed the risks identified in the audit plan and there are no 


issues that need to be brought to your attention.  


 There are no other matters significant to the oversight of the financial 


reporting process that we need to report to you.  


 We did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls  


 There are not any other matters specifically required by auditing 


standards to be communicated to those charged with governance. 
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Independence and objectivity 


15 As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with 


representations concerning our independence. 


16 We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are 


independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships 


between the Wales Audit Office and either the Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys or the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys that we consider to bear on 


our objectivity and independence. 
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Final Letter of Representation – Chief Constable 
for Dyfed Powys 


 [Audited body’s letterhead] 


 


Auditor General for Wales 


Wales Audit Office 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


 


[Date] 


Representations regarding the 2016-17 financial statements 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the 


Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31st March 2017 for the purpose of 


expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 


consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:  


 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative 


requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in 


accordance therewith. 


 The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to 


prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 


We have provided you with: 


 Full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 


preparation of the financial statements such as books of account and 


supporting documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters; 
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‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 


of the audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to 


obtain audit evidence. 


 The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may 


be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 


 Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that 


affects the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 


statements. 


 Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 


financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 


regulators or others. 


 Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected  


non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be 


considered when preparing the financial statements. 


 The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 


transactions of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and 


are reflected in the financial statements. 


Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 


at fair value, are reasonable. 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed. 


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 


disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 


when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and 


accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 


framework. 


The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.    
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Representations by the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


I acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 


discussed with me. 


I acknowledge my responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 


accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. I approved the financial 


statements on 25th July 2017. 


I confirm that I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken in order to make myself 


aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated to 


you. I confirm that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 


you are unaware. 


  


 


 


 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Director of Finance – Chief Constable Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Final Letter of Representation – Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


 [Audited body’s letterhead] 


 


Auditor General for Wales 


Wales Audit Office 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


 


[Date] 


Representations regarding the 2016-17 financial statements 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Police 


and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31st March 2017 for the 


purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 


consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:  


 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative 


requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in 


accordance therewith. 


 The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to 


prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 


We have provided you with: 


 Full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 


preparation of the financial statements such as books of account and 


supporting documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters; 
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‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 


of the audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to 


obtain audit evidence. 


 The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may 


be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 


 Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that 


affects the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 


statements. 


 Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 


financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 


regulators or others. 


 Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected  


non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be 


considered when preparing the financial statements. 


 The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 


transactions of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and 


are reflected in the financial statements. 


Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 


at fair value, are reasonable. 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed. 


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 


disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 


when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and 


accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 


framework. 


The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The 


effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both 


individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. A 


summary of these items is set out below: 


Include here an additional representation outlining the reasons for non amendment of a 


non trivial error.    
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Representations by the Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys  


I acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 


discussed with me. 


I acknowledge my responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 


accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. I approved the financial 


statements for 2016-17 on 25th July 2017. 


I confirm that I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken in order to make myself 


aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated to 


you. I confirm that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 


you are unaware. 


  


 


 


 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Chief Financial Officer to the PCC Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Chief 
Constable for Dyfed Powys  
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 


 Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys; and 


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


for the year ended 31st March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet. 


The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 


Account and the Net Assets Statement.  


The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 


law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-


17 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for 


Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 


Accounts set out on page 12, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 


preparation of the statement of accounts, including the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 


My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 


with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 


standards require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards 


for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 


accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 


accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether 


caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting 


policies are appropriate to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and the Dyfed Powys 


Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 


disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 


responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements 


and related notes. 


In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to 


identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 


and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 


materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing 
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the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I 


consider the implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 


Powys as at 31st March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year then 


ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund  


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31st March 2017 and of the amount and disposition of the 


fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 


accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 


opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  


Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 


Powys and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of 


the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit 


Practice. 
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For and on behalf of        


Huw Vaughan Thomas       


Auditor General for Wales      


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


 







Appendix 4 


Page 17 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 


Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Members 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys  
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys;  


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


for the year ended 31st March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise 


the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 


Statement, the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement. 


The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ Group accounting statements 


comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive 


Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow 


Statement.  


The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 


Account and the Net Assets Statement. 


The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 


law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-


17 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for 


Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 


Accounts as set out on page 11, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 


preparation of the statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys’ Group accounting statements and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 


My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 


with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 


standards require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards 


for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 


accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 


accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether 


caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting 


policies are appropriate to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’, the 
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Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group’s and the Dyfed Powys Police 


pension fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 


disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 


responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements 


and related notes. 


In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to 


identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 


and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 


materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing 


the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I 


consider the implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 


Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys as at 31st March 2017 and of its income and 


expenditure for the year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 


Powys Group 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group as at 31st March 2017 and of its income and 


expenditure for the year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Dyfed Powys Police 


Pension Fund during the year ended 31st March 2017 and of the amount and 


disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 
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Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 


accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 


opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  


Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


Group and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of 


the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit 


Practice. 


 


 


 


For and on behalf of        


Huw Vaughan Thomas       


Auditor General for Wales 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


25th July 2017    
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Summary of corrections made to the draft 
financial statements which should be drawn to 
the attention of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable for Dyfed 
Powys  


During our audit, we identified the following misstatements that have been corrected by 


management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to their 


relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process. 


 


Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 


£83,000 Capital Adjustment 


Account - £83k of 


amortisation of intangible 


assets had been 


incorrectly included in the 


charge for depreciation 


and impairment.  The note 


has been reclassified for 


this oversight. 


To correct an error in the 


classification between the 


charge for depreciation and 


impairment and the 


amortisation of intangible 


assets. No overall effect on the 


closing balance for this 


amendment. 


£223,000 Note 21 Financial 


Instruments, fair values -


Long term Investments 


were over stated and an 


adjustment to move this 


figure into short term 


Investments was made. 


To correct an error in the 


categorisation between long 


term and short term 


investments. No overall effect 


on the closing balance for this 


amendment. 


£15,000 Amendment to the exit 


package disclosed for the 


departure of the Director 


of Legal and Compliance 


To correctly reflect the 


requirements of the Accounts 


and Audit regulations 2014 


Narrative disclosure There were two minor 


narrative adjustments 


made to the Annual 


Governance Statement 


included the Police and 


Crime Commissioner 


financial statements 


To ensure the Annual 


Governance Statement was 


factually correct 


Various There were several other 


narrative, presentational 


and minor amendments 


made to both sets of 


accounts. 


To ensure full compliance with 


the Code and ensure 


presentational accuracy in line 


with International Financial 


Reporting Standards. 
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Narrative Report 
 
Introduction 
 
The purpose of this Narrative Report is to offer interested parties an effective guide to 
the most significant matters reported in the accounts along with an explanation of the 
potential impact of the current economic climate on the services provided by the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys. 
 
On 15


th
 November 2012 the public elected for the first time a Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys and the successful candidate, Mr Christopher Salmon, 
took up office on the 22nd November 2012, at which time Dyfed-Powys Police Authority 
ceased to exist.  The primary role of the Commissioner is to secure the maintenance of 
an efficient and effective police force across Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire, 
Ceredigion and Powys and to hold the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys to account for 
the exercise of operational police duties under the Police Act 1996. 
 
During 2016/17 the first term of office for Police and Crime Commissioners came to an 
end and on 5


th
 May 2016 Mr Dafydd Llywelyn was elected as the new Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys.  Mr Llywelyn will approve the Statement of Accounts 
that cover the whole of 2016/17 although he did not take office until after the start of the 
2016/17 financial year. 
 
Statement of Accounts 
These are the fifth statutory accounts prepared under the new governance 
arrangements.  Both the Commissioner and Chief Constable as separate legal entities 
(corporations sole) must produce their own Statement of Accounts, with the 
Commissioner also being responsible for production of the Group Accounts (within 
which the Commissioner’s accounts are contained). 
The following is an explanation of the statements that follow, their purpose and the 
relationship between them: 
 


•  Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts - this statement 
sets out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and his Chief Finance Officer; 


 
•  Annual Governance Statement - this statement is not a part of the Statement of 


Accounts but is published alongside the Statement of Accounts.  This statement 
describes how the Group conducts business in accordance with proper standards 
and presents the findings from the annual review of the effectiveness of the systems 
of internal control; 


 
•  Independent Auditor’s Report - this sets out the opinion of the external auditor, 


the Wales Audit Office, on whether the Group accounts presented give a ‘true and 
fair view’ of the financial position and operations of the Commissioner for 2016/17; 


 
•  Expenditure and Funding Analysis – this is a new statement and shows how 


annual expenditure is used and funded by the Group from resources as reported by 
management, split across directorates/services and departments in comparison with 
those resources consumed or earned by the Group reported in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices; 


 
•  Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this statement summarises 


the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing policing and 
crime reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day expenses and 
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related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of 
fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits 
earned by employees in the year; 


 
•  Movement in Reserves Statement - this statement shows the movement in the 


year on the reserves held by the Group, analysed into “usable reserves” (monies 
which can be applied to fund capital expenditure or to reduce local taxation) and 
unusable reserves (monies that cannot be used to provide services and exist 
through the application of accounting standards, for example, the pension reserve 
that matches the pension liability); 


 
•  Balance Sheet – this shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and 


liabilities recognised by the Group.  The net assets (assets less liabilities) are 
matched by the usable and unusable reserves; 


 
•  Cash Flow Statement – this statement summarises changes to cash and cash 


equivalents during the reporting period; 
 
•  Police Pension Fund - this summarises the income and expenditure during the 


reporting period relating to police pensions.  The account shows the top up grant 
due from the Group to the Pension Fund Account.  Subsequently the Home Office 
reimburses the Group for money paid over to the Pension Fund Account and 
effectively underwrites the deficit on the Pension Fund Account.  This practice would 
work in reverse if the Pensions Fund Account were to show a surplus at the end of 
the year; 


 
•  Notes to the Accounts – these provide additional information that further explains 


items included within the main financial statements with an aim of improving the 
reader’s understanding of the main financial statements; 


 
•  Glossary of Terms – this is not a part of the Statement of Accounts but is included 


to assist the reader’s understanding of the Statement of Accounts. 
 


Financial Performance of the Group 
In January 2016, Mr Christopher Salmon set a revenue budget for the financial year 
2016/17 of £93.341m.  After receiving a Home Office Grant of £37.117m, National Non-
Domestic Rates of £8.277m and a Revenue Support Grant of £4.617m, £43.330m was 
raised from Council Tax. 
 
The Group Statement of Accounts shows the financial performance of the Group on the 
basis of proper accounting and meets the requirement of the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance & Accountancy’s Code of Practice.  However, below is a summary of the 
most important income and expenditure elements of the accounts that are monitored on 
a day to day basis (the table excludes elements such as pension liabilities, which under 
statute do not need to be financed fully in year). 
 
The table sets out the final out-turn position for 2016/17 compared with the revised 
budget for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.  Overall the Group delivered a 
balanced budget.  
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Explanations of the main variances are provided below: 
 
Commissioner 


 The Commissioner spent £126k less than budgeted on his office.  The budget 
was originally set by Mr Christopher Salmon and inherited by Mr Dafydd 
Llywelyn.  The variance arises as a result of the delay in recruiting to Mr 
Llywelyn’s new office structure alongside a change in priorities over non office 
expenditure.    


Variance 


against 


Revised 


Budget


(Negative 


for 


Saving)


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000


Commissioner’s Expenditure


OPCC Office 979 979 853 -126


Commissioning 978 888 850 -38


Total Budget - Commissioner 1,957 1,867 1,703 -164


Chief Constable’s Expenditure


Chief Constable’s Office 2,291 2,214 2,014 -200


Resources Directorate 7,579 7,623 8,127 504


Legal and Compliance Directorate 1,753 1,753 1,757 4


Finance Directorate 5,941 5,917 5,752 -165


Neighbourhoods 48,036 47,935 47,542 -393


Investigations 21,836 22,391 22,887 496


Scientific Support 1,763 1,808 1,491 -317


Criminal Justice 1,416 1,182 1,111 -71


Professional Standards 959 968 1,021 53


Staff Associations 184 187 189 2


Central Budget & Income 2,678 2,568 2,092 -476


Total Budget – Force 94,436 94,546 93,983 -563


Other activities


Initiatives Funded from Reserves 0 0 190 190


Driver Retraining Income 0 0 -292 -292


Estates Activities Funded from Reserves 0 0 343 343


Total - Other 0 0 241 241


Net contribution to/(from) Reserves -3,052 -3,072 -2,586 486


Group Total (incl reserve) 93,341 93,341 93,341 0


Funded by Grants and Precepts -93,341 -93,341 -93,341 0


Original 


Budget


Revised 


Budget
Actual
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 The cost of commissioned services were in line with the budget with a small 
variance of £38k (3.9%) in the actual costs against that budgeted.   


 


Chief Constable 
 


 Chief Constable’s Office: An underspend of £200K against budget was the result, 
predominantly, of savings achieved against the Force-wide police officer ill-health 
retirement budget. 


 Resources Directorate: The Resources Directorate incorporates Estates, 
Business Support Unit, People’s Services and Continuous Improvement 
Departments. In total, the Directorate overspent against the original budget by 
£504K. The Force experienced some significant cost pressures as a result of the 
implementation of the Living Wage in respect of Cleaning Contracts (£100K) and 
some payments of historic rates on collaborative buildings (£165K). In addition, 
the Force decided to employ or post additional staff on a temporary basis 
(£355K) to the Directorate to meet project and processing backlog pressures that 
emerged during the year. Additional income was received of £-116K across 
Estates and Business Support headings. 


 Legal and Compliance Directorate: The Force incurred some additional temporary 
officer and staff costs against the original budget set for this Directorate (£228K) 
to meet some pressing processing requirements however this was offset by 
additional income and reductions in external legal expenses incurred during the 
year. 


 Finance Directorate: This Directorate encompasses the Corporate Finance, Fleet, 
ICT and Procurement Departments of the Force. Additional staffing costs of 
£228K were agreed during the year to progress ICT project work which was 
offset by significant savings against fuel, other non-pay areas and additional 
income in respect of the sale of vehicles.  


 Policing Neighbourhoods: This heading encompasses all spending incurred on 
local policing as well as Specialist Operational Support, Communications Centre 
and Offender Management functions. Officer salary budgets were £57K lower 
than the level anticipated in the budget however overtime overspent by £239K 
due to a number of significant operational challenges. Some significant savings 
were experiences against police staff roles, fuel costs and income which have 
contributed to a net under spend against this heading. 


 Investigations: The Force invested in additional capacity during the year into 
cyber-crime capabilities and into Investigative Units working to protect vulnerable 
children and adults which were funded from recurring savings generated by the 
Force through its “Spending Wisely” programme. The Force also incurred 
additional in-year overtime costs as a result of staff shortages, major operations 
and payments in respect of historic on-call working in compliance with Police 
Regulations. The Force also incurred additional costs in relation to the provision 
of medical support at its Custody Suites. 


 Scientific Support Department: The significant underspend against this heading 
occurred against forensic and other non-pay budgets due to collaborative 
procurement savings and lower than anticipated volume levels in respect 
submissions. 


 Criminal Justice Department: A non-recurring under spend against the budget of 
£71K occurred predominantly against non-pay and income headings. 
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 Professional Standards Department: A non-recurring over spend against the 
budget of £53K occurred against non-pay and ICT headings which were funded 
from savings made elsewhere in the Force. 


 Staff Associations: The small overspend occurred in respect of premises cost 
headings. 


 Central Budget and Income: An under spend of £476K was experienced against 
this centrally managed spending and income heading. This was predominantly 
due to additional income from escort duties in respect of windfarms. Savings 
arising in year against staffing budgets were also recorded against these 
headings which were largely netted off by corresponding additional payments 
against collaboration projects for the year. 


 


Other Activities 


 Initiatives funded From Reserves include the Commissioner’s Fund (£81k) and 
Road to Safety Grant Scheme (£76k) being sums of money offered to local 
organisations to spend on projects that support the Commissioner’s priorities.  
Funds were allocated via a bidding process.  The whole £190k was funded from 
reserves including some ring-fenced reserves such as those generated via the 
Proceeds of Crime Act and from income generated from the driver retraining 
courses. 


 The Chief Constable provides the administration of the driver retraining courses 
on behalf of the Commissioner.  The income generated was greater than that 
budgeted and once the Chief Constable’s administrative costs had been taken 
into account, a balance of £292k was transferred to reserves. 


 In 2016/17, the Commissioner ran the estates capital programme.  £343k of the 
actual costs of this programme were deemed to be revenue (rather than capital) 
in nature and therefore they are recorded here for completeness although they 
were funded from reserves as initially intended.     


 


Further details relating to the Chief Constable’s operations are provided in the Chief 
Constable Statement of Accounts 2016/17. 


Reserves 


During the 2016/17 financial year, usable reserves reduced by £5.561m from £32.9m to 
£27.3m.  The two most significant usage of reserves were: 


 Revenue Support – the original budget included a transfer from reserves of 
£3.052m to fund day to day activities.  This transfer was as a result of a decision 
made by Mr Christopher Salmon to cut the precept in 2015/16 and to use 
reserves to fund an element of the revenue budgets from 2015/16 to 2018/19.  
Due to a net revenue underspend in the year, the actual transfer from reserves in 
2016/17 was £2.502m.   


 Capital Programme – As a result of the planned capital programme, £3.500m 
was utilised from the Capital Reserve (against a projected utilisation of £5.321m).  


The final reserves figure for the year of £27.3m is split into a sum of £16.1m to support 
future capital investments, a general reserve of £4.5m for unforeseen events and a sum 
of £6.7m to support the revenue budget in 2017/18 and 2018/19. 
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Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 


In addition to revenue expenditure, money is incurred on capital assets such as 
buildings and vehicles which have a long term value to the Commissioner.  


Each year the Commissioner approves a capital programme which details where capital 
expenditure will be incurred. In 2016/17 a capital budget of £7.857m was adopted by the 
Commissioner. 


During 2016/17 actual capital expenditure amounted to £4.218m. The main variations 
from the budget are shown below: 


 


This capital expenditure was financed as follows: 


 


 


Balance Sheet 


The Balance Sheet provides a snap shot of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
assets and liabilities on the balance sheet date (31


st
 March 2017).   


The Group Balance Sheet is dominated by the long term liability of £1,313m in relation 
to future pension liabilities for police officers and staff.  This represents the amount that 
the Police and Crime Commissioner would need to set aside at the balance sheet date 
to cover all predicted future payments of pensions to current servicing and retired 
officers and staff. 


 Capital 


Expenditure
Budget Actual


(Over) / 


Under
Reason for over/under spend


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000


Land and 


Buildings
2,700 1,316 1,384 


A delay in identifying and purchasing land for the 


Carmarthenshire custody project resulted in there being 


virtually no spend on that project during the year.  A 


programme to refurbish existing stations is underway and 


progressing with some delays.


Vehicles 1,264 1,411 -147 
Delays in the purchase of vehicles in the previous year (due 


to slippage) led to this overspend in 2016/17.


IT and other 


strategic 


projects


3,893 1,491 2,402 


There have been delays in delivering numerous projects. 


These include IP999 upgrade (£438k), WAN (£238k)  and the 


in-car video (£250k) projects.


Total 7,857 4,218 3,639 


Capital 


Financing
Budget Actual


(Over) / 


Under
Reason for over/under spend


£’000 £’000 £’000


Capital Receipts 1,500 37 1,463 


It was predicted that surplus assets would be sold during the 


year but due to delays including those in relation to 


registering buildings with the Land Registry, the predicted 


sales did not occur.  A small amount of income was received 


on the sale of vehicles.


Direct Revenue 


Financing
422 415 7 Actual result was very close to the budgeted position.


NPAS Capital 


Credit
114 114 0 


Capital 


Reserves
5,321 3,109 2,212 


Due to the delays in capital programmes, it was not 


necessary to utilise reserves to the extent predicted when the 


budget was set.


Capital Grant 


and 


Contributions


500 543 -43 
Some additional grants were received which were not 


included in original budget.


Total 7,857 4,218 3,639 
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This figure has been calculated independently on an actuarial basis and takes account 
of all relevant factors including future salary levels, inflation and mortality rates. The 
overall liability has risen by £303m during the year, predominantly as a result of a 
change in the discount rate assumption applied.  The discount rate used is based on the 
average yield on corporate bonds.  In 2016/17 the discount rate assumption applied was 
2.6% compared to a discount rate assumption of 3.6% for 2015/16. Such a change in 
this one assumption accounts for an increase of £296m in the overall liabilities across 
both the police and staff pension funds with £261m of the increase relating to the Police 
Pension Scheme.  All current and future police (but not staff) pension costs will be paid 
for by the Government. 


The next largest item on the Balance Sheet is the £73.709m of property, plant & 
equipment owned by the Police and Crime Commissioner.  In addition to these long 
term assets, the Police and Crime Commissioner held £22.6m of short term assets – 
predominantly fixed term investments - at the 31


st
 March 2017.  


Looking Ahead 


The grant settlement for the 2016/17 financial year was somewhat better than expected 
with a reduction of 0.6% in cash terms in the core grant.  However concerns still exist of 
the potential impact of a formula funding review.  A consultation on a new formula began 
during 2015/16 but was halted after errors were discovered in the Home Office’s 
formula.  A new review of the formula commenced in 2016/17 and we are now awaiting 
the result of that review.  We do not currently know whether a new formula will be 
introduced or the timescales involved.  A change in the formula could significantly affect 
the level of funding that the Commissioner currently receives.   
 
There has been stability in relation to pay and inflationary pressures over recent years, 
however, current forecasts show an increase in inflation and this prediction along with 
the, as yet largely unknown, impact of Brexit presents a challenge to the Police and 
Crime Commissioner when looking at the medium term financial plan. 
 
Mr Dafydd Llywelyn launched his new Police & Crime Plan at the end of 2016/17.  In his 
plan he sets out his four key priorities: 
 


 Keeping communities safe; 


 Safeguarding the vulnerable; 


 Protecting our communities; 


 Connecting with communities. 
 
The Chief Constable has developed a Delivery Plan to support the Commissioner’s Plan 
and plans to invest in those activities that help deliver the Commissioner’s priorities.  
Given the financial pressures discussed above, it will be imperative to continue 
identifying opportunities to work more effectively and efficiently across the whole 
business in order to focus funds on these core priorities. 
 


There is also a need to invest significant sums of money in the estate and in technology 
over the coming years.  The current plan shows an investment programme of about 
£30m over the next four years.  However, funding this programme is a challenge.  The 
capital grant received from the Home Office is only circa £300k per annum and, even 
taking into account expected receipts from selling assets that are surplus to 
requirements, there remains a capital funding shortfall of approximately £10m within 
existing resources over the 2017/18 to 2020/2021 period. 
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Statement of Responsibilities  


The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and 
the Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 


 


The Commissioner’s responsibilities 


The Commissioner is required to: 


 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, that 
officer is the Chief Financial Officer; 


 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 


 approve the Statement of Accounts. 


I approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2016/17. 


   
   
     
          
 
Police & Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys  Date 


 


The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 


The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 


 


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 


 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 


 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 


 complied with the Local Authority Code. 


The Chief Financial Officer has also: 


 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 


 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 


I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group/Commissioner at the reporting date and of its expenditure and 
income for the year ended 31


st
 March 2017. 


 


  


 


  


         
            


Chief Finance Officer     Date  
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Annual Governance Statement  
 
This Annual Governance Statement (AGS) has been prepared to report on the extent to 
which the Police and Crime Commissioner of Dyfed-Powys complies with his code of 
governance and explains how this is consistent with the good governance principles in 
the Chartered institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s new guidance (CIPFA) 
Delivering Good Governance: Guidance Notes for Policing Bodies in England and 
Wales 2016 Edition.  This report includes a description of how the effectiveness of the 
governance arrangements has been monitored in the year and explains any planned 
changes in the coming period. 
 
The new Guidance recognises 7 core principles: 
 


 Core Principle A – behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values and respecting the rule of law; 


 Core Principle B – ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 


 Core Principle C – defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits; 


 Core Principle D – determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes; 


 Core Principle E – developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it; 


 Core Principle F – managing risks and performance through robust internal control 
and strong public financial management; 


 Core Principle G – implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit 
to deliver effective accountability. 


 
This report has been structured using each of the headings suggested in the new 
Guidance.  This report also meets the requirements of regulation 5(4) of the Accounts 
and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 in relation to the publication of a statement of 
internal control.  
 
Responsibilities 
 
Both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable are Corporations Sole and the Policing 
Protocol Order 2011 sets out the policing governance arrangements, clarifying the role 
and responsibilities of the Commissioner, the Chief Constable (CC) and the Police and 
Crime Panel and how they should work together to address crime and improve policing. 
 
The Commissioner   
 
The Commissioner is responsible for performing his functions as set out in the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and must hold the CC to account for the 
exercise of his functions.  This includes ensuring that a sound system of internal control 
is maintained through the year and that arrangements are in place for the management 
of risk. 
 
At the start of the 2016/17 financial year, Christopher Salmon was the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys (Commissioner).  However, on 12


th
 May 2016 Dafydd 


Llywelyn took office as the new Commissioner.  Therefore, unless indicated otherwise, 
all further references to the Commissioner refer to Dafydd Llywelyn’s term of office. 
Before commencing in office, the Commissioner took an oath to represent all of the 
people of Dyfed-Powys impartially, without fear or favour and in making his decisions, he 
signs off that he has no personal or prejudicial interest in the matter.  Both 
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Commissioners and the Deputy Commissioner of Christopher Salmon (Dafydd Llywelyn 
does not have a deputy) have agreed to abide by a Code of Conduct providing guidance 
on ethical standards and behaviour. 
During 2013/2014 a joint Code of Corporate Governance was written.  This was adopted 
on 1


st
 April 2014 and is included within the Corporate Governance Framework (CGF). 


This has since been updated to reflect the needs of the new Commissioner and CC and 
is reviewed annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 
 
The Commissioner is responsible for setting his strategic direction and priorities and in 
March 2017, the Commissioner issued a five year Police and Crime Plan (Plan).  The 
Plan is updated annually and outlines the vision, police and crime objectives and the 
strategic direction for policing.  The Plan identifies four priorities focusing on 
communities and the vulnerable.  The Plan was launched via a series of events to 
ensure that the Commissioner’s vision was clearly communicated to the Force, partners 
and to the public. 
 
Copies of both the CGF and Plan are available on the Commissioner’s website or can 
be obtained from the Office for the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner at PO 
Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen SA31 2PF. 
 
The Chief Constable (CC)  
 
At the start of the 2016/17 financial year, Simon Prince QPM was CC and on the 19


th
 


December 2016, Mark Collins took office as the new CC.  The CC is responsible for 
maintaining the Queen’s Peace and has direction and control over the Force’s officers 
and staff.  He holds Office under the Crown, and is accountable to the law for the 
exercise of police powers, and to the Commissioner for the delivery of efficient and 
effective policing and for the management of resources and expenditure by the Police 
Force.  At all times the CC, remains operationally independent. 
A Memorandum of Understanding between the Commissioner and CC defines the 
nature of their relationship, providing details of respective responsibilities and expected 
conduct.  This is contained within the Corporate Governance Framework.  
 
Police and Crime Panel 
 
The Police and Crime Panel scrutinises and supports the work of the Commissioner on 
an ongoing basis.  The Panel comprises twelve County Councillors and two 
Independent Members. The Panel carries out its work through public meetings that are 
recorded with the agenda and minutes made available to the public via the 
Commissioner’s website.  The Panel reviews complaints against the Commissioner.   
Further information about the Police and Crime Panel, including its terms of reference 
are available online.   
 
Joint Audit committee 
 
The Joint Audit Committee (JAC) currently comprises of four members and exists to 
provide independent assurance that there are adequate controls in place to mitigate key 
risks and to provide assurance that the Commissioner and CC are operating effectively.  
The JAC met four times during 2016/2017 and their judgements are informed by the 
results of scrutiny activity by Internal Audit, Wales Audit Office, Her Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) and other ad-hoc reviews or inspections.  The 
JAC’s terms of reference are available on the Commissioner’s website.   
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Internal Audit 
 
The role of internal audit is to provide independent assurance that an organisation’s risk 
management, governance and internal control processes are operating effectively.  
Their reviews cover operations falling under both Corporations Sole’s responsibilities.  
The internal auditors adopt a risk based approach in determining the audit needs each 
year.  This includes reviewing our risk registers and risk management framework plus 
reviewing previous internal audit work, external audit recommendations together with 
key corporate documentation.  This allows them to propose a three year plan.  The JAC 
has responsibility for approving each year’s internal audit plan.     
 
Wales Audit Office  
 
The Wales Audit Office (WAO) in carrying out its review of the financial statements 
provides comments on the system of internal controls that are in place.  They also 
confirmed that the Commissioner and CC had appropriate arrangements in place in the 
year to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.  Again, 
the result of their work is summarised below under Review of Effectiveness. 
 
Corporate Governance Group 
 
The Corporate Governance Group has delegated responsibility for undertaking the 
process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework.  
Membership currently includes the Chair of the JAC, the Deputy Chief Constable, the 
Commissioner’s Monitoring Officer and both the Chief Finance Officers for the 
Commissioner, the Director of Resources and the Director of Legal & Compliance.   
 
The Corporate Governance Group has developed a matrix that summarises the 
governance structures/tools in place for both Corporations Sole to demonstrate how the 
requirements of each of the 7 key principles are met.  This matrix forms the evidence 
base for this AGS.  The matrix also summarises further actions that we wish to 
undertake to further strengthen the governance framework.  These actions form the 
action plan that is included below in this document.    
 
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 
 
HMIC independently assess police forces and policing activity from neighbourhood 
teams to serious crime.  HMIC decides on the depth, frequency and areas to inspect 
based on their judgements about what is in the public interest.  HMIC’s annual 
inspection programme is subject to the approval of the Home Secretary in accordance 
with the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 
 
Assessment of the effectiveness of key elements of the governance framework 
 
Many of the key elements of the governance framework are discussed above under 
“Responsibilities”.   Each of the groups/individuals noted above plays a key role in 
ensuring that appropriate and fit for purpose governance arrangements and system of 
internal controls are in place.  Where weaknesses in the effectiveness of these elements 
are identified, they are strengthened to ensure that the governance framework remains 
robust.    
  
In addition to the above, the following key elements also exist to further strengthen the 
effectiveness of governance arrangements: 
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Corporate Governance Framework (CGF) 
 
The CGF comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the force 
is directed and controlled by the CC and its activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads its communities.  It enables the Commissioner to monitor the 
achievement of his strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have 
led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-
going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of policies, 
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
Whilst the CGF has been in place since 2014/15, and is reviewed annually, the arrival of 
a new Commissioner and new CC necessitates a more significant review of the 
document to ensure that it adequately reflects the changing structures and operating 
models within both organisations.  Now that the new Police & Crime Plan has been 
published, the CGF will be updated to ensure that it continues to support the needs and 
provide adequate assurance arrangements for both Corporations Sole. 
 
Policing Board/Police Accountability Board 
 
Policing Board is an internal system providing a robust process for the Commissioner to 
hold the CC to account in delivering the Police and Crime Plan.  The Commissioner has 
introduced a risk based approach to scrutiny and the Policing Board meets on a 
fortnightly basis with meetings largely following a thematic approach.  In addition, the 
Police Accountability Board meets quarterly and allows more formal monitoring of Force 
performance against the four priorities identified in the Police and Crime Plan. These 
meetings ensure that the Force is regularly challenged leading to an environment of 
continuous improvement.   
 
Previously both the Policing Board and the Police Accountability Board meetings were 
held more frequently.  However, it was felt that the timings of the meetings didn’t align 
with the frequency of issues to be considered and therefore the new meetings, although 
less frequent, provide for a more effective and focussed monitoring regime.  The 
success of the new system will be observed and amended if necessary. 
 
The Policing Board charter is published as section 6 (Decision Making) of the Corporate 
Governance Framework. 
 
Public Decision Logs 
 
The Commissioner produces a public log of decisions made.  Each decision is signed by 
the Commissioner who agrees to abide by the seven principles set out in the Standards 
in Public Life – the NOLAN Principles – in making his decisions. 
 
These logs provide transparency to the public on all significant decisions that the 
Commissioner makes and they are also reviewed quarterly by the Police & Crime Panel. 
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The Plan and Delivery Plan  
 
Christopher Salmon’s Police & Crime Plan (Plan) was in place for the whole of 2016/17 
with Dafydd Llywelyn publishing his new Plan at the end of March 2017.  In support of 
the new Plan, the CC has developed a Delivery Plan that demonstrates how Force 
activities support and deliver the Commissioner’s Plan.  This will be a key document 
used to ensure that Force activities are aligned with the Commissioner’s priorities and a 
positive step forward in strengthening governance arrangements across the two 
Corporations Sole for the forthcoming year.  
 
Risk Framework 
 
Both the Commissioner and CC have developed both a corporate and dynamic risk 
register and these are now fully embedded into the organisations.  The Commissioner 
has just developed a risk based scrutiny plan at the end of 2016/17 in order to ensure 
that scrutiny activities take account of and are driven by inherent risks.  This risk based 
approach will begin in earnest in the 2017/18 financial year but is recognised as a 
positive step forward to ensure that focus is placed on the areas of greatest need based 
on risk. 
 
Opinion on the level of assurance that the governance arrangement can provide 
 
The Commissioner has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  As 
detailed above, the Corporate Governance Group has delegated responsibility for 
reviewing the corporate governance framework and also oversees its implementation.   
The review of effectiveness was carried out by the Corporate Governance Group and 
has been informed by: 


 Police and Crime Panel views; 


 Joint Audit Committee views; 


 Internal Audit work; 


 Wales Audit Office review and work; 


 Policing Board discussions and actions; 


 HMIC reviews and reports; 


 Other reviews; 


 National issues; 


 Risks as identified on the corporate and dynamic risk registers; 


 Issues raised in the Chief Officer Group meetings; 


 Complaints recorded by the Public Services Bureau. 


The following evidence is of particular note: 
 
WAO  -  The WAO issued unqualified opinions on the 2015/16 financial statements of 
both the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys Police. 
They also confirmed that the Commissioner and CC had appropriate arrangements in 
place in the year to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of 
resources.  
 
Internal Audit - The primary role of internal audit is to give an assurance to the 
Commissioner and CC on the effectiveness of the controls in place to manage risks.  To 
this end the Internal Auditor delivers an annual opinion of the effectiveness of the 
controls reviewed by the internal audit team during the year.  This annual opinion, set 
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out in the annual report of the Internal Auditor, is one of the key sources of evidence in 
support of the Annual Governance Statement.  With reference to 2016/17 the internal 
auditor, TIAA Ltd expressed the following opinion; 
“I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow me to 
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Dyfed Powys 
Police's risk management, control and governance processes.  In my opinion, the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys Police has adequate and 
effective management, control and governance processes to manage the achievement 
of its objectives.” 
The Joint Audit Committee received two reports providing a limited assurance rating in 
relation to internal controls and these were in respect of the Public Service Bureau and 
Creditor Payments. All other audits conducted during 2016/17 received an overall 
assurance rating of reasonable or substantial and all of the highest priority agreed 
actions have been completed. Progress with implementing Audit recommendations is 
monitored by the Joint Audit Committee. 
 
HMIC  – During 2016/17 the Force experienced a significant level of inspections by 
HMIC.  The Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy Programme have all 
concluded that the Force is graded as “Requiring Improvement” overall and against 
each area.  These reports have been discussed by the Commissioner and CC and the 
Force has put in place additional arrangement to co-ordinate and manage all HMIC 
related work.  It is the aim of both the Commissioner and CC to see these gradings rise 
to “good’ in the near future and these actions are included on the action plan below. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Whilst recognising that there is further work to be carried out (as summarised in the 
action plan below), current governance arrangements are assessed to be adequate to 
provide assurance to both Corporations Sole. 
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Agreed action plan  
 
The following actions will be progressed during 2017/18: 
 


Action Link to Principle 


Determine how well understood the Code of Ethics and referral 
process is along with the transparency of feedback 


A 


Ensure ethics and integrity is reinforced through process A 


Establish Professional Reference Group B 


Increase community engagement at corporate level B 


Consider sustainable development principles in all new 
business cases and ideas 


C 


Develop a process for discussing and implementing new 
ideas/ business plans/ legislation (front door process) 


C 


Develop and embed performance structures to support the 
Delivery Plan  


D 


Create a repository of staff skills and qualifications to facilitate 
best utilisation of available resources and skill sets 


E 


Develop Leadership Strategy E 


Roll out Transformational Leadership Programme E 


Achieve a rating of “good” from HMIC in the PEEL Efficiency 
inspection  


F 


Achieve a rating of “good” from HMIC in the PEEL 
Effectiveness inspection  


F 


Achieve a rating of “good” from HMIC in the PEEL Legitimacy 
inspection 


F 


Establish and publish a plan of our own audit of processes and 
systems and compliance testing 


G 


Link corporate governance action plan to the risk register G 


 
How issues in the previous year’s AGS have been resolved 
 


 CGF - The new joint CGF was introduced on the 1
st
 April 2014.  An updated version 


was introduced at the beginning of 2015/16 after the CGF was reviewed to assess its 


suitability and success.  The CGF is now embedded within the organisation and is 


reviewed, as a minimum, on an annual basis.  The review due to be carried out in 


2016/17 has been delayed until the new Plan is issued thus allowing arrangements 


within the CGF to be aligned with the Plan and the CC’s Delivery Plan.  This work will 


begin early in 2017/18. 


 


 Risk management – During 2014/15 a new risk framework was developed with both 


the Commissioner and CC adopting a corporate risk register and then dynamic risk 


registers to record and manage risks within the organisation. The Force has adopted 


the new risk management arrangements and developed its Force wide risk appetite 


during 2015/16.  The Commissioner has now also firmly embedded its registers into 


the organisation and has progressed further by developing a risk based scrutiny 


approach to holding the CC to account. 
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 Partnership Working – The CC has completed the development of internal 


governance arrangements for collaborations.  


 


 Business Continuity – Internal Audit have raised a priority 1 (urgent) action point in 


relation to business continuity.  This action has been completed during 2016/17. 


 


 HMIC carried out a significant number of inspections during 2015/16 (and more during 


2016/17) - In particular, the HMIC Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy 


(PEEL) Inspections that took place in 2015 and 2016 assessed the Force as 


“Requires improvement”.  The Force has action plans in place to deliver 


improvements and this work is still ongoing in 2017/18. 


  


 During 2015/16, the Force received negative press coverage in relation to the scale of 


relocation expenses paid under the Police Authority’s previous policy in accordance 


with Police Regulations. These policies have now been amended and the review of 


chief officer packages has been undertaken and this action is now complete. 


 


 An allegation has been referred to the Independent Police Complaints Commission 


(IPCC) and deemed suitable for local investigation by the West Mercia Constabulary 


concerning the consequences or otherwise of a former relationship between senior 


Force personnel on internal force matters.  The matter has concluded and the 


subjects of the review have now both left the organisation and this matter is closed. 


 


 The IPCC has an investigation underway following referral by the Force into 


allegations received against the Director of Legal and Compliance. The allegations 


relate to payments made by Dyfed Powys Police for legal services over a number of 


years to a barrister’s chamber where her then husband worked. The IPCC is 


investigating what role the Director of Legal and Compliance had in instructing the 


chambers, in signing off any invoices and whether a potential conflict of interest was 


declared, when required, in line with force policies and procedures.  The investigation 


has concluded and a judgement that there is no case to answer for misconduct has 


been issued.  This matter is now closed. 


 


 The Force has self-referred details of information security breaches to the Information 


Commissioner’s Office involving the unintended release of confidential personal data 


to a third party by the Force. This arose as a result human error and weaknesses in 


Force systems involving auto population of email addresses.  As a result the Force 


has taken steps to address these significant issues however a fine of £120,000 was 


paid in 2016/17.  The outcome of further investigations into the other security 


breaches have yet to be determined and will be reviewed when available.  If 


appropriate, an action plan will be drawn up to address any issues raised. 


 


 The Wales Audit Office issued unqualified opinions on the 2015/16 financial 


statements of both the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable for 


Dyfed Powys Police. They also confirmed that the Commissioner and CC had 


appropriate arrangements in place in the year to secure economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in their use of resources.  They also noted that whilst progress had been 
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made on developing plans to manage the financial pressures over the medium and 


longer term, further work was required.  This work has continued over the course of 


2016/17 with sensitivity analyses being carried out during the budget setting process 


and a report on efficiency being submitted to HMIC at the end of 2016/17.  This report 


pulls together a number of important issues relating to ongoing financial pressures 


and the work undertaken to date to alleviate some of those pressures.   


 
Conclusion 
 
Having carried out the review, we believe that the governance arrangements that are in 
place continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance 
framework.  A number of issues previously identified have been successfully addressed 
and closed as detailed above.  That said, the review has also highlighted a number of 
new issues that must be specifically addressed over the coming financial year. 
These issues and related actions will be monitored by the Corporate Governance Group 
and the Joint Audit Committee over the next twelve months to ensure that governance 
arrangements are monitored and further strengthened. 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address 
the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will 
monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
Signed: Signed: Signed: 


   


   


   


Dafydd Llywelyn Carys Morgans Jayne Woods 


Police and Crime 
Commissioner 


Chief of Staff Chief Finance Officer 
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General for Wales’ report to the Members of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys 


 
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys;  


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


for the year ended 31st March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement. 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ Group accounting statements 
comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow Statement.  
The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account 
and the Net Assets Statement. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17 
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor 
General for Wales 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 
as set out on page 11, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of 
the statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ 
Group accounting statements and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting 
statements, which gives a true and fair view. 
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting 
statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting 
statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’, the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys Group’s and the Dyfed Powys Police pension fund’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer and the overall presentation 
of the accounting statements and related notes. 
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the 
implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys 
In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys as at 31st March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year 


then ended; and 
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 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys Group 
In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys Group as at 31st March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for the 


year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 
In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31st March 2017 and of the amount and disposition of the 


fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on other matters 
In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 
accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 


or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  


Certificate of completion of audit 
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
Group and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of 
the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit 
Practice. 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of        
Huw Vaughan Thomas       
Auditor General for Wales 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff 
CF11 9LJ 
25th July 2017  
 
 
 
 
 
 







Group Statement of Accounts 2016/17 
 
 


 23 


Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2016/17 
This is a new Statement which reflects a key accounting change introduced by the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. The Expenditure 
and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded by the Group from 
resources (government grants, rents and council tax) in comparison with those resources 
consumed or earned by the Group in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes 
between the Group’s Directorates/Services/Departments.  Income and Expenditure 
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 


 Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to 


the General Fund 


Adjustments 
between Funding 
and Accounting 


Basis – please refer to 


Note 8 for further 
information 


Net Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive 


Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 1,982 38 2,020 


Chief Constable’s Office 2,015 153 2,168 


Central Budgeting/Financing 5,379 (2,945) 2,434 


Resources Directorate 8,141 887 9,028 


Legal and Compliance Directorate 1,758 126 1,884 


Finance Directorate 5,751 338 6,089 


Neighbourhoods 47,544 6,529 54,073 


Investigations 22,883 2,616 25,499 


Scientific Support 1,491 87 1,578 


Criminal Justice 1,109 110 1,219 


Professional Standards 1,021 110 1,131 


Staff Associations 190 22 212 


Holding Accounts/Self funded areas 80 0 80 


Exceptional items -    


Non-current assets revaluation 0 1,008 1,008 


PFI Contract Termination 0 0 0 


Icelandic Banks impairment 0 0 0 


NET COST OF SERVICES 99,344 9,079 108,423 


Other Income and Expenditure (93,341) 20,513 (72,828) 


SURPLUS OR DEFICIT (Before Reserve Transfers) 6,003 29,592 35,595 


Transfers from Earmarked Reserves (6,003)   


SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 0   


Opening General Fund Balance as at 1
st
 April  2016 (4,500)   


Less Deficit on General Fund Balance in Year 0   


Closing General Fund Balance as at March 2017 (4,500)   
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2015/16 


 Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to the 


General Fund 


Adjustments 
between Funding 
and Accounting 


Basis– please refer to 


Note 8 for further 
information 


Net Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income 


and Expenditure 
Statement 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 999 6 1,005 


Chief Constable’s Office 1,590 170 1,760 


Central Budgeting/Financing 15,823 (10,730) 5,093 


Resources Directorate 8,192 1,147 9,339 


Legal and Compliance Directorate 1,747 121 1,868 


Finance Directorate 5,343 108 5,451 


Neighbourhoods 50,338 8,296 58,634 


Investigations 16,554 2,491 19,045 


Scientific Support 1,553 91 1,644 


Criminal Justice 957 133 1,090 


Professional Standards 927 
 


127 
1,054 


Staff Associations 226 31 257 


Holding Accounts/Self funded areas 174 (70) 104 


Exceptional items -    


Non-current assets revaluation 0 (34) (34) 


PFI Contract Termination 1,469 0 1,469 


Icelandic Banks impairment (40) 0 (40) 


NET COST OF SERVICES 105,852 1,887 107,739 


Other Income and Expenditure (93,332) 20,921 (72,411) 


SURPLUS OR DEFICIT (Before Reserve Transfers) 12,520 22,808 35,328 


Transfers from Earmarked Reserves (12,520)   


SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 0   


Opening General Fund Balance as at 1
st
 April 2015 (4,500)   


Less Deficit on General Fund Balance in Year 0   


Closing General Fund Balance as at March 2016 (4,500)   
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2016/17 


This Statement has been completed in accordance with the new reporting requirements introduced by 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. 


Group  Commissioner 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


2,993 (973) 2,020 
Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 


 
6,139 (4,119) 2,020 


2,289 (121) 2,168 Chief Constable’s Office  0 (121) (121) 


6,694 (4,260) 2,434 
Central 
Budgeting/Financing 


 
0 (4,260) (4,260) 


9,516 (488) 9,028 Resources Directorate  0 (488) (488) 


2,085 (201) 1,884 
Legal and Compliance 
Directorate 


 
0 (201) (201) 


6,345 (256) 6,089 Finance Directorate  0 (256) (256) 


54,644 (571) 54,073 Neighbourhoods  648 (571) 77 


25,710 (211) 25,499 Investigations  0 (211) (211) 


1,578 0 1,578 Scientific Support  0 0 0 


1,310 (91) 1,219 Criminal Justice  0 (91) (91) 


1,134 (3) 1,131 Professional Standards  0 (3) (3) 


212 0 212 Staff Associations  0 0 0 


6,460 (6,380) 80 
Holding Accounts/Self 
funded areas 


 
0 (6,380) (6,380) 


   Exceptional items -      


1,008 0 1,008 
Non-current assets 
revaluation 


 
1,008 0 1,008 


121,978 (13,555) 108,423 Cost of Services  7,795 (16,701) (8,906) 


0 (14,345) (14,345) 
Other operating 
income/expenditure 


13 
0 (14,345) (14,345) 


36,781 (1,513) 35,268 
Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 


14 
868 (1,513) (645) 


0 (93,751) (93,751) 
Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 


15 
0 (93,751) (93,751) 


0 0 0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
153,242 0 153,242 


158,759 (123,164) 35,595 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
161,905 (126,310) 35,595 


  (7,742) 
Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 


 
 


 
(7,742) 


  271,601 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on 
pension assets/liabilities 


 
 


 
178 


  0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
  271,423 


  263,859 
Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
263,859 


  299,454 
 Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
299,454 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2015/16 (Restated) 


The 2015/16 Statement has been restated to reflect the new reporting requirements introduced by the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. 


Group  Commissioner 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


2,344 (1,339) 1,005 
Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 


 
5,393 (4,388) 1,005 


1,783 (23) 1,760 Chief Constable’s Office  0 (23) (23) 


7,645 (2,552) 5,093 
Central 
Budgeting/Financing 


 
0 (2,552) (2,552) 


9,761 (422) 9,339 Resources Directorate  0 (422) (422) 


2,036 (168) 1,868 
Legal and Compliance 
Directorate 


 
0 (168) (168) 


5,676 (225) 5,451 Finance Directorate  0 (225) (225) 


60,059 (1,425) 58,634 Neighbourhoods  638 (1,425) (787) 


19,383 (338) 19,045 Investigations  0 (338) (338) 


1,650 (6) 1,644 Scientific Support  0 (6) (6) 


1,512 (422) 1,090 Criminal Justice  0 (422) (422) 


1,057 (3) 1,054 Professional Standards  0 (3) (3) 


257 0 257 Staff Associations  0 0 0 


4,030 (3,926) 104 
Holding Accounts/Self 
funded areas 


 
0 (3,926) (3,926) 


   Exceptional items -      


(34) 0 (34) 
Non-current assets 
revaluation 


 
(34) 0 (34) 


1,469 0 1,469 PFI Contract Termination  1,469 0 1,469 


(40) 0 (40) 
 Icelandic Banks 
impairment 


 
(40) 0 (40) 


118,588 (10,849) 107,739 Cost of Services  7,426 (13,898) (6,472) 


0 (11,806) (11,806) 
Other operating 
income/expenditure 


13 
0 (11,806) (11,806) 


34,622 (1,275) 33,347 
Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 


14 
546 (1,275) (729) 


0 (93,952) (93,952) 
Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 


15 
0 (93,952) (93,952) 


0 0 0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
148,287 0 148,287 


153,210 (117,882) 35,328 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
156,259 (120,931) 35,328 


  (346) 
Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 


 
 


 
(346) 


  (66,641) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on 
pension assets/liabilities 


 
 


 
(100) 


  0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
  (66,541) 


  (66,987) 
Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
(66,987) 


  (31,659) 
 Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
(31,659) 
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Movement in Reserves Statement  


Financial Year 2016/17 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2016 carried forward 
 


4,500 9,174 18,683 0 505 32,862 13,253 59,282 205 165 (503) (1,011,819) (939,417) (906,555) 


Movement in 
reserves during 
2016/17: 


 
   


 


          


Surplus or (deficit) on 
the provision 


of services 


CIES (35,595) 0 0 0 0 (35,595) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (35,595) 


Other Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


CIES 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,742 0 0 0 0 (271,601) (263,859) (263,859) 


Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


 (35,595) 0 0 0 0 (35,595) 7,742 0 0 0 0 (271,601) (263,859) (299,454) 


Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
Regulations 


11 29,592 0 0 (1) 374 29,965 (285) (357) (114) (81) 135 (29,263) (29,965) 0 


Net 
Increase/(Decrease) 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 


 (6,003) 0 0 (1) 374 (5,630) 7,457 (357) (114) (81) 135 (300,864) (293,824) (299,454) 


Transfers to/from 
earmarked reserves 


12 6,003 (2,502) (3,500) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Increase/(Decrease) 
in 2016/17 


 
0 (2,502) (3,500) (1) 374 (5,630) 7,457 (357) (114) (81) 135 (300,864) (293,824) (299,454) 


Balance at 31
st
 March  


2017 carried forward 


 
4,500 6,671 15,183 (1) 879 27,233 20,709 58,925 91 84 (368) (1,312,684) (1,233,242) (1,206,009) 
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Financial Year 2015/16 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2015 carried forward 
 


4,500 22,849 17,528 627 45,504 13,191 50,908 0 0 (534) (1,047,283) (983,718) (938,214) 


Movement in reserves 
during 2015/16: 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Surplus or (deficit) on 
the provision 


of services 


CIES (35,328) 0 0 0 (35,328) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (35,328) 


Other Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


CIES 0 0 0 0 0 347 0 0 0 0 66,641 66,988 66,988 


Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


 (35,328) 0 0 0 (35,328) 347 0 0 0 0 66,641 66,988 31,659 


Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
Regulations 


8 22,808 0 0 (122) 22,686 (285) 8,374 205 165 31 (31,177) (22,686) 0 


Net 
Increase/(Decrease) 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 


 (12,520) 0 0 (122) (12,642) 62 8,374 205 165 31 35,464 44,301 31,659 


Transfers to/from 
earmarked reserves 


 12,520 (13,675) 1,155 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Increase/(Decrease) in 
2015/16 


 
0 (13,675) 1,155 (122) (12,642) 62 8,374 205 165 31 35.464 44,301 31,659 


Balance at 31
st
 March  


2016 carried forward 


 
4,500 9,174 18,683 505 32,862 13,253 59,282 205 165 (503) (1,011,819) (939,417) (906,555) 
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Balance Sheet  


 


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


 Note Group 
2016/17 


Commissioner 
2016/17 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


66,655 66,655 
Property, plant & 
equipment 


16 
73,729 73,729 


4,579 4,579 Investment property 17 4,232 4,232 


260 260 Intangible assets 19 177 177 


1,040 1,040 Surplus Assets  1,497 1,497 


0 0 Assets held for sale 25 0 0 


0 0 Long term investments  6,580 6,580 


91 91 Long term debtors 20 23 23 


72,625 72,625 Long term assets  86,238 86,238 


36,220 36,220 Short term investments 21 22,341 22,341 


368 0 Inventories 22 429 0 


6,489 6,149 Short term debtors 23 7,126 6,835 


1,921 1,921 Cash and cash 
equivalents 


24 2,209 2,209 


0 708 Intra-group transfer  0 720 


44,998 44,998 Current assets  32,105 32,105 


(157) (157) Short term borrowing 21 (172) (172) 


(8,078) (2,471) Short term creditors 26 (7,731) (2,551) 


(939) (939) Provisions 27 (782) (782) 


0 (5,607) Intra - group transfer  0 (5,180) 


(9,174) (9,174) Current liabilities  (8,685) (8,685) 


0 (1,011,919) Long term creditors  0 (1,312,506) 


(2,312) (2,312) Long term borrowing 21 (2,138) (2,138) 


(1,011,819) 100 Other long term 
liabilities 


21 (1,312,684) (178) 


(873) (873) Provisions 27 (845) (845) 


(1,015,004) (1,015,004) Long term liabilities  (1,315,667) (1,315,667) 


(906,555) (906,555) Net assets/liabilities  (1,206,009) (1,206,009) 


(32,862) (32,862) Usable reserves 28 (27,233) (27,233) 


939,417 939,417 Unusable reserves 29 1,233,242 1,233,242 


906,555 906,555 Total reserves  1,206,009 1,206,009 
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Cash Flow Statement  


 


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


 Note Group 
2016/17 


Commissioner 
2016/17 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


35,328 35,328 Net (surplus) or deficit on 
the provision of services 


 35,595 35,595 


(33,753) (33,753) Adjustments to net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of 
services for non-cash 
movements 


 (32,243) (32,243) 


(317) (317) Adjustments for items 
included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of 
services that are investing 
and financing activities 


 (426) (426) 


1,258 1,258 Net cash flows from 
Operating Activities 


30 2,926 2,926 


2,109 2,109 Investing Activities 31 (4,341) (4,341) 


1,139 1,139 Financing Activities 32 1,127 1,127 


4,506 4,506 Net increase or decrease in 
cash and cash equivalents 


 (288) (288) 


6,427 6,427 Cash and cash equivalents 
at the beginning of the 
reporting period 


 1,921 1,921 


1,921 1,921 Cash and cash equivalents 
at the end of the reporting 
period 


24 2,209 2,209 
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Police Pension Fund  


 


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


Fund Account Group 
2016/17 


Commissioner 
2016/17 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Contributions receivable:   


(10,348) 0  Employer contributions (10,236) 0 


(168) 0  Other income (373) 0 


(5,865) 0 Officers’ contributions (5,770) 0 


(16,381) 0  (16,379) 0 


(772) 0 Transfers in from other pension funds 78 0 


  Benefits payable:   


22,557 0  Pensions 23,273 0 


7,281 0  Commutations and lump sum 
retirement benefits 


7,286 0 


29,066 0  30,637 0 


  Payments to and on account of 
leavers: 


  


(476) 0  Transfers out to other 
pension funds 


(58) 0 


0 0  Refunds of contributions 5 0 


319 0  Other expenditure 20 0 


(157) 0  (33) 0 


12,528 (12,528) Net amount payable for the year 14,225 (14,225) 


(12,528) 12,528 Additional contribution from the 
Police Fund (re Home Office Grant) 


(14,225) 14,225 


0 0  0 0 


 


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


Net Assets Statement Group 
2016/17 


Commissioner 
2016/17 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000  


  Current Assets   


49 0 Deficit due  0 0 


49 0  0 0 


     


  Current Liabilities    


(49) 0 Surplus owed 0 0 


(49) 0  0 0 


     


0 0  0 0 
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Funding Shortfall to be met by Police Fund 


Employer Police Officer Pension scheme contributions reduced from 24.2% to 21.3%. 
The difference of 2.9% has been retained by the exchequer which represents the funding 
shortfall to be met by Police Fund. 
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Notes to the Accounts 


 


1. Accounting policies 
 
 


General Principles  
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Group’s transactions for the 2016/17 
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2017. The Commissioner is 
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts for himself and the Group by the 
Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended), which require them to be 
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17, supported by International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments.  
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors  
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give 
rise to a prior period adjustment.  
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of 
transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or financial 
performance of the Group. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless 
stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior 
period as if the new policy had always been applied.  
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments 
are made or received. In particular:  


 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Group.  


 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Group can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Group. 


 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 


 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) 
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when 
payments are made. 


 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
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relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 


 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. 
Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge 
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 


 
Overheads and Support Services  
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in 
accordance with the Group’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 
  
Exceptional Items  
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(CIES) or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an 
understanding of the financial performance of the Group.  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date  
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:  
 


 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.  


 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of 
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of 
the events and their estimated financial effect.  


 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts.  
 
Property, plant and equipment  
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and 
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis. Expenditure that maintains but does not 
add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. 
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it incurred.  
 
Expenditure falling below a de-minimis level of £6,000 per item is treated as Revenue 
and charged when it is incurred.   
 
Assets are initially measured at cost and are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the 
following measurement bases:  


 Assets under construction – depreciated historical cost;  


 Operational Buildings – Depreciated Replacement Cost; 


 Surplus assets / Assets Held For Sale – Fair value – reviewed annually;  


 Investment Properties – fair value (reviewed annually every five years);  


 All other assets – fair value (revalued every five years), determined as the amount that 
would be paid for the asset in its existing use.  


 
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains. The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 
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1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date 
have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to 
be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than 
the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.  
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  
 


 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to 
the amount of the accumulated gains).  


 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the 
CIES.  


 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  The useful 
economic lives and residual value of assets are summarised in the Property, Plant and 
Equipment note.   
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately.  
 
The Group has applied the following de-minimis limits, below which, the component is 
not separately quantified:  
 


Life of 
component 
(years) 


0-
10 


10-
15 


15-
20 


20-
30 


30-
40 


Over 
40  


De-minimis 
(£’000) 


50 100 200 300 750 1,000 


 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the 
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Surplus Assets 
Surplus assets are those that are not being actively used in the business (such as vacant 
properties) and that cannot be classed as “assets held for sale”.  Surplus assets will be 
measured at fair value at each reporting date, based on the amount at which the asset 
could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Gains and losses 
on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the CIES. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to 
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sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.  
Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged 
on Assets Held for Sale.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. 
The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts reserve, and 
can only be used for new capital investment (or set aside to reduce the Group’s 
underlying need to borrow – the capital financing requirement).  
 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets  
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts 
to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  
Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.  
Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written 
off. 
  
Investment property  
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at 
fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The same treatment 
is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Intangible assets  
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised 
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Group. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Group meets this criterion, and they 
are therefore carried at amortised cost.  
 
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service  
The Group is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in his overall borrowing requirement. 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced 
by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with 
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two.  
 
 
Financial Instruments  
 
Financial Liabilities  
These are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual 
charges to the Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
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instrument. The amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal plus 
accrued interest.  
 
Financial Assets  
Loans and Receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument. For most of the loans that the Group has made, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable plus 
accrued interest.    
 
Foreign currency translation  
Where the Group has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transaction was effective.  
 
Inventories  
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 2 states that Inventories should be measured at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. The policy does not therefore comply with IAS 2 but the 
difference is not material.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments held at the balance sheet date 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash on the balance sheet date and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic 
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  
 
Reserves  
Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions are considered 
as reserves.  Revenue reserves are available to finance expenditure.  Certain capital 
reserves created as a result of the capital accounting scheme are not available to meet 
current expenditure and include: 


 


 Revaluation Reserve which records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets held by 
the Group arising from increases in value, to the extent that these gains have not 
been consumed by subsequent downward movements in value; 


 


 Capital Adjustment Account, which provides a balancing mechanism between the 
different rates at which assets are depreciated and are financed through the capital 
controls system, by accumulating: 
o On the debit side – the write-down of the historical cost of fixed assets as they are 


consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on disposal; 
o On the credit side – the resources that have been set aside to finance capital 


expenditure. 
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Collaborative Arrangements 
CIPFA issued new guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration” applicable for the 2014/15 
financial year onwards. This required the Commissioner and Force to assess all 
collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint operations or joint ventures 
and account for their fair share of expenditure, income, assets and liabilities in their 
individual accounts.  Further details can be found under the Collaborative Arrangements 
note. 
 
Employee benefits  
Benefits Payable During Employment  
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are 
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the employees render 
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (including time off in lieu 
and flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which 
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at salary 
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee 
takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday 
absence occurs.  
 
Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Commissioner 
and Chief Constable to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement 
date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group 
to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations 
are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits 
for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end.  
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to one of two separate 
pension schemes relevant to them: 


 Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension Fund  


 Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire County 
Council.  


Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Group.  
This Police Officer Pension scheme is “unfunded” which means that no investment 
assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, and therefore no 
provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is included in the balance 
sheet. The liabilities of the Local Government Scheme that are attributable to the Group 
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method 
– i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates etc. and projections of earnings for current employees.  
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Discretionary Benefits 
The Commissioner and Chief Constable also have restricted powers to make 
discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any 
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in 
the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as 
are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
 
Government grants and contributions  
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is 
reasonable assurance that:  
 


 The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and  


 The grants or contributions will be received.  
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the 
grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue 
grants and all capital grants) in the CIES.  
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to 
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it 
has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they 
have been applied to fund capital expenditure.  
 
Leases  
The rentals payable/receivable are charged to the CIES on an accruals basis. 
 
Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts  
PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for 
making available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services 
passes to the PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to control the assets that are 
provided under its PFI scheme, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment 
will pass to the Group at the end of the contract for no additional charge, the Group 
carries the assets used under the contract on its Balance Sheet as part of property, plant 
and equipment.  
The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the 
property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts 
due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment. 
Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in 
the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group.  
The amounts payable to the PFI operator each year are analysed into five elements:  


 


 Fair value of the services received during the year; 


 Finance cost; 


 Contingent rent;  


 Payment towards liability;  


 Lifecycle replacement costs. 
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However during the year the Group’s PFI was terminated.  Further details on the 
accounting treatment of the termination of the PFI and subsequent recognition of the 
asset in the accounts is provided under the “Private Finance initiatives and similar 
contracts” note.  
 
Value Added Tax (VAT)  
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable 
from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs by the Group. VAT receivable is excluded 
from income. 


 
2. Previous period adjustments 


 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
A  new statement has been introduced by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows 
how annual expenditure is used and funded by the Group from resources (government 
grants, rents and council tax) in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by 
the Group in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  It also shows how 
this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Group’s 
Directorates/Services/Departments. A requirement of the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 was to also include this new 
statement for the 2015/16 Comparative year. 
 
Note 16 – Property Plant and Equipment 
 
Following the reclassification of Land and Buildings to a surplus asset in 2015/16 an 
error was made regarding the split between land and buildings. The total amount of 
this was £50k. An adjustment to the valuation between land and buildings has been 
made to the March 2016 valuation.This has had no effect on the total value of Fixed 
Assets. 
 
Buildings 


 
Previous Amount 


£’000 
 Restated Amount 


£’000 
Difference 


£’000 


57,149 Net Book Value at 1st April 2015 57,149 0 


55,741 Net Book Value at 31st March 2016 55,791 50 


 


Land 


 


Previous Amount 
£’000 


 
Restated Amount 


£’000 
Difference 


£’000 


4,370 Net Book Value at 1st April 2015 4,370 0 


4,370 Net Book Value at 31st March 2016 4,320 (50) 


 


An issue has been identified regarding a note to the accounts whereby the historic 
gross book value of vehicles and plant included in a note have not been reduced as 
required on disposal.  


This has had no impact on the Balance Sheet carrying value. This has been  restated 
for 2015/16.  
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The impact of this is illustrated below:- 


 


Previous Amount 


£’000 


Vehicles Restated Amount 


£’000 


Difference 


£’000 


 


8,176 Cost or Valuation at 1st April 2015 8,176 0 


1,356 Additions 1,356 0 


(870) Derecognition – disposals (2,026) (1,156) 


(20) Assets reclassified (20) 0 


8,642 Cost or Valuation at 31st March 2016 7,486 (1,156) 


(5,328) Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 1st April 2015 (5,328) 0 


(963) Depreciation Charge (963) 0 


836 Derecognition - disposals 1,992 1,156 


(5,455) Accumulated Depreciation and impairment at 31st March 2016 (4,299) 1,156 


3,187 Net Book value at 31st March 2016 3,187 0 


 


3. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 


The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information relating to 
the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new accounting standard 
that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.  The following changes will be 
required from 1 April 2017: 


 


 Amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme transaction costs: 


- the total amount of transaction costs of all major asset classes, including an 
explanation to enable users to understand the nature of the transaction costs and 
how they arise for different types of investment; 


 


 Amendment to the reporting of investment concentration 


- Details of any single investment exceeding 5% of the net assets available for 
benefits 
 
 


In the Financial Statements for 2017/18, the effect of the changes will be assessed and 
where necessary, the comparative figures restated, however, it is anticipated that the 
changes will not have a material impact. 


 


4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies  


In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Commissioner has had to make 
certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about 
future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 


 Future funding position 


There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys. However, the Commissioner has determined that 
this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets might be 
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.  
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 Undercover Policing Inquiry 


On 12 March 2015 the then Home Secretary established an inquiry into undercover 
policing under the Inquiries Act 2005. The purpose of this inquiry is to investigate and 
report on undercover police operations conducted by English and Welsh police forces in 
England and Wales since 1968. The inquiry will examine the contribution undercover 
policing has made to tackling crime, how it was and is supervised and regulated, and its 
effect on individuals involved – both police officers and others who came into contact 
with them. 


The work of the Inquiry ranges across the full scope of undercover policing work and will 
look at the work of the Special Demonstration Squad, the National Public Order 
Intelligence Unit and police forces across England and Wales. The inquiry will also 
examine whether people may have been wrongly convicted in cases involving 
undercover police officers, and refer any such cases to a separate panel for 
consideration. 


At this stage, the inquiry is not far enough progressed to establish whether or not the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys will have a liability.  


 Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) 


MMI is a former insurer of public bodies which ceased trading in 1992.  At the time that 
the company ceased trading, a number of health related claims were outstanding and in 
common with many other local authorities, the Authority and subsequently the 
Commissioner, is in a scheme of arrangement to meet all outstanding claims.  This 
scheme is still in place and its claim Director originally advised that the maximum liability 
to fall on the Commissioner would be £608,900. 


The Scheme Administrator wrote to the Commissioner on the 13
th
 May 2013, stating that 


following the triggering of MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement, he determined that initially, a 
Levy rate of 15% would be required, and as such, an amount of £91,335 was paid in 
2013/14. A further amount of £60,890 was paid in 2015/16 at a levy rate of 10%. Despite 
correspondence suggesting that the provision in the accounts can be reduced, a prudent 
approach has been adopted and the Commissioner has included a long-term provision of 
£456,675 in the 2016/17 accounts.  This is made up of the maximum liability amount of 
£608,900, less the two payments that have been made.  


 Police Pension Legal Challenge - Career Average Revalued Earnings.  


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the Home 
Office, initially had 14 claims lodged against them with the Central London Employment 
Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising from the 
Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.  Claims of unlawful 
discrimination have also been made in relation to the changes to the Judiciary and 
Firefighters Pension regulations. In the case of the Judiciary claims the claimants were 
successful and in the Firefighters case the respondents were successful. Both of these 
judgements are subject to appeal, the outcome of which may determine the outcome of 
the Police claims. The Tribunal has yet to set a date for a preliminary or substantive 
Police hearing.  Legal advice suggests that there is a strong defence against the Police 
claims.  The quantum and who will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are 
partially or fully successful.  For these reasons, no provision has been made in the 
2016/17 Accounting Statements. 


 


 


 


 



http://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/March%202015/12%20March%202015/31.HOME-Undercover-policing.pdf
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5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 
made by the Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates 
are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant 
factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results 
could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Balance Sheet at 31st March 2017 for which there is a significant risk of 
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 


Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 


Property, plant 
and equipment 


Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are 
dependent on assumptions about the level of repairs and 
maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual 
assets.  The current economic climate makes it uncertain 
that the Commissioner will be able to sustain his current 
spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt 
the useful lives assigned to assets. 


Estimates of remaining useful life were obtained in 16/17 
and depreciation calculations rely on these estimations. 
The Commissioner has used depreciated historical cost as 
a proxy for furniture, plant and equipment. 


If the useful life of assets is reduced, 
depreciation increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets falls. 


It is estimated that the total annual 
depreciation charge for buildings would 
increase by £68k if the useful life of each 
building was reduced by 1 year. 


 


Accumulated 
Absences Fund 


In determining the liability in respect of accumulated 
absences, information in respect of annual leave and flexi 
leave was obtained from the system.  


A sampling approach was adopted in order to arrive at the 
liability. A representative sample of employees was 
selected and electronic records obtained detailing the 
number of days carried forward from the previous year. 
The average number of days carried forward was used to 
calculate the required liability, based on the number of 
employees at the previous year end and the average 
salary in the following financial year, adjusted to include 
employer’s national insurance and pension contributions. 


The largest category of accumulated 
absences at the 31st March 2017 is police 
officer annual leave. If the average number of 
days carried forward from the previous year 
was increased by one day per officer, this 
would increase the liability by approximately 
£160k. 


Insurance 
Provision 


The Commissioner has provided £388k for insurance 
claims incurred at the 31st March which are likely to be 
paid. The assessment is made based on the likely 
settlement and the probability of a known claim against the 
Commissioner being successful. 


The average amount provided per claim 
amounts to £12.5k with the maximum 
exposure per claim being £50k. Any amount 
above £50k is met by the Commissioner’s 
insurance company. 


Pensions liability Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a 
number of complex judgements relating to the discount 
rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of 
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide expert advice 
about the assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net pensions liability of 
changes in individual assumptions can be 
measured.  For instance, an increase of 0.1% 
in pay award for the police officer pension 
scheme would result in an increase to the 
pension liability of £1.080 million. 


Ill Health 
Retirement 
Provision 


The Commissioner has provided £185k for three Officers 
who are on long term sick leave as at 31


st
 March where it 


is ‘probable’ or ‘more likely than not’ that they will retire 
due to ill heatlh. 


If the number of officers retiring due to ill 
health was one less than anticipated, the 
liability would be approximately £62k less. 


 


6. Material items of income and expense 


The following are included as material exceptional items, included on the face of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Revaluation and Impairment of non-current assets  
The Commissioner carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant 
and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five 
years. Valuations of land and buildings are carried out in accordance with the 
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. A full revaluation of all land and buildings was 
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undertaken in 2016/17.  The net effect of these revaluations was an increase in valuation 
of £6.8m.  
 
The accounting entries in respect of the revaluations are as follows:  
 


  
2016/17 


£'000 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 


Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (Exceptional Item) -948 


Movement In Reserves Statement  


Surplus/Deficit on Revaluation 7,748 


Balance Sheet  


Land and Buildings 6,800 


Capital Adjustment Account 948 


Revaluation Reserve -7748 


 
An additional £60k has been credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to account for the reclassification of a surplus asset to operational.  
 


7. Events after the Balance Sheet Date  


There are no events after the balance sheet date that would affect the Group’s financial 
position for 2016/17. 
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8. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis  


This is an additional note which reflects a key accounting change introduced by the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.  The 
note presents further detail in support of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and 
provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to 
the General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 


 


2016/17 


 


ADJUSTMENTS FROM GENERAL 
FUND TO ARRIVE AT THE 


COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND 
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 


AMOUNTS 


Adjustments for 
Capital Purposes 


(Note 1) 


Net change for 
the Pensions 
Adjustments 


(Note 2) 


Other 
Differences 


(Note 3) 


Total 
Adjustments 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner 


0 38 0 38 


Chief Constable’s Office 65 88 0 153 


Central Budgeting/Financing (3,394) 585 (136) (2,945) 


Resources Directorate 275 289 323 887 


Legal and Compliance Directorate 57 69 0 126 


Finance Directorate 183 155 0 338 


Neighbourhoods 2,255 4,274 0 6,529 


Investigations 766 1,850 0 2,616 


Scientific Support 47 40 0 87 


Criminal Justice 37 73 0 110 


Professional Standards 34 76 0 110 


Staff Associations 6 16 0 22 


Holding Accounts/Self funded areas 0 0 0 0 


Exceptional items -     


Non-current assets revaluation 1,008 0 0 1,008 


PFI Contract Termination 0 0 0 0 


Icelandic Banks impairment 0 0 0 0 


NET COST OF SERVICES 1,339 7,553 187 9,079 


Other Income and Expenditure (957) 21,711 (241) 20,513 


SURPLUS OR DEFICIT 382 29,264 (54) 29,592 
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2015/16 


 


ADJUSTMENTS FROM GENERAL 
FUND TO ARRIVE AT THE 


COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND 
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 


AMOUNTS 


Adjustments for 
Capital Purposes 


(Note 1) 


Net change for 
the Pensions 
Adjustments 


(Note 2) 


Other 
Differences 


(Note 3) 


Total 
Adjustments 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner 


(41) 47 0 6 


Chief Constable’s Office 51 119 0 170 


Central Budgeting/Financing (12,101) 727 644 (10,730) 


Resources Directorate 261 356 530 1,147 


Legal and Compliance Directorate 54 67 0 121 


Finance Directorate (19) 127 0 108 


Neighbourhoods 2,328 5,968 0 8,296 


Investigations 557 1,934 0 2,491 


Scientific Support 48 43 0 91 


Criminal Justice 32 101 0 133 


Professional Standards 31 96 0 127 


Staff Associations 7 24 0 31 


Holding Accounts/Self funded areas (70) 0 0 (70) 


Exceptional items -     


Non-current assets revaluation (34) 0 0 (34) 


PFI Contract Termination 0 0 0 0 


Icelandic Banks impairment 0 0 0 0 


NET COST OF SERVICES (8,896) 9,609 1,174 1,887 


Other Income and Expenditure 723 21,568 (1,370) 20,921 


SURPLUS OR DEFICIT (8,173) 31,177 (196) 22,808 


 


Note 1 - Adjustments for Capital Purposes 


 For Services – adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and losses.  
Statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other 
revenue contributions are deducted from services as these are not chargeable under 
generally accepted accounting practices. Capital grants are adjusted for income not 
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.    


 For Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income 
on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 


Note 2 -  Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments 


Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS19 Employee 
Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 
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 For Services – this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made 
by the Group as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and 
past service costs. 


 For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined 
benefit liability is charged to the CIES. 


 For Other Operating income and expenditure – the Home Office Pensions ‘Top Up ‘ 
Grant is credited to the CIES. 


Note 3 – Other Differences 


Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 


 For Services – adjusted by the amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different 
from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements.  


 For Financing and investment income and expenditure – adjusted by the amount by 
which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
in relation to Financial Instruments differ from finance costs chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements. 


 A number of presentational adjustments have also been made between Services and 
Other Income and Expenditure (i.e. above and below the line). Overall, these 
adjustments have a nil effect. 


 


9. Segmental Income  


This note is a new requirement in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.  The note provides a segmental 
analysis of significant revenues received from from external customers:  


 2015/16 2016/17 


 Income from 
Services 


Income from 
Services 


 £’000 £’000 


Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (696) (292) 


Chief Constable’s Office 0 0 


Central Budgeting/Financing 0 (750) 


Resources Directorate (1,170) (1,067) 


Legal and Compliance Directorate (160) (181) 


Finance Directorate (149) (191) 


Neighbourhoods 0 0 


Investigations 0 0 


Scientific Support 0 0 


Criminal Justice (362) (321) 


Professional Standards 0 0 


Staff Associations 0 0 


Holding Accounts/Self funded areas 0 0 


Total (significant) revenues received from External 
Customers. 


(2,537) (2,802) 
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10. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 


This note is an additional requirement in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and shows how the Group’s 
expenditure and income is analysed: 


 


 
2015/16 2016/17 


 £’000 £’000 


EXPENDITURE   


Employee  Costs 87,972 92,135 


Pension Current Service Cost 7,834 5,945 


Interest Cover 34,097 35,936 


Premises Costs 3,478 3,869 


Transport Costs 2,010 1,945 


Supplies and Services 8,556 8,727 


Agency and Contracted Services 3,856 4,912 


   


Exceptional Items:   


Non-Current Asset Revaluations (34) 1,008 


PFI Termination 1,469 0 


Icelandic Bank Impairments (40) 0 


   


Capital Financing Costs (165) (295) 


Depreciation and amortisation 3,688 3,795 


Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current 
assets 


723 (120) 


Interest payments 325 224 


Total Expenditure 153,769 158,081 


 


 
2015/16 2016/17 


 £’000 £’000 


INCOME   


Fees, Charges & Other Income (5,501) (7,213) 


Government Grants & Contributions (69,907) (71,943) 


Income from Council Tax (43,033) (43,330) 


Total Income (118,441) (122,486) 


SURPLUS/DEFICIT ON PROVISION 
OF SERVICES 


35,328 35,595 


 


11. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 


This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Group/Commissioner in the year in accordance with proper 
accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being 
available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
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Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital Adjustment Account 


    
 


 
       


Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the CIES: 


            


Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 


3,712 0 0 3,712 (285) (3,427) 0 0 0 0 (3,712) 0 


Revaluation losses on property, plant 
and equipment 1,008 0 0 1,008 0 (1,008) 0 0 0 0 (1,008) 0 


Amortisation of intangible assets 83 0 0 83 0 (83) 0 0 0 0 (83) 0 


Capital grants and contributions 
applied (470) 0 0 (470) 0 470 0 0 0 0 470 0 


Movement in the Donated Assets 
Account 


(35) 0 0 (35) 0 35 0 0 0 0 35 0 


Amounts of non-current assets 
written off on disposal or sale as part 
of the gain/loss on disposal to the 
CIES 


92 0 0 92 0 (92) 0 0 0 0 (92) 0 


Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the CIES: 


            


Capital expenditure charged against 
the General Fund 


(3,544) 0 0 (3,544) 0 3,544 0 0 0 0 3,544 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital grants unapplied 
account 


            


Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to CIES 


(426) 426  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Application of grants to capital 
financing transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account 


0 (52)  (52) 0 52 0 0 0 0 52 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital receipts reserve 


            


Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 


(37) 0 151 114 0 0 (114) 0 0 0 (114) 0 


Use of Capital receipts reserve to 
finance new capital expenditure 


0 0 (152) (152) 0 152 0 0 0 0 152 0 


Adjustments involving the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account 


            


Amount by which finance costs 
charged to the CIES are different 
from finance costs chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 


81 0 0 81 0 0 0 (81) 0 0 (81) 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Pensions reserve 


            


Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the CIES 


(14,225) 0 0 (14,225) 0 0 0 0 0 14,225 14,225 0 


Employer’s pensions contributions 
and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 


43,488 0 0 43,488 0 0 0 0 0 (43,488) (43,488) 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Accumulated balances 
account 


            


Amount by which officer 
remuneration charged  to the CIES 
on an accruals basis is different from 
remuneration chargeable in the year 
in accordance with statutory 
requirements 


(135) 0 0 (135) 0 0 0 0 135 0 135 0 


Total adjustments 29,592 374 (1) 29,965 (285) (357) (114) (81) 135 (29,263) (29,965) 0 
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12. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 


This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in earmarked 
reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back 
from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2016/17. 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Revenue Reserves – Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys 


28 8,869 0 (2,823) 337 6,383 


Revenue Reserves – ‘Go Safe’ * 28 305 0 (16) 0 289 


Capital Reserves – Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys  


28 18,140 0 (3,467) 0 14,673 


Capital Reserves – ‘Go Safe’ * 28 543 0 (33) 0 510 


Total  27,857 0 (6,339) 337 21,855 


*Reserves held on behalf of the ‘Go Safe’ Partnership.  Originally transferred from Flintshire County Council and 


adjusted for any surplus/deficit on activities in the year. Please refer to Note 33 ‘Agency Services’ for further 
information 


    


13. Other operating expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure that cannot reasonably be 
allocated or apportioned to services. 


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 


2015/16 


 Group 
2016/17 


Commissioner 


2016/17 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


723 723 (Gain)/Loss on the disposal of non-current assets (120) (120) 


(12,529) (12,529) Home Office Police Officers Pensions top-up grant (14,225) (14,225) 


(11,806) (11,806) Total (14,345) (14,345) 


 


14. Financing and investment income and expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from involvement in 
financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest. 


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 


2015/16 


 Note Group 
2016/17 


Commissioner 


2016/17 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


325 325 Interest payable and similar charges 21 224 224 


34,097 21 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 44 35,936 23 


0 0 
Other Investment Expenditure – Helicopter 


Deferred Capital Receipt 
28 114 114 


(218) (218) Interest receivable and similar income 21 (222) (222) 


(617) (617) 
Income and expenditure in relation to investment 


properties and changes in their fair value 
17 (323) (323) 


(75) (75) Specific capital grants available during the year 37 (542) (542) 


(165) (165) 
Loss on revaluation (available for sale financial 


instruments) 
21 81 81 


33,347 (729) Total  35,268 (645) 
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15. Taxation and non-specific grant incomes 


This item consolidates all the grants and contributions receivable that cannot be 
identified to particular service expenditure.  


Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 


2015/16 


 Note Group 2016/17 Commissioner 


2016/17 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


(43,033) (43,033) Council tax income  (43,330) (43,330) 


(11,362) (11,362) National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)  (8,277) (8,277) 


(38,937) (38,937) Non ring fenced government grants 37 (41,734) (41,734) 


(620) (620) Capital grants and contributions 37 (410) (410) 


(93,952) (93,952) Total  (93,751) (93,751) 
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16. Property, plant and equipment 


Movement on balances in financial year 2016/17: 
 


 Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties  
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2016   4,320 58,458 192   0 7,486 20,218 3,101 320 1,843 1,040 0 584 97,562 


Additions   0 1,131 122 0 1,289 1,526 0 0 0 186 0 0 4,254 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


  0 7,562 0 0 0 0 4 0 30 152 0 0 7,748 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


  (75) (536) 0 0 0 0 (88) 0 (157) (92) 0 0 (948) 


Derecognition – disposals   0 0 0 0 (1,214) (2,500) 0 0 0 0 0 (314) (4,028) 


Other movements in cost or valuation  25 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (115) 0 0 (68) 


Assets reclassified   (75) (116) 0 0 0 0 0 (135) 0 326 0 0 0 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on revaluation   0 (4,217) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4,217) 


At 31st March 2017  4,195 62,304 314 0 7,561 19,244 3,017 185 1,716 1,497 0 270 100,303 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2016 


  0 (2,667) (24) 0 (4,299) (17,029) (500) (185) 0 0 0 (324) (25,028) 


Depreciation charge   0 (1,265) (14) 0 (1,119) (1,027) 0 0 0 0 0 (83) (3,508) 


Depreciation written out to Revaluation Reserve   0 (285) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (285) 


Write off of accumulated depreciation on revaluation  0 4,217 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,217 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Derecognition disposals  0 0 0 0 1,183 2,439 0 0 0 0 0 314 3,936 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in the 
Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of Services 


  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 31
st


 
March 2017 


  0 0 (38) 0 (4,235) (15,617) (500) (185) 0 0 0 (93) (20,668) 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2017   4,195 62,304 276 0 3,326 3,627 2,517 0 1,716 1,497 0 177 79,635 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2016   4,320 55,791 168 0 3,187 3,189 2,601 135 1,843 1,040 0 260 72,534 
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Movement on balances in financial year 2015/16: 
 


 Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties  
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2015:   4,370 58,468 172 3,253 8,176 19,139 2,992 480 1,793 0 430 365 99,638 


Additions   0  168 0 98 1,356 1,079 0 0 0 0 0 219 2,920 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


   0 (69) 0 0 0 0 78 0 255 13 0 0 277 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 31 10 0 63 0 0 104 


Derecognition – disposals    0 0 0 (3,351) (2,026) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,377) 


Assets reclassified    (50) (109) 20 0 (20) 0 0 (170) (205) 964 (430) 0 0 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on revaluation    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


At 31st March 2016  4,320 58,458 192 
0 
 


7,486 20,218 3,101 320 1,843 1,040 0 584 97,562 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2015 


  0 (1,319) (10) (2,286) (5,328) (15,784) (500) (185) 0 0 0 (314) (25,726) 


Depreciation charge    0 (1,063) (14) (108) (963) (1,245) 0 0 0 0 0 (10) (3,403) 


Depreciation written out to Revaluation Reserve   0  (285) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (285) 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Derecognition disposals  0 0 0 2,394 1,992 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,386 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in the 
Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of Services 


  0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 31
st


 
March 2016 


  0 (2,667) (24) 0 (4,299) (17,029) (500) (185) 0 0 0 (324) (25,028) 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2016   4,320 55,791 168 0 3,187 3,189 2,601 135 1,843 1,040 0 260 72,534 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2015   4,370 57,149 162 967 2,848 3,355 2,492 295 1,793 0 430 51 73,912 
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Depreciation 


 


Revaluations 


The Commissioner carries out a programme that ensures assets required to be measured at 
fair value are normally measured once every five years for each class of asset.  A full 
revaluation of Land and Bulidings was carried out by external valuers and was effective from 
31/03/17.    


Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there 
is an active second-hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 


 


 


 


 


 Depreciation 2015/16 Depreciation 2016/17 


Category of Asset Years Residual Value Charge Years Residual Value Charge 


   £’000   £’000 


Property 


 Land No Depreciation  0 No Depreciation 0 


 Operational Buildings 


 


Over Remaining Life 1,348 Over Remaining Life 1,550 


 Assets Under  Construction No Depreciation 0 No Depreciation 0 


 Investment Properties No Depreciation 0 No Depreciation 0 


Helicopter : 


 


  


 Airframe 20 Nil 79 


 


0 Nil 0 


 Main Gear box 5 Nil 21 0 Nil 0 


 Helicopter Engines 8.75 Nil 0 0 Nil 0 


 Helicopter Equipment 5 Nil 8 0 Nil 0 


Boat:       


 Hull 32 Nil 3 0 Nil 3 


 Engine 12 Nil 11 0 Nil 11 


Vehicles 


 Rapid Response / Other 3 Nil 181 0 Nil 403 


 Other 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


782 0 


 


Nil 


 


715 


Equipment 


Computer /other equipment 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


1,245 0 


 


Nil 


 


1,027 


Intangible assets 0 0 0 3 Nil 73 


Intangible assets 


 


0 0 0 5 


 


Nil 


 


10 


Total   3,678 


 


  3,792 
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Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Carried at 
historical cost: 


4,270 52,983 0 0 3,379 3,592 276 5,835 0 1,786 1,858 177 73,854 


Valued at fair 
value at: 


             


31
st
 March 2017 (75) 7,233 0 0 0 0 0 (84) 71 (127) (218) 0 6,800 


31
st
 March 2016 0 (69) 0 0 0 0 0 109 10 255 76 0 381 


31
st
 March 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


31
st
 March 2014 0 (1,202) 0 0 0 0 0 244 (25) 17 60 0 (906) 


31
st
 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (329) 0 (329) 


31
st
 March 2012 0 509 0 0 (15) 35 0 0 0 0 50 0 579 


31
st
 March 2011 0 2,288 0 0 0 0 0 (315) 16 (215) 0 0 1,774 


31
st
 March 2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


31
st
 March 2009 0 562 0 0 (37) 0 0 (3,272) (72) 0 0 0 (2,819) 


31
st
 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Total cost or 
valuation: 


4,195 62,304 0 0 3,327 3,627 276 2,517 0 1,716 1,497 177 79,334 


 


17. Investment properties 


Some of the Commissioner’s property, such as masts, is being held solely to earn rentals 
and/or for capital appreciation purposes rather than for use in administrative purposes.  


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


817 Rental income from investment property 681 


(200) 
Direct operating expenses arising from 


investment property 
(357) 


617 Net gain/(loss) 324 


 


The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment 
properties over the year: 
 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


£’000 Balance at start of year: 4,579 


4,580 Additions: 0 


0 Purchases 0 


374 Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments (212) 


 Transfers:  


(170)  (To)/from property, plant and equipment 0 


(205)  To Surplus Assets (135) 


4,579 Balance at end of year 4,232 
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Investment Properties are measured at Fair value based on market evidence. 


Details of the Commissioners investment properties and information about the 
fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2017 and 31


st
 March 2016 are as follows:- 


31
st


 March 2017 


 Quoted Prices in 
active markets 
for identical 
assets (Level 1) 


Other significant 
observable 
inputs (level 2) 


Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (level 3) 


Fair Value as at 
31


st
 March 2017 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Radio Mast Sites 0 2,517 0 2,517 


Office Units 0 1,715 0 1,715 


Houses 0 0 0 0 


31
st


 March 2016 


 Quoted Prices in 
active markets 
for identical 
assets (Level 1) 


Other significant 
observable 
inputs (level 2) 


Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (level 3) 


Fair Value as at 
31


st
 March 2016 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Radio Mast Sites 0 2,601 0 2,601 


Office Units 0 1,843 0 1,843 


Houses 0 135 0 135 


 


There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the year. 


Valuation Techniques used to determine level 2 and 3 Fair Values for 
Investment Properties 


Significant observable inputs – level 2. 


The fair value for the Radio Mast Units and Office Units has been based on the 
market approach using current market conditions, the duration of leases and rental 
income. 


 


18. Capital Commitments 


As at 31 March 2017 the Commissioner has entered into some commitments associated 
with building schemes and major projects undertaken as part of the Capital Programme.  
The most significant of these commitments is: 


 Urgent works package – Remaining works are predominantly in Ammanford Station – 
value £569k 


 Building Works across Police Stations in the Force Area – value £634k 
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19. Intangible assets 


The Commissioner accounts for software and licenses as intangible assets, to the extent 
that the software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part 
of the hardware. Intangible assets include both purchased licenses and internally 
generated software. 


The useful life assigned to the major software used by the Group/Commissioner is 3 or 5 
years and the assets are amortised on a straight-line basis. 


 


There are no items of capitalised software that are individually material to the financial 
statements. 


 


20. Long-Term Debtors 


 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st


 March 
2016 


31
st


 March 
2016 


 31
st


 March 
2017 


31
st


 March 2017 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000  


91 91 Other Police Bodies 23 23 


91 91 Total 23 23 


 
 


21. Financial Instruments 


A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions such 
as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial 
instruments. 


 


 


 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


Internally 
generated 


assets 


Other 
assets 


Total  Internally 
generated 


assets 


Other assets Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


   Balance at start of year:    


0 365 365  Gross carrying amounts 0 584 584 


0 (314) (314)  Accumulated amortisation 0 (324) (324) 


0 51 51 Net carrying amount at start of 
year: 


0 260 260 


0 219 219 Additions: 0 0 0 


0 (10) (10) Amortisation for the period 0 (83) (83) 


0 260 260 Net carrying amount at end of year 0 177 177 


Comprising: 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2016 31/3/2017 


Gross carrying amounts (£’000) 314 314 314 365 584 270 


Accumulated amortisation (£’000) (276) (289) (302) (314) (324) (93) 
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Financial Instrument - Balances 


Group: 


 


 An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s Accounts for the pensions liability related to the Chief Contable’s staff. 


 


Commissioner: 


 


 


 


 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st
  March 
2016 


31
st
  March 
2017 


31
st
  March 
2016 


31
st
  March 
2017 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Borrowing (PWLB) – principal sum borrowed (2,299) (2,125) (157) (173) 


Borrowing (PWLB) – accrued interest (13) (12) 0 0 


Trade Payables (Creditors) 0 0 (1,559) (2,451) 


Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme* (1,011,819) (1,312,684) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (1,014,131) (1,314,821) (1,716) (2,624) 


Loans and receivables:     


Fixed term investments – Principal at amortised cost 0 0 20,000 17,500 


Fixed term investments – Accrued interest 0 0 23 14 


Fixed term investments – Impaired investments 0 0 12 8 


Available for Sale Investments  0 6,547 16,164 4,806 


Available for  Sale Investments – Accrued Interest 0 33 21 13 


Trade Receivables (Debtors) 0 0 1,743 1,837 


Total Financial Assets 0 6,580 37,963 24,178 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st
  March 
2016 


31
st
  March 
2017 


31
st
  March 
2016 


31
st
  March 
2017 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Borrowing (PWLB) – principal sum borrowed (2,299) (2,125) (157) (172) 


Borrowing (PWLB) – accrued interest (13) (12) 0 0 


Trade Payables (Creditors) 0 0 (293) (410) 


Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme* 100 (178) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (2,212) (2,315) (450) (582) 


Loans and receivables:     


Fixed term investments – Principal at amortised cost 0 0 20,000 17,500 


Fixed term investments – Accrued interest 0 0 23 14 


Fixed term investments – Impaired investments 0 0 12 8 


Available for Sale Investments – At Fair Value 0 6,547 16,164 4,806 


Available for  Sale Investments – Accrued Interest 0 33 21 13 


Trade Receivables (Debtors) 0 0 1,404 1,546 


Total Financial Assets 0 6,580 37,624 23,887 
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Financial Instruments – Gains and Losses 


The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments consist of the following items: 


 


Income, Expense, Gains and Losses  


 


2015/16 


 


Total £’000s 


 Financial Liabilities Financial Assets 2016/17 


 


Total 


£000s 


 Liabilities measured at 
amortised cost 


£000s 


Loans and 
receivables 


£000s 


£’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


(325) Interest expense (224) 0 (224) 


(325) Interest payable and similar charges (224) 0 (224) 


218 Interest income 0 222 222 


(40) Impairment gain (Icelandic Banks) 0 0 0 


178 Interest and investment income 0 222 222 


(147) Net gain/(loss) for the year (224) 222 (2) 


 


Fair Values  


Financial assets classified as available for sale and all derivative assets and 
liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets, including 
bonds, treasury bills and shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, 
the fair value is taken from the market price. The fair values of other instruments 
have been estimated calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual 
cash flows at 31


st
 March 2017, using the following methods and assumptions: 


 Certificates of deposit and forward loan contracts have been discounted at 


market interest rates for instruments of similar credit quality and remaining term 


to maturity. 


 The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) has provided the Commissioner with Fair Value 
amounts in relation to its debt portfolio.  The PWLB has assessed the Fair Values by 
calculating the amounts the Commissioner would have had to pay to extinguish the 
loans on these dates. 


 No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument. 


 The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and 


receivables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 


 For trade payables and trade receivables, the carrying value has been used as a 
reasonable approximation of fair value.  


 The liability related to the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme has been assessed on 
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions 
that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality 
rates, salary levels etc. The fair value of this liability at the Balance Sheet date is 
therefore the same as the carrying amount.  
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Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy: 
 


 Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for 


identical assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices 


 Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are 


observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar 


instruments 


 Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market 


data such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 


 


2016/17 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Group  Commissioner 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Fair Value 
Level 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st
   March 
2017 


31
st
 March 2017 


31
st
   March 
2017 


31
st
 March 2017 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:    


      


(2,299) (3,231) Long Term Borrowing 2 (2,299) (3,231) 


  
Liabilities for which Fair Value is 


not disclosed 


   


(173) (173) Short Term Borrowing  (173) (173) 


(1,312,684) (1,312,684) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 


 (178) (178) 


(2,451) (2,451) Trade Payables (Creditors)  (410) (410) 


(1,317,607) (1,318,539) Total Financial Liabilities  (3,060) (3,992) 


  Financial Assets:    


8,304 8,597 Corporate and Government Bonds 2 8,304 8,597 


3,011 3,028 Certificates of Deposit 2 3,011 3,028 


  
Assets for which Fair Value is not 


disclosed 
 


  


17,522 17,522 Short Term Investments  17,522 17,522 


1,837 1,837 Trade Receivables (Debtors)  1,546 1,546 


30,674 30,984 Total Financial Assets  30,383 30,693 
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2015/16 


 


 


 


22. Inventories 


 Franking and 
uniform consumable 


stores 


Fleet maintenance 
materials 


Total 


 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start 
of year: 


322 292 80 76 402 368 


Purchases 316 392 247 196 563 588 


Recognised as an expense in 
the year 


(336) (329) (251) (198) (587) (527) 


Written off balances (10) 0 0 0 (10) 0 


Reversals of write offs in 
previous year/average price 
adjustment 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year 
end. 


292 355 76 74 368 429 


 


All inventories are held on the Chief Constable’s balance sheet. 


 


 


 


Group  Commissioner 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Fair 
Value 
Level 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st
   


March 
2016 


31
st
 March 2016 


31
st
   March 
2016 


31
st
 March 2016 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:    


      


(2,312) (3,691) Long Term Borrowing 2 (2,312) (3,691) 


  
Liabilities for which Fair Value is 


not disclosed 


   


(157) (157) Short Term Borrowing  (157) (157) 


(1,011,819) (1,011,819) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 


 100 100 


(1,599) (1,599) Trade Payables (Creditors)  (293) (293) 


(1,015,887) (1,017,266) Total Financial Liabilities  (2,662) (4,041) 


  Financial Assets:    


8,011 8,166 Corporate and Government Bonds 2 8,011 8,166 


8,009 8,019 Certificates of Deposit 2 8,009 8,019 


  
Assets for which Fair Value is 


not disclosed 
 


  


20,035 20,035 Short Term Investments  20,035 20,035 


1,743 1,743 Trade Receivables (Debtors)  1,404 1,404 


37,798 37,963 Total Financial Assets  37,459 37,624 
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23. Short-Term Debtors 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st
 March 


2016 
31


st
 March 2016  31


st
 March 


2017 
31


st
 March 2017 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000  


3,999 3,999 Central Government bodies 2,961 2,961 


3 0 Local authorities 38 38 


742 742 Other Police Bodies 1,412 1,412 


200 200 Other Public Bodies 879 878 


1,239 912 Limited Companies 1,378 1,088 


112 102 Other entities and individuals 18 18 


194 194 Value added tax claims 440 440 


6,489 6,149 Total 7,126 6,835 


24. Cash and Cash Equivalents 


31
st
 March 2016  31


st
 March 2017 


£’000  £’000 


19 Cash held 19 


1,902 Bank current accounts 190 


0 Short-term deposits 2,000 


1,921 Total 2,209 


25. Assets held for sale 


 Non - current 


 31
st
 March 


2016 
31


st
 March 2017 


 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of year: 430 0 


Assets newly classified as held for sale:   


 Property, plant and equipment 0 0 


 Other assets/liabilities in disposal groups 0 0 


Assets reclassified as Surplus assets (430) 0 


Revaluation losses 0 0 


Revaluation gains 0 0 


Assets sold 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year end 0 0 


26. Short-Term Creditors 


Group Commissione
r 


 Group Commissioner 


31
st
 March 2016 31


st
 March 


2016 
 31


st
 March 


2017 
31


st
 March 2017 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


2,361 1,982 Central Government bodies 2,030 1,956 


713 21 Local authorities 637 15 


1,871 23 Other Police Bodies 2,444 20 


116 80 Other Public Bodies 169 150 


1,680 280 Limited Companies 1,462 352 


1,337 85 Other entities and individuals 989 58 


8,078 2,471 Total 7,731 2,551 
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27. Provisions 


Short Term Provisions 


The following amounts are expected to be paid within 12 months of the reporting 
period: 


 Statutory 
Funds 


Ill Health 
Retirements 


Other 
Provisions 


Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at 
start of year: 


653 221 65 939 


Additional provisions made in  
2016/17 


126 185 0 311 


Amounts used in  2016/17 (245) (75) (2) (322) 


Unused amounts reversed in  
2016/17 


0 (146) 0 (146) 


Balance outstanding at 
year end: 


534 185 63 782 


 


Statutory Funds -Money Held Pending Reclaim 


The Commissioner is empowered to seize monies or property used, or 
intended for use, for the purpose of crime.  These seized monies are held 
within the “Money Held Pending Reclaim” fund, pending a ruling by the 
Courts.  Once this ruling is made the funds can be disposed of in line with 
relevant legislation. 


Ill Health Retirements 


A provision has been established to meet the cost of ill health retirement payments for 
those employees who, at the year end, were deemed unlikely to return to work but for 
whom the full health assessment had yet to be completed. 


Other Provisions 


At the year end, £53k relates to obligations to existing members of the Force 
Presentation Fund.  


       


 Long Term Provisions 


The following amounts are expected to be paid more than 12 months after the reporting 
period:  


 Insurance 
provision 


Municipal Mutual 
Insurance Ltd 


Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start 
of year: 


416 457 873 


Additional provisions made in  
2016/17 


28 0 28 


Amounts used in  2016/17 (56) 0 (56) 


Balance outstanding at year 
end: 


388 457 845 
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Insurance Provision 


This is an assessment of the likely settlement of insurance claims to be made by the 
Commissioner. 


Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd 


For further information, please refer to Note 4. 


 


28. Usable reserves 


Movements in the Commissioner’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and in this note. 


 


31
st


 March 2016  31
st


 March 2017 


£’000  £’000 


4,500 General Reserve 4,500 


9,174 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 6,672 


18,683 Earmarked Capital Reserve 15,183 


0 Capital Receipts Reserve (1) 


505 Capital Grants Unapplied 879 


32,862 Total 27,233 


 


General Reserve 


The Commissioner maintains a General Reserve of £4.5m to act as:  


 a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and 


avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing;  


 a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies. 


Earmarked Revenue Reserves  


This reserve includes a significant sum of money set aside to support the 
revenue budget in the medium term plan.  This is as a result of the 
Commissioner wishing to return surplus reserves held to the public.  This was 
achieved through reducing the council tax precept payable for a band D 
property by 5% in 2014/15 (compared with the previous year) and by freezing 
the council tax precept in 2015/16.  This has resulted in £4.753m being set 
aside for this purpose and is classed as “Other Reserves” below. 
 
In addition, reserves classed as “Invest to Save” below have also been 
earmarked for specific initiatives.  These initiatives are expected to incur one 
off costs that should deliver ongoing savings to the Commissioner.  Many of 
these projects focus on developing systems and communications technology, 
some of which are necessary to link in with new national system 
infrastructures. 
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Description 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  


Ill Health 
Retirement 
Reserve 


722 (722) 0 0 0 This reserve was set up to meet the cost of 
possible ill health retirements in respect of 
officers who have been, or are anticipated 
to be, on long term restrictions or limited 
duties. All such officers have been 
reviewed during 2016/17 and it has been 
concluded that a specific earmarked 
reserve is not required for 31


st
 March 


2017. 


Invest to Save 
Reserve 


1,525 0 (232) 337 1,630 To fund future projects that will deliver 
ongoing revenue savings. 


Go Safe 
Reserve 


305 0 (16) 0 289 Held on behalf of the ‘Go Safe’ Partnership 
to fund future earmarked revenue 
expenditure.  


Other Reserves 6,622 722 (2,591) 0 4,753 Funds aimed at addressing the future 
funding gap. 


Total 9,174 0 (2,839) 337 6,672  


 


Earmarked Capital Reserves  


These are amounts set aside from day to day spending and money received from the sale of 
non-current assets to pay for new non-current assets or repay borrowing.  There has been a 
lack of investment in the estate over the last few years and the Commissioner has now begun 
a significant programme of works that will deliver an effective, fit for purpose estate over the 
next few years.   


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


17,528 Balance at 1st April: 18,683 


543 Amounts received in year 0 


2,013 Reclassifications 0 


(1,401) Amounts used in year (3,500) 


   


18,683 Balance at 31st March: 15,183 


 


Capital Receipts Reserve 


This account relates to the proceeds from the sale of non-current assets. 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1
st
 April: 0 


 Capital receipts received during year  


(63) Vehicles 36 


0 Buildings 0 


0 Helicopter 114 


63 Capital receipts utilised during year (151) 


0 Balance at 31
st
 March: (1) 
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Capital Grants Unapplied 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


627 Balance at 1st April: 505 


695 Grant received in year 916 


(817) Grant applied in year (542) 


505 Balance at 31st March: 879 


 


29. Unusable reserves 


31st March 2016  31st March 
2017 


£’000  £’000 


13,253 Revaluation reserve 20,709 


59,282 Capital adjustment account 58,926 


(503) Accumulated absences account (368) 


(1,011,819) Pensions reserve (1,312,684) 


205 Deferred Capital Receipt 91 


165 Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 84 


(939,417) Total (1,233,242) 


 
Revaluation reserve 


The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, 
the date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that 
date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


13,191 Balance at 1st April: 13,253 


363 Upward revaluation of assets 8,417 


(17) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses 
not charged to the surplus/deficit on the Provision of 


Services 


(669) 


346 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current 
assets not posted to the surplus or deficit on the 


Provision of Services 


7,748 


(284) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical 
cost depreciation 


(285) 


 Revaluation reinstated – asset class moved from 
surplus to operational 


(7) 


13,253 Balance at 31st March: 20,709 


 


Capital Adjustment Account 


The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets 
and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets 
under statutory provisions.  The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, 
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and 
amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert 
fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with the 
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amounts set aside by the Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, 
construction and enhancement. The Account contains accumulated gains and 
losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated assets that 
have yet to be consumed by the Group/Commissioner. 


The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant 


and Equipment before 1 April 2007. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


50,908 Balance at 1st April: 59,282 


 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 


 


(3,393)  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (3,424) 


(448)  Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment (2,386) 


482  Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment 1,596 


(10)  Amortisation of intangible assets (83) 


0  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 0 


(991)  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 


(92) 


  Donated asset  (no conditions attached) 36 


  Reinstatement of Property from Suplus Asset to Operational (62) 


   


46,548  54,867 


 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve  


 Net write out amount of the cost of non-current assets 
consumed in the year 


 


 Capital financing applied in the year:  


63  Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 


151 


1,436  Use of Reserves to finance new capital expenditure 3,108 


695  Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to 
capital financing 


491 


122  Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Account 


52 


10  Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 
charged against the General Fund 


0 


7,309  Provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the General Fund 


0 


605  Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 415 


10,240  4,217 


2,494 Termination of PFI contract – write off of PFI liability 0 


0 Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


(158) 


0 Movement in the Donated Assets Account credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


59,282 Balance at 31st March: 58,926 
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Accumulated Absences Account 


This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund 
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year. 
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is 
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


(534) Balance at 1st April: (503) 


534 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 503 


(503) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (368) 


31 Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements. 


135 


(503) Balance at 31st March: (368) 


 


Pensions Reserve 


The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in 
accordance with statutory provisions.  The Chief Constable accounts for post-
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the 
benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any 
resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, statutory arrangements require 
benefits earned to be financed as the Chief Constable makes employer’s contributions 
to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible.  
The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in 
the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the 
Commissioner has set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that 
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


(1,047,283) Balance at 1st April: (1,011,819) 


66,641 Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and liabilities (271,602) 


12,529 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 


14,224 


(43,706) Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year. 


(43,487) 


(1,011,819) Balance at 31st March: (1,312,684) 
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Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 


The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of 
non-current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under 
statutory arrangements, the Commissioner does not treat these gains as usable for 
financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the 
deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 


 


 


Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 


The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the 
Commissioner arising from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted 
market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments. The balance is 
reduced when investments with accumulated gains are: 


 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost, 


 disposed of and the gains are realised. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1st April: 165 


165 Downward revaluation of investments (81) 


0 Accumulated gains on assets sold and maturing assets written out to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Other 
Investment Income 


0 


165 


 


Balance at 31st March: 84 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1st April: 205 


205 Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on 
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


0 Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (114) 


205 


 


Balance at 31st March: 91 
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30. Cash flow statement – operating activities 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


35,328 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 35,595 


   


 Adjustments for non-cash movements:  


(3,688) Depreciation (3,795) 


40 Investment Impairment 0 


0 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (1,008) 


(31,176) Net charges made for Retirement Benefits (29,263) 


(721) Sale of Fixed Assets (NBV) (91) 


189 Contribution to Provisions 185 


165 Loss on Revaluation of Financial Assets available for sale (81) 


2,504 Net PFI Contribution 0 


5 Increase/Decrease in Interest on Investments accrual 16 


1 Increase/Decrease in Interest on Borrowing accrual 1 


(34) Increase/Decrease in Stock 61 


(3,044) Increase/Decrease in Debtors 706 


2,006 Increase/Decrease in Creditors 1,026 


(33,753)  (32,243) 


 
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services that are investing 
and financing activities: 


 


63 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 


219 


(996) 
Other payments for financing activities – Agency 
arrangements 


(969) 


616 Payments for and Receipts from investing activities 324 


(317)  (426) 


   


1,258 Net cash flows from operating activities 2,926 


 


31. Cash flow statement – investing activities 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


2,842 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 


3,436 


143,079 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 93,472 


200 Other payments for investing activities 357 


(63) 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 


(219) 


(143,132) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (100,706) 


(817) Other receipts from investing activities (681) 


2,109 Net cash flows from investing activities (4,341) 


 







Group Statement of Accounts 2016/17 
 


 


 71 


32. Cash flow statement – financing activities 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


143 Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 158 


996 Other payments for financing activities 969 


1,139 Net cash flows from financing activities 1,127 


 


33. Agency Services 


Since April 2015, The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys has been 


the strategic lead for the financial administration of the ‘GoSafe’ Partnership. 
‘GoSafe’ is the public facing image of the Wales Road Casualty Reduction 
Partnership which comprises the  4 Welsh Police Forces, 22 Unitary Authorities for 
Wales and the Welsh Government (as the Trunk Road authority). 


The ‘GoSafe’ Partnership is funded from two principle sources: a Welsh 
Government grant, and utilisation of income received from attendance of offenders 
on Speed Awareness Courses.  During 2016/17, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys submitted grant claims totalling £2.55m, and made 
creditor payments to the value of £5.59m, on behalf of the Partnership.  


In accordance with the requirements of IAS 18 Revenue, the Code of Practice 
requires that where an organisation acts as an agent, transactions will not be 
reflected in an authority’s financial statements, with the exception of cash collected 
or expenditure incurred by the agent on behalf of the principal, in which case there 
is a debtor or creditor position and the net cash is included in Financing Activities 
in the Cash Flow Statement.  


Pension services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council  


The council administer the Local Government and Police Pension schemes 
and levy an annual fee based on the number of active and deferred members, 
as well as actual pensioners. A cost is also incurred for maintenance and the 
annual benefit statements. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


82 Expenditure incurred in administering the Police 
and Local Government Pension Schemes 


81 


82 Net surplus arising on the agency 
arrangements 


81 


 


34. Collaborative Arrangements  


Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop 
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former 
Police Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven 
by the need to satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes 
of the Regional Strategic Assessment of threats, risks and harm to the southern 
region of Wales.  
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The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for 
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met.  As part of this, he will look to 
work in collaboration with other Commissioners and forces to provide the most 
effective service possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the 
Police Act 1996, as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011.  
 
The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner 
and Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled 
Budgets’ with agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to 
time, and certain Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively 
hosted by the Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the 
four police forces in Wales.   
The CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration requires the Commissioner 
and Force to assess all collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint 
operations or joint ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure, 
income, assets and liabilities in their individual accounts.  
 
The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements 
are provided below:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 4,792 459 4,551 4,121 1,791 10,358 26,072 


Non Pay Expenditure 1,700 27 358 1,174 381 1,366 5,006 


Gross Expenditure 6,492 486 4,909 5,295 2,172 11,724 31,078 


Specific Grant Income (6,471) (486) (4,909) (2,706) (500) 0 (15,072) 


Income (21) 0 0 (55) (55) 0 (131) 


Total Income & Grants 
(6,492) (486) (4,909) (2,761) (555) 0 (15,203) 


(Surplus) or Deficit  - to be 
funded from Force 
Contributions as follows: 


0 0 0 2,534 1,617 11,724 15,875 


Force Contributions (Net):        


Dyfed-Powys 0 0 0 (528) (345) (3,331) (4,204) 


Gwent 0 0 0 (674) (441) (2,854) (3,969) 


North Wales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


South Wales 0 0 0 (1,332) (831) (5,539) (7,702) 


Total Force Contributions 0 0 0 (2,534) (1,617) (11,724) (15,875) 
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The tables below show each Force’s contribution towards Expenditure and Income:  


 


 


Note 1: North Wales Police are basing their costs and income on actual costs rather than an allocation on 
Welsh population or agreed Financial Contribution.  Furthermore, they are not included in the Regional 
Organised Crime Unit as they contribute to the North West region of England and North Wales.Also they 
do not contribute towards the Regional Task Force and Joint Firearms Unit which operate in the Southern 
Welsh Forces.  


 


Each Police and Crime Commissioner may hold their own reserves for collaborative purposes. 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Dyfed-Powys 1,081 81 513 1,136 456 3,475 6,742 


Gwent 1,219 91 578 1,281 543 2,817 6,529 


North Wales 1,455 109 2,518 Note 1 Note 1 0 4,082 


South Wales 2,737 205 1,300 2,878 1,173 5,432 13,725 


Gross 
Expenditure   6,492 486 4,909 5,295 2,172 11,724 31,078 


Dyfed-Powys (1,081) (81) (513) (592) (116) 0 (2,383) 


Gwent (1,219) (91) (578) (668) (139) 0 (2,695) 


North Wales (1,455) (109) (2,518) Note 1 Note 1 0 (4,082) 


South Wales (2,737) (205) (1,300) (1,501) (300) 0 (6,043) 


Total Income 
& Grants  


(6,492) (486) (4,909) (2,761) (555) 0 (15,203) 







POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS 
 
 


 74 


35. Officers’ remuneration 


Senior employees  


      


Salary 
(including fees 


and 
allowances) 


Benefits in 
kind - lease 


cars 


Benefits in 
kind - 


relocation 
expenses 


Pay in Lieu of 
Notice / Exit 


Payment  


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributions 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


          Note 1         


  Year Note £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 


Chief Constable  
2016/17  2 91,537 2,973 0 0 94,510 0 94,510 


2015/16   127,465 4,192 0 0 131,657 27,517 159,174 


Chief Constable 
2016/17 3 39,894 757 0 0 40,651 9,420 50,071 


2015/16  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Deputy Chief Constable  
2016/17 4 67,927 0 0 0 67,927 15,291 83,218 


2015/16 5 115,856 3,501 0 0 119,357 27,034 146,391 


Deputy Chief Constable 
2016/17 6 10,988 216 0 0 11,204 2,530 13,734 


2015/16  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


T/Deputy Chief Constable  
2016/17 7 105,041 5,590 895 0 111,526 24,774 136,300 


2015/16 7 44,558 1,570 0 0 46,128 10,783 56,911 


Assistant Chief Constable 
2016/17 8 10,162 574 0 0 10,736 2,460 13,196 


2015/16 8 36,669 2,382 30,139 0 69,190 8,874 78,064 


T/Assistant Chief Constable 
2016/17 9 103,422 3,706 0 0 107,128 25,028 132,156 


2015/16  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


T/Assistant Chief Constable 
2016/17 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


2015/16 10 64,014 1,846 0 0 65,860 13,953 79,813 


Director of Finance/ Chief 
Financial Officer to the Chief 
Constable 


2016/17   69,903 0 0 0 69,903 8,109 78,012 


2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


Director of Resources 
2016/17   69,903 0 0 0 69,903 8,109 78,012 


2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 
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Director of Legal and 
Compliance 


2016/17  11 73,934 0 0 95,301 169,235 0 169,235 


2015/16   69,498 0 0 0 69,498 0 69,498 


Commissioner 
2016/17  12 7,339 0 0 0 7,339 851 8,190 


2015/16   65,000 0 0 0 65,000 7,540 72,540 


Commissioner 
2016/17 13 57,661 0 0 0 57,661 6,689 64,350 


2015/16  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Deputy Commissioner* 
2016/17 14 5,173 0 0 0 5,173 600 5,773 


2015/16 
 


53,000 0 0 0 53,000 6,148 59,148 


Chief Financial Officer to the 
Commissioner* 


2016/17 15 60,015 0 0 0 60,015 6,962 66,977 


2015/16 
 


58,208 0 0 0 58,208 6,776 64,984 


Chief of Staff* 
2016/17 16 61,218 0 0 0 61,218 8,481 69,699 


2015/16 17 4,405 0 0 0 4,405 5,793 10,198 


Temporary Chief of Staff* 
2016/17 18 6,394 0 0 0 6,394 742 7,136 


2015/16 
 


59,142 0 0 0 59,142 6,860 66,002 


Total 2016/17     840,511 13,816 895 95,301 950,523 120,044 1,070,568 


Total 2015/16     833,829 13,491 30,139 0 877,459 137,056 1,014,515 


 
*staff under the direction and control of the Commissioner
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Note 1: Under the Chief Officer Relocation Package Policy, Chief Officers who relocate their main home to the 
force area are entitled to receive reimbursement of their relocation expenses. This is in accordance with Police 
Regulations. 
 
Note 2: The Chief Constable retired on 17/12/16. The annualised salary for this post in 2016/17 was 
£125,853. 
 


  Note 3: The new Chief Constable was appointed on the 18/12/16.  The annualised salary for this post in 
2016/17 was £135,324. 
 


 Note 4: The Deputy Chief Constable retired from this seconded post on 23/10/16. The annualised salary for this 
post was £113,295. The salary cost of this post was recharged 1/3 Dyfed Powys, 1/3 Gwent and 1/3 South 
Wales for 2016/17. 
 


Note 5: The Deputy Chief Constable was seconded to the role of "Deputy Chief Constable - All Wales" from 
08/11/15 onwards. There was no change in remuneration as a result of this appointment. 
 


Note 6: The new Deputy Chief Constable was appointed on the 26/02/17.  The annualised salary for this post in 
2016/17 was £113,295. 
 
Note 7: The Temporary Deputy Chief Constable was in post between 08/11/15 - 25/02/17. The annualised 
salary for this post in 2016/17 was £113,295. 
 
Note 8: The Assistant Chief Constable held this post from 01/04/15 – 07/11/15 and then reverted back to this 
post from 26/02/2017 onwards. The annualised salary for this post in 2016/17 was £110,148. 


 


Note 9: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was in post from 01/04/2016 onwards.  
 
Note 10: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was in post between 01/04/2015 - 27/06/2015 and 
15/11/2015 - 31/03/2016. The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £97,509. 
 
Note 11: The Director of Legal and Compliance left the organisation on 03/03/17. The annualised salary for this 
post in 2016/17 was £70,192. 
 


Note 12:  The Commissioner left the organisation on 11/05/2016 following the Police and Crime Commissioner 
elections.  
  
Note 13:  The new Commissioner was appointed on 12/05/2016 following the Police and Crime Commissioner 
elections with an annual salary of £65,000. 
 
Note 14:  The Deputy Commissioner left the organisation on 11/05/16 following the Police and Crime 
Commissioner elections. The annualised salary for this post in 2016/17 was £53,000. 
 
Note 15: The Chief Financial officer to the Commissioner reduced her hours during 2015/16. The annualised full-
time equivalent salary for this post in 2016/17 was £70,192. 
 
Note 16: The Chief of Staff returned from maternity leave on 11/04/16. The annualised salary for this post in 
2016/17 was £62,955. 
 
Note 17: The Chief of Staff was on maternity leave from 27/04/2015 - 10/04/2016. The annualised salary for this 
post in 2015/16 was £60,993. 
 
Note 18: The temporary Chief of Staff left the organisation on 08/05/16. The annualised salary for this post in 
2016/17 was £60,993. 
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Other employees – (excludes senior officers – itemised above) 


The other Group employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year 
(excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following amounts: 


2015/16  2016/17 


Number of employees  Number of employees 


4 £60,000 - £64,999* 6 


5 £65,000 - £69,999 3 


1 £70,000 - £74,999 2 


3 £75,000 - £79,999 3 


3 £80,000 - £84,999 3 


2 £85,000 - £89,999 0 


0 £90,000 - £94,999 2 


0 £95,000 - £99,999 1 


*There was one Commissioner employee who received more than £60,000 remuneration 
for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions). 


Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration/Chief of Staff Remuneration 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new 
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information:  
 


a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable/Chief of Staff during 
the year to which the accounts relate; 


b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s 
employees in post at 31


st
 March 2017; and 


c. the ratio of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-
paragraph (b);  


 


Remuneration includes basic salary, overtime, allowances and benefits in kind. 


 


Commissioner: 


The remuneration of the Chief of Staff for 2016/17 was £61,218. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Commissioner’s employees as at 
31


st
 March 2017 was £25,751. 


The ratio of the Chief of Staff’s remuneration to the median Commissioner employee’s 
remuneration was 2.38:1. 


 


Chief Constable: 


The remuneration of the Chief Constable for 2016/17 was £137,052. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’s employees as 
at 31


st
 March 2017 was £35,772. 


The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable 
employee’s remuneration was 3.83:1. 
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Exit Packages 


The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the departures 
agreed during 2016/17 is set out in the tables below.  


 


Group: 


Exit package cost 
band 


2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 


Number of 
Departures agreed 


Departure  cost 
(including payment 


in lieu of notice) 
Number of 


Departures agreed 


Departure  cost 
(including payment 


in lieu of notice) 


£’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 1 6 1 3 


£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0 


£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 1 95 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000 + 0 0 0 0 


 1 6 2 98 


*2 members of staff exited the organisation during 2016/17.  


 


Commissioner: 


One member of staff was charged to the Commissioner’s accounts in 2016/17. 


The total cost of exit packages is charged to the Group’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account in the current year. The cost of the departures is included in the 
Service Analysis and the Pension Strain as a Non Distributed Cost. 


 


Flexible Retirement 


The Force has recently adopted this policy and 4 police staff are currently employed 
under this policy option. Due to these early retirements, an actuarial strain has been 
applied to the Local Government Scheme resulting in a cost of £13k to the Force.  


 


Members 


The following amounts were paid to Joint Audit Committee members in 2016/17. 


 


Group Commissioner  Group  Commissioner 


2015/16 2015/16  2016/17 2016/17 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 0 Salaries 0 0 


3 3 Allowances 3 3 


0 0 Expenses 0 0 


3 3 Total 3 3 
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36. External audit costs 


The Group/Commissioner has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit 
of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory 
inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Group/Commissioner’s 
external auditors: 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


2015/16 2015/16  2016/17 2016/17 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


82 41 


Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office with 
regard to external audit services carried out 
by the appointed auditor for the year 


79 40 


82 41 Total 79 40 


37. Grant Income 


The Commissioner credited the following grants, contributions and donations to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2015/16 and 2016/17: 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


 Credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure  


(75) Competed Fund 0 


0 Wisdom Funding – Multi-agency Offender Hub (20) 


0 Control Room Upgrades for transition onto Emergency Services Network (426) 


0 CCTV Upgrade at the Ports (96) 


(75) Total (542) 


 Credited to Taxation and Non-specific grant income  


(32,448) Police Revenue Grant (32,896) 


(5,063) Welsh Floor Grant (4,221) 


(1,426) Revenue Support Grant (4,618) 


(619) Capital Grant (374) 


(39,556) Total (42,109) 


 Credited to services  


 Revenue grants  


(1,528) Grants Receivable from the Home Office (1,470) 


(2,192) Police Community Support Officers (2,479) 


(576) Victim Support Services (611) 


(391) Private Finance Initiative (378) 


(334) All Wales Schools Liaison Programme  (316) 


(39) Competed Fund  0 


(55) Capital Loans Grant (195) 


(52) Other Revenue Grants (4) 


 Collaborative Grants **  


(563) Regional Organised Crime Unit (580) 


(105) Regional Task Force (105) 


(551) Dedicated Security Posts (Ports Unit) (513) 


(56) Counter Terrorism Security Advisors (CTSA) (81) 


(946) Counter Terrorism Intelligence Unit (1,081) 


(7,388) Total (7,813) 


 
**Police and Crime Commissioners and Police Forces in Wales are complying with requirements arising from 
the CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration”. This guidance has required the Group to assess all 
collaborative activity and account for their fair share of grant income in their individual accounts since 
2014/15.  
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38. Related parties 


The Group/Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related 
parties, i.e. bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the 
Group/Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the 
Group/Commissioner.  


Central Government and Other Public Bodies 


Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the 
Group/Commissioner – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework 
within which the Group/Commissioner operates, provides the majority of its 
funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions 
that the Group/Commissioner has with other parties.   


The Group/Commissioner has business relationships, giving rise to income and 
expenditure transactions, with Central Government Bodies and other Public 
Bodies as follows: 


Group  Commissioner 


2016/17  2016/17 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(69,188) 994 Home Office (69,188) 0 


(18,324) 5 Welsh Government (18,324) 0 


(14,295) 4,827 Carmarthenshire County Council (14,295) 19 


(6,134) 174 Ceredigion County Council (6,134) 25 


(10,765) 583 Pembrokeshire County Council (10,765) 300 


(12,246) 255 Powys County Council (12,246) 100 


 


Group  Commissioner 


2015/16  2015/16 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(68,320) 764 Home Office (68,320) 0 


(17,934) 3 Welsh Government (17,934) 0 


(14,328) 4,300 Carmarthenshire County Council (14,328) 0 


(6,097) 139 Ceredigion County Council (6,097) 0 


(10,677) 539 Pembrokeshire County Council (10,677) 275 


(12,200) 197 Powys County Council (12,200) 0 


 


Joint Audit Committee Members 


The Joint Audit Committee provides an additional source of assurance to the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable that systems of internal control are 
working effectively and that internal audit is operating within their Code of 
Practice. 


The total of members’ allowances paid in 2016/17 is shown in note 35. 


None of the Joint Audit Committee members, or parties related to them, have 
undertaken any material transactions with the Chief Constable in 2016/17.   
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Senior Officers 


There were no material transactions between the Group/Commissioner and other 
Senior Officers, or parties related to them.  


Entities Controlled or significantly Influenced by the Group/Commissioner 


There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the 
Group/Commissioner. 


 


39. Capital expenditure and capital financing 


The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table 
below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it.  Where 
capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as 
assets are used by the Group/Commissioner, the expenditure results in an 
increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital 
expenditure incurred historically by the Group/Commissioner that has yet to be 
financed.  The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


(7,309) Opening capital financing requirement: 0 


 Capital Investment:  


(2,701)  Property, Plant and Equipment 0 


0  Investment properties 0 


(219)  Intangible assets 0 


0  Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 
Statute 


0 


 Sources of finance:  


63  Capital receipts 0 


2,252  Government grants and other contributions 0 


 Sums set aside from revenue  


605  Direct revenue contributions 0 


0  MRP / loans fund principal 0 


7,309 Repayment of Capital Financing Requirement * 0 


0 Closing capital financing requirement: 0 


 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


 Explanation of movements in the year:  


0 (Increase) / decrease in underlying need to borrow (supported 
by government financial assistance) 


0 


7,309 (Increase) / decrease in underlying need to borrow 
(unsupported by government financial assistance) * 


0 


0 Assets acquired under finance leases 0 


0 Assets acquired under PFI contracts 0 


7,309 (Increase)/ decrease in Capital Financing Requirement 0 


 


*In 2015/16, reserves were utilised to repay the Capital Financing Requirement. 
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40. Leases 


Group/Commissioner as Lessee 


Operating Leases 


The Group/Commissioner leases property from other property owners where 
appropriate and affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational 
policing and support. The Group/Commissioner also has operating leases for 
plant and equipment which includes photocopiers.  


The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future 
years are: 


 


31
st


 March 2016  31
st


 March 2017 


£’000  £’000 


168 Not later than one year 175 


416 Later than one year and not later than five years 485 


977 Later than five years 884 


1,561 Total 1,544 


The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement during the year in relation to these leases was: 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


235 Minimum lease payments 217 


0 Contingent rents 0 


0 (Sublease payments receivable) 0 


235 Total 217 


 


Group/Commissioner as Lessor 


Operating Leases 


The Group/Commissioner leases out part of its property portfolio to provide 
suitable and affordable accommodation for other Public Sector Authorities. 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in  
future years are: 


The income credited to the Group/Commissioner’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement during 2016/17 in relation to these leases was £179,861. 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st


 March 
2016 


31
st


 March 2016  31
st


 March 
2017 


31
st


 March 2017 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


95 95 Not later than one year 86 86 


337 337 Later than one year and not later 
than five years 


337 337 


356 356 Later than five years 271 271 


788 788 Total 694 694 
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41. Private Finance Initiatives and similar contracts 


The Private Finance Initiative agreement for Ammanford Police Station was 
terminated on 19


th
 June 2015. 


 


 2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


2,504 Balance outstanding at start of year 0 


(10) Payments during the year 0 


(2,494) Payments during the year (termination of contract) 0 


0 Capital expenditure incurred in the year 0 


0 Balance outstanding at year end 0 


 


42. Impairment losses 


During 2016/17, there is no reason to believe that the value of assets has 
changed, therefore there is no indication of impairment.  


 


43. Termination benefits  


During 2016/17,  2 members of staff accepted an offer of benefits in exchange for 
the termination of employment.  


 


44. Defined benefit pension schemes   


Participation in Pension schemes 


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Group 
makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although 
these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Group has a 
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that 
employees earn their future entitlement. 


The Group participates in two post-employment schemes: 


 The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by 
Carmarthenshire County Council – this is a funded defined benefit CARE 
(Career Average Revalued Earnings) scheme, meaning that the Group and 
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to 
balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. 


 The Police Officer Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded defined benefit  
CARE scheme, consequently the fund has no investment assets. Benefits 
payable are funded by contributions from employers and employees with any 
difference between benefits payable and contributions receivable being met by 
the top-up grant from the Home Office. 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when 
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid 
as pensions. 


However, the charge the Group is required to make against council tax is based 
on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement 
benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive 
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Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 


 


 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension 
Scheme 


 Group Commissioner Group Commissioner 


 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Cost of services:     


 Current service cost (4,236) (97) (16,484) 0 


 Past service cost 0 0 0 0 


 Other (120) 0 0 0 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


    


 Net interest expense (992) (23) (34,944) 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 


(5,348) (120) (51,428) 0 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 
comprising: 


    


 Return on plan assets (excluding the amount 
included in the net interest expense) 


19,987 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses arising on 
changes in demographic assumptions 


1,743 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses arising on 
changes in financial assumptions 


(36,097) (178) (263,838) 0 


 Other – experience (gain)/loss 6,603 0 0 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 


(13,112) (298) (315,266) 0 


Commissioning Costs (intra-group transfer) 0 (12,814) 0 (315,266) 


Total net cost (13,112) (13,112) (315,266) (315,266) 


Movement in Reserves Statement:     


 Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus 
or Deficit for the Provision of Services for post 
-employment benefits in accordance with the 
Code 


5,348 5,348 51,428 51,428 


Actual amount charged against the General Fund 
Balance for pensions in the year: 


    


 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme (2,749) (2,749) (24,764) (24,764) 


  


An intra-group transfer has been processed from the Chief Constable’s accounts 
to the    Commissioner’s accounts, as the Chief Constable is not responsible for 
holding reserves. 


The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Group and 
Commissioner Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements to the 31 
March 2017 is a loss of £7,764k (2015/16: £4,851k gain). 
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 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension 
Scheme 


 Group Commissioner Group Commissioner 


 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:     


Cost of services:     


 Current service cost (4,277) (88) (19,508) 0 


 Past service cost 0 0 (3,199) 0 


 Other (94) 0 0 0 


Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:     


 Net interest expense (1,009) (21) (33,088) 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services 


(5,380) (109) (55,795) 0 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 


    


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 
comprising: 


    


 Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in 
the net interest expense) 


(3,960) 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses arising on changes in 
demographic assumptions 


0 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses arising on changes in 
financial assumptions 


8,811 100 61,790 0 


 Other – experience (gain)/loss 0 0 0 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


(529) (9) 5,995 0 


Commissioning Costs (intra-group transfer) 0 (520) 0 5,995 


Total net cost (529) (529) 5,995 5,995 


Movement in Reserves Statement:     


 Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit 
for the Provision of Services for post -employment 
benefits in accordance with the Code 


5,380 5,380 55,795 55,795 


Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance 
for pensions in the year: 


    


 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme (2,596) (2,596) (27,402) (27,402) 


 


Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 


The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s obligation in respect 
of its defined benefit plans is as follows: 


 


 Local Government Pension Scheme Police Pension Scheme 


2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Present value of the defined benefit obligation (123,284) (159,043) (982,911) (1,273,413) 


Fair value of plan assets 94,376 119,772 0 0 


Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (28,908) (39,271) (982,911) (1,273,413) 
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Pensions Liability 
The Pensions Liability which is disclosed on the Group Balance Sheet reflects the 
underlying commitments that the Chief Constable has in the long run to pay retirement 
benefits. In 2016/17 this amounts to £1,312,684 million compared to £1,011,819 million 
in 2015/16. 
 
Recognition of the total liability has a substantial impact on the net worth as recorded in 
the Balance Sheet. However statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the 
financial position of the Group remains healthy. This is because to finance the liability the 
Chief Constable makes a pension contribution of 21.3% for police officers and 11.6% for 
police staff, with the actual pensions and commuted lump sums being met directly by the 
Police Pension Fund Account, which is funded by the Home Office via the 
Commissioner. 


 


Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension 
Scheme 


2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening fair value of scheme assets 93,830 94,376 0 0 


Interest income 3,214 3,435 0 0 


Remeasurement gain / (loss)     


 The return on plan assets excluding the amount included 
in the net interest expense 


(3,960) 19,987 0 0 


Contributions from employer 2,596 2,749 0 0 


Contributions from employees into the scheme 1,238 1,298 0 0 


Benefits paid (2,448) (1,953) 0 0 


Other (if applicable) (94) (120) 0 0 


Closing fair value of scheme assets 94,376 119,772 0 0 


The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore 
assets and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief 
Constable and Group accounts. 


Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 


 Funded Liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: Police 
Pension Scheme 


2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening Balance at 1
st
 April: (124,805) (123,284) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


Current service cost (4,277) (4,236) (19,508) (16,484) 


Interest cost (4,223) (4,427) (33,088) (34,944) 


Contributions from scheme participants (1,238) (1,298) (5,862) (5,771) 


Remeasurement gains and (losses)     


 Remeasurement gains/ (losses) arising 
from changes in demographic assumptions 


0 1,743 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains / (losses) arising 
from changes in financial assumptions 


8,811 (36,097) 61,790 (263,838) 


 Other (if applicable) 0 6,603 0 0 


Past service cost 0 0 (3,199) 0 


Losses/ (gains) on curtailment 0 0 0 0 


Benefits Paid 2,448 1,953 33,264 30,535 


Closing balance at 31
st
 March (123,284) (159,043) (982,911) (1,273,413) 
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Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 


 Fair value of Scheme assets 


2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 


Cash and cash equivalents 397 959 


Equity instruments 65,214 84,438 


Bonds 18,252 23,236 


Property 10,513 11,139 


Total Assets 94,376 119,772 


Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities 


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on 
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. 


Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by 
Mercer Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
LGPS Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2016. 


 


The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension 
Scheme 


 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


Mortality assumptions:     


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) for current 
pensioners: 


    


 Men 23.4 22.8 27.6 27.8 


 Women 25.9 25.5 30.2 30.3 


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) for future 
pensioners: 


    


 Men 25.7 25.0 30.3 30.1 


 Women 28.2 27.8 32.5 


 


32.6 


Other assumptions:     


Rate of  inflation 2.0% 2.3% 2.0% 2.3% 


Rate of increase in salaries 3.5% 3.8% 3.5% 3.8% 


Rate of increase in pensions 2.0% 2.3% 2.0% 2.3% 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.6% 2.6% 3.6% 2.6% 


 


The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions set 
out in the table above.  


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions 
remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy 
increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and 
changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the 
sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of 
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those 
used in the previous period. 
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Local Government Police Scheme 2016/17 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 3,015  


Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 3,531  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 1,080  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


 3,454 


Police Pension Scheme 2016/17 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 30,940  


Rate of inflation (increase of decrease by 0.1%) 26,726  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 6,801  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


 26,127 


 


Impact on the Group’s Cash flows 


The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant 
a rate as possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to 
achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was 
completed on 31


st
 March 2017 and details of the future employers’ rates are 


shown below: 


 


Year Employer rate 


2017/18 13.5% 


2018/19 13.5% 
2019/20 13.5% 


 


45. Contingent Liabilities 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the 
Home Office, initially had 14 claims lodged against them with the Central London 
Employment Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful 
discrimination arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension 
Regulations 2015.  Claims of unlawful discrimination have also been made in 
relation to the changes to the Judiciary and Firefighters Pension regulations. In 
the case of the Judiciary claims the claimants were successful and in the 
Firefighters case the respondents were successful. Both of these judgements are 
subject to appeal, the outcome of which may determine the outcome of the Police 
claims. The Tribunal has yet to set a date for a preliminary or substantive Police 
hearing.  Legal advice suggests that there is a strong defence against the Police 
claims.  The quantum and who will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims 
are partially or fully successful.  For these reasons, no provision has been made 
in the 2016/17 Accounting Statements. 
 
Police Officers who have accrued 30 years’ service are entitled to opt out from the 
Pension Scheme. This only applies to officers who are members of the 1987 
pension scheme. There is the potential that some officers may claim that they 
have overpaid pension contributions and as such, they might be entitled to make 
a claim. No claims have been submitted to date and it would be difficult to provide 
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a reliable estimate for such costs at this point in time. We have estimated that 
there would be a maximum of 7 Dyfed-Powys Police Officers affected.  


46. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments  


The Commissioner has adopted CIPFA’s Revised Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and complies with the Revised Prudential Code of Capital Finance 
for Local Authorities (both updated in November 2009). 


As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Commissioner 
approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of each 
financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks 
associated with Financial Instruments. The Commissioner also produces 
Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be 
followed to manage these risks.  


The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in 
compliance with the Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance for local 
authorities.  This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and 
liquidity, rather than yield.  The Commissioner’s Treasury Management Strategy, 
together with his Treasury Management Practices are based on seeking the 
highest rate of return consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 


The main risks covered are: 


 Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail 
to meet its contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Commissioner. 


 Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Commissioner might not have the 
cash available to make contracted payments on time. 


 Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will 
materialise because of changes in market variables such as interest rates 
or equity prices. 


 
Credit Risk 


Investments 


The Commissioner manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are placed 
with Banks and Building Societies having sufficiently high credit worthiness as set 
out in the Annual Investment Strategy. These include commercial entities with a 
high minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK Government, other Local 
Authorities, and organisations without credit ratings upon which the 
Commissioner has received independent investment advice.  


A limit of £2m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a 
single counterparty (other than the UK government).  


 


The Commissioners’ maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its 


investments in banks and building societies of £40m cannot be assessed 


generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay 


the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience 


has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. 


A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Commissioner’s deposits, but there 


was no evidence at the 31 March 2017 that this was likely to crystallise. 
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The table below summarises the nominal value of the Commissioner’s investment 
portfolio at 31


st 
March 2017, and confirms that all investments were made in line with 


the Commissioner’s approved credit rating criteria: 


 


Counterparty 


Credit Rating 
Criteria Met 


When 
Investment 


Placed? 


Credit 
Rating 
Criteria 
Met on 


31
st
 


March 
2017? 


Balance Invested as at 31 March 2017 
£’000s 


 


Total 
 


 
 


Y/N Y/N 
Up to 


1 
month 


> 1 
month 
and < 3 
months 


> 3 
months 
and < 6 
months 


> 6 
months 
and < 12 
months 


Over 12 
months 


 


   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


UK Banks Y Y 2,000 2,000 2,500 2,000 0 8,500 


Foreign Banks Y Y 0 0 0 2,000 0 2,000 


UK Building 
Societies 


N/A N/A 1,000 1,000 2,000 0 0 4,000 


Bonds Y 
Y 


0 0 2,014 
0 


6,256 8,270 


DMO  Y Y 2,000 0 0 0 0 2,000 


Local 
Authorities 


N/A N/A 2,000 4,000 0 
0 


0 6,000 


Total   7,000 7,000 6,514 4,000 6,256 30,770 


 


The above analysis shows that all deposits outstanding as at 31
st
 March 2017 met 


the Commissioner’s credit rating criteria on the 31
st
 March 2017. The analysis 


excludes the estimated carrying value after impairment of the Commissioner’s 
Icelandic Bank investment of £8k. 


Trade Receivables 


The following analysis summarises the Commissioners’ potential maximum exposure 
credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five financial years on the 
level of default on trade debtors. 


Only those receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included i.e. 
debtors that have arisen as a result of trading activities.  


 


 31
st


 March 2016 31
st


 March 2017 


Gross Debtors (£’000) 1,743 1,837 


Bad Debt Provision 
as a % of Group 
Trade Debtors 


 


6.25 3.42 


Credit risk exposure 109 63 


 


Liquidity Risk 


The Commissioner has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the 


Public Works Loan Board and other local authorities, and at higher rates from 


banks and building societies.  There is no perceived risk that the Commissioner 


will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.  It is however exposed to 
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the risk that it will need to refinance a significant proportion of its borrowing at a 


time of unfavourably high interest rates.   


 


The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows: 


 


31
st


 March 2016 


£’000 


Loans maturing within: 31
st


  March 2017 


£’000 


157 Under 1 Year 173 


157 Total Current Borrowing 173 


173 1 – 2 years 189 


623 2 – 5 years 682 


1,502 5 – 10 years 1,254 


0 10 – 15 years 0 


0 15 + years 0 


2,298 
Total Long Term Borrowing more than 12 


months 
2,125 


 


All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 


 


Market Risk 


Interest Rate Risk 


The Commissioner is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate 


movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have 


a complex impact on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would 


have the following effects: 


 borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall 


 investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 


 


Price Risk 


The Commissioner does not invest in pooled funds or equity shares and therefore 
is not subject to any price risk (i.e. the risk that the Commissioner will suffer loss 
as a result of adverse movements in the price of financial instruments).  


Foreign Exchange Risk 


The Commissioner has no financial asset or liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency. It therefore has no exposure to loss arising as a result of adverse 
movements in exchange rates. 


 


47. Trust Funds 


The aim of the Dyfed Powys Crime Prevention Trust is to promote for the public 
benefit, in partnership with the police, the protection of people and property from, 
and the prevention of criminal acts, in particular by: 


- Encouragement of greater public participation in the prevention and 
solution of crime; and 


- Assisting in measures designed to reduce the level of crime; and 
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- The provision of education, information and practical assistance on crime 
prevention. 


For a number of years, the Trust was running the ‘Bobby Van Scheme’ which 
delivered increased security in vulnerable people’s homes in the form of window 
locks, door chains and door viewers. However, recognising the significant 
financial contribution made by Dyfed Powys Police, and at a time of diminishing 
financial resource, a review of the ‘Bobby Van Scheme’ was carried out to 
identify future service provision options and in 2014, a decision was made to 
bring the scheme to an end. 


The future of the Crime Prevention Trust is currently under discussion and there 
is a likelihood that the Trust will be dissolved and will be replaced with an 
alternative charitable body. There has been no movement on the financial 
position during 2016/17 and the Bank Account Balance as at 31


st
 March 2017 


stands at £66,681. 


The Trust is registered with the Charities Commission and a financial summary is 
included below: 


 


Financial year end  Income Spending Net position 


 £ £ £ 


31
st
  Mar 2016 0 0 0 


31
st
  Mar 2015 (73,863) 82,491 8,628 


 


It has been determined that the Commissioner does not have control of the Trust 
and it is not a subsidiary of the organisation. 
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Glossary of Terms 
 


Term Definition 


2016/17 This refers to the period covered by these accounts - 1 April 2016 to 31 March 
2017. 


2015/16 This refers to the period covered for comparative purposes by these accounts – 1 
April 2015 to 31 March 2016. 


Accounting policies These are a set of rules and codes of practice used when preparing the 
accounts. 


Actuarial gains and 
losses 


For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or 
surpluses that arise because: 


 Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made in the 
last valuation ;or 


 The actuarial assumptions have changed. 


Amortisation Intangible assets should be amortised on a systematic basis over their economic 
lives. 


Asset revaluation A revaluation of fixed assets is a technique required to accurately record the true 
value of capital assets held in the balance sheet. The purpose of a revaluation is 
to bring into the accounts the fair market value of non-current assets. 


Capital expenditure Expenditure on the acquisition or construction of assets, which have a long-term 
value e.g. land and buildings. 


Capital receipts Income from the sale of non-current assets, which can only be used to finance 
new capital expenditure or repay outstanding debt on assets financed from loans. 


Usable capital receipts are those capital receipts which are not set aside for 
specific purposes but are available to be used for any capital purchases. 


Carrying value The carrying value of an asset is the value of the asset included in the Balance 
Sheet. 


CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, one of the 
professional accountancy bodies in the UK.  CIPFA specialises in the public 
services and has responsibility for setting accounting standards for these 
services. 


Commissioning The entire cycle of assessing the needs of people in a local area, designing 
services, and then securing them. 


Component 
accounting 


Accounting for non-current assets’ individual components separately. 


Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) 


Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in the retail price of 
goods and services – excludes mortgage interest payments, council tax and 
other housing costs. 


Contingent liabilities These exist where: 


 a possible obligation arises from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the organisation’s control; or 


 a present obligation arises from past events but is not recognised 
because: 


i. it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, or 


ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability. 


Corporation sole A corporation sole is a legal entity consisting of a single ("sole") incorporated 
office, occupied by a single ("sole") man or woman i.e. the Commissioner and 
Chief Constable are both corporations sole under the PRSRA. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fixed_assets

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fair_market_value

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Juristic_person





POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS 
 
 


 94 


Term Definition 


Current assets 


 


Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash.  


By convention the items are ordered by reference to the ease that such 
conversion into cash can be carried out. 


Current liabilities 


 


Current liabilities are items that are due immediately or in the short – term. 


Current service cost 
(Pensions) 


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liability expected 
to arise from employee service in the current period. 


Curtailment Changes in liabilities relating respectively to actions that relieve the employer of 
primary responsibility for a pension obligation (e.g. a group of employees being 
transferred to another scheme) or events that reduce the expected years of 
future service of employees or reduce the accrual of defined benefits over their 
future service for some employees (e.g. closing a business unit). 


Defined benefit 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution 
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the 
contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments 
of the scheme. The schemes may be funded or unfunded. 


Delegation Is the partnership of authority and responsibility to another person to carry out 
specific activities. The person who delegated the work remains accountable for 
the outcome of the delegated work. 


Depreciation The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the non-current 
asset that have been consumed during the period. Consumption includes the 
wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a non-current asset 
whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either 
changes in technology or demand for the goods and services produced by the 
asset. 


Fair value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s 
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the 
purchase of the asset. 


Finance lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
non-current asset to the lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be 
presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to substantially 
all of the fair value of the leased asset. 


Financial instrument Any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 


A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract that derives its value from 
changes in underlying assets or indices. 


Financial Liability An obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Commissioner and 
can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets, 
or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity 
that is potentially unfavourable to the Commissioner. 


Financial Asset A right to future economic benefits  controlled by the Council that is represented 
by cash or other instruments, or a contractual right to receive cash or another 
asset. 


FRS Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK accountancy profession and 
the Accounting Standards Board.  These include Statements of Standard 
Accounting Practice (SSAPs). 


Group accounts The financial statements of the group i.e. the two corporations sole, presented as 
a single economic entity. 


Impairment A reduction in the value of a non-current asset, below its carrying amount in the 
balance sheet. 
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Term Definition 


Merger accounting Merger accounting should be applied where there is a transfer of functions in full 
from the responsibility of one authority to another. Where merger accounting 
applies it is assumed that the merger took place at the beginning of the 
accounting period. 


National Non 
Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 


The non-domestic rates, or business rates, collected by local councils are the 
means by which businesses and others who occupy non-domestic property make 
a contribution towards the cost of local services. The rates are pooled by central 
government and redistributed to local councils and Commissioner according to a 
formula. 


Net book value The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet i.e. 
their historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for 
depreciation. 


Net Interest Cost 


(Pensions) 


For a defined benefit scheme, this occurs during the period when the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) arises from the passage of time. 


Non-current assets These are items such as land, buildings, vehicles and major items of equipment, 
which give benefit over more than one year. 


Past service cost For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme 
liabilities related to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period 
as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 


Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility 
Act (PRSRA) 


An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which transferred the control of 
police forces from police authorities to elected Police and Crime Commissioners. 


Provisions A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision is recognised if 
the following criteria are fulfilled: 


 an entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 


 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation; 


 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 


Prudential borrowing  Borrowing by local authorities without government financial support, but in 
accordance with the CIPFA prudential code of local authority borrowing.  


PWLB 


 


This is the Public Works Loan Board, which is an organisation financed by the 
Government.  It lends money to Commissioners on set terms so that they can 
buy capital items. 


Reserves Balances that represent resources set aside for purposes such as general 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Earmarked reserves are those set 
aside for specific policy purposes. 


Retail Price Index 
(RPI) 


Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in the retail price of a 
basket of goods and services, including mortgage costs, council tax and other 
household costs. 


Revenue Budget The estimate of annual income and expenditure requirements, which sets out the 
financial implications of policies and the basis of the annual precept to be levied 
on collection funds. 


Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) 


A general government grant in support of local authority expenditure (including 
Commissioners) and fixed each year in relation to spending levels. 


Senior Employee An employee whose salary is more than £150,000 per year, or one whose salary 
is at least £60,000 per year (calculated pro rata for a part-time employee) and 
who is the designated head of paid service and a statutory chief officer. Typically 
the Commissioner’s Chief Executive and statutory Chief Officers. 


Single entity accounts The individual accounts of each corporation sole. 


 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Act_of_Parliament

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parliament_of_the_United_Kingdom

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Police_and_Crime_Commissioner
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Narrative Report  
 


1.0 Introduction 


1.1 This Narrative Report aims to provide an easily understandable and effective 
guide to the most significant matters reported in the accounts of the Chief 
Constable of Dyfed Powys. It also provides some contextual information on the 
financial environment which will also be of relevance. 


2.0 About the Statement of Accounts of the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys 


2.1 The Statement of Accounts provides information on the financial position and 
financial performance of the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys for the financial 
year 2016/17.  The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 established 
each Chief Constable as a legal entity or ‘corporation sole’ in their own right on 
21


st
 November 2012. This is the fifth Statement of Accounts to be produced by 


the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys Police under these arrangements. 


2.2 The financial position of the consolidated Group of the Commissioner and Chief 
Constable for Dyfed Powys are set out in a separate Statement of Accounts 
document produced by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 


2.3 The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2015 require local government 
bodies to prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices. 
The Code is identified as representing proper practices.  


3.0 What is included in the Statement of Accounts? 


3.1 The Accounts that follow this narrative provide further detail of the financial affairs 
of the Chief Constable and are comprised of:- 


•  Independent Auditor’s Report; this sets out the opinion of the external 
auditor, the Wales Audit Office, on whether the Chief Constable accounts 
presented give a ‘true and fair view’ of the financial position and operations of 
the Chief Constable for 2016/17; 


•  Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts; this 
statement sets out the responsibilities of the Chief Constable and the Chief 
Constable’s Chief Finance Officer; 


•  Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; this core statement 
summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in 
providing policing and crime reduction services during the year. It includes all 
day to day expenses and related income on an accruals basis, as well as 
transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the 
real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year; 


•  Balance Sheet; this core statement shows the value as at the Balance Sheet 
date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Chief Constable.  As 
under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act, the Chief Constable is 
unable to hold cash, the Chief Constable’s current assets and liabilities are 
balanced to nil via intra-group transfers between the Commissioner and Chief 
Constable which are eliminated from the Group Accounts. The Police and 
Crime Commissioner owns the land, buildings and other assets used by the 
Force and therefore these are shown in the Balance Sheet included in the 
Statement of Accounts document produced by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 
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•  Notes to the financial statements are also included that set out the 
Accounting Policies used as the basis of preparing the financial statements 
and provide further information which is required by the Code of Practice. 


• A Movement in Reserves Statement is required as part of the Code and 
this would show the movement in the year on reserves held by the Chief 
Constable. As the Chief Constable does not hold reserves this statement is 
not required; 


• The Police Pension Fund Account is a statement that shows expenditure, 
income, assets and liabilities pertaining to Police Pensions in the year. The 
Chief Constable is responsible for administering pension schemes and for 
undertaking the appropriate maintenance and for the provision of the relevant 
accounts.   


• An Annual Governance Statement is included within this Statement of 
Accounts that sets out details of how the Chief Constable exercises 
governance over his affairs. The Statement is a statutory document which 
also includes an annual review of the adequacy of the Governance 
arrangements, and also provides assurance on the systems of internal 
control that the Chief Constable maintains. 


4.0 What these Financial Statements tell us 


4.1 All income received and collected for Policing the Dyfed Powys police area goes 
to the Police and Crime Commissioner. The Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for the Chief Constable therefore focuses on spending 
only and it shows that the Chief Constable spent £117.3 million on providing 
policing services to the Public of Dyfed Powys Police in 2016/17 which is close to 
the original budget. This is around £3.1 million more than the comparable figure 
spent in the prior financial year.  


4.2 The Statement provides a split of this figure across the twelve main service 
components. For example, it can be seen that the largest element was spent on 
Policing Neighbourhoods which accounted for £54.0 million of the total in 
2016/17. 


4.3 This Statement has been prepared on the basis of proper accounting practice 
and the requirements of the Code and this differs slightly from the budget that the 
Chief Constable is held accountable for on a day to day basis by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner which includes elements of income and also excludes some 
elements such as depreciation and movements on pension liabilities which under 
statute do not need to be financed fully in the year. 


4.4 The Balance Sheet for the Chief Constable is dominated by the long term liability 
of £1,313 million that exists in respect of future pension liabilities for police 
officers and staff. This represents the amount that the Chief Constable would 
need to set aside at the balance sheet date to cover future payments of pensions 
of all current serving and retired officers and staff.  


4.5 This figure has been calculated independently on an actuarial basis and takes 
account of future salary levels, inflation, mortality rates etc. This has risen by 
£303 million during the year predominantly due to a reduction in discount rate 
assumed which is linked to an average yield on corporate bonds of around 2.6%. 
This compares to an assumed rate of 3.6% for 2015/16. The effect of this in 
general will be a significant increase of around 25% in liabilities for the typical 
scheme. It is important to note that all current and future police pension costs will 
be paid for by Government.  
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4.6 The Balance Sheet also shows the value of uniform and other inventories held by 
the Chief Constable (£0.4 million) and amounts owing to (£0.3 million - Debtors) 
or owed by (£5.2 million - creditors) the Chief Constable at year end. A fuller 
breakdown of these amounts is shown in the notes to the accounts. 


5.0 Performance in 2016/17 against the Chief Constable’s Revenue budget 


5.1 As outlined above, the net budget that the Chief Constable is held accountable 
for on a day to day basis by the Police and Crime Commissioner is different to 
the amount that must be reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement under proper practice.  


5.2 A net budget of £91.5 million was set by Mr Christopher Salmon (the then Police 
and Crime Commissioner) for the Chief Constable for the year 2016/17 which 
incorporated a Council Tax freeze at band D and which relied upon the use of 
£3.1 million from reserves to support current spending. This was a particularly 
challenging settlement for the Chief Constable to deliver against. 


5.3 Within this baseline spending level the Force had already identified cost 
reductions of £4.029 million; roughly half of which were to be delivered in 2016/17 
against staffing budgets through modernising workforce structures and reducing 
supervisory functions and overtime; with the remainder being delivered through 
significant reductions in non- pay spending delivered through procurement and 
other cost reduction initiatives.  


5.4 The Table below sets out the final out-turn position for 2016/17 for the Chief 
Constable and compares this to the original budget.  A revised budget is also 
shown in the table that reflects additional budgets and movements processed 
during the year.  


  
Original 
Budget 


Revised 
Budget 


Actual 
Variance 


(Negative 
for Saving) 


  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Expenditure         


Chief Constable’s Office 2,291 2,214 2,014 -200 


Resources Directorate 7,579 7,623 8,127 504 


Legal and Compliance Directorate 1,753 1,753 1,757 4 


Finance Directorate 5,941 5,917 5,752 -165 


Neighbourhoods 48,036 47,935 47,542 -393 


Investigations 21,836 22,391 22,887 496 


Scientific Support 1,763 1,808 1,491 -317 


Criminal Justice 1,416 1,182 1,111 -71 


Professional Standards 959 968 1,021 53 


Staff Associations 184 187 189 2 


Central Budget & Income 2,678 2,568 2,092 -476 


Contribution from Reserves -3,052 -3,072 -2,509 563 


Total Budget – Force  91,384 91,474 91,474 0 
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5.5 It can be seen that a net increase in budget of £90K was approved in the year. 
This was in respect of the custody - appropriate adult services. In addition there 
are some significant savings, spending pressures and variations that were 
agreed during the year as a result of resource prioritisation decisions taken by the 
Chief Constable and local budget holders. The net impact of these is shown in 
the right hand column of the above table. 


5.6 A brief explanation of the main reasons for the variances in budget for 2016/17 is 
provided below: 


i. Chief Constable’s Office: In total, an under spend of £200K was achieved 
against the Chief Constable’s Office budget predominantly due to savings 
achieved against the Force-wide police officer ill-health retirement budget 
during the year which is managed by the Office. 


ii. Resources Directorate: The Resources Directorate incorporates Estates, 
Business Support Unit, People’s Services and Continuous Improvement 
Departments. In total, the Directorate overspent against the original 
budget by £504K. The Force experienced some significant cost pressures 
as a result of the implementation of the Living Wage in respect of Cleaning 
Contracts (£100K) and some payments of historic rates on collaborative 
buildings (£165K). In addition, the Force decided to employ or post 
additional staff on a temporary basis (£355K) to the Directorate to meet 
project and processing backlog pressures that emerged during the year. 
Additional income was received of £-116K across Estates and Business 
Support headings. 


iii. Legal and Compliance Directorate: The Force incurred some additional 
temporary officers and staff costs against the original budget set for this 
Directorate (£228K) to meet some pressing processing requirements 
however this was offset by additional income and reductions in external 
legal expenses incurred during the year. 


iv. Finance Directorate: This Directorate encompasses the Corporate 
Finance, Fleet, ICT and Procurement Departments of the Force. Additional 
staffing costs of £228K were agreed during the year to progress ICT 
project work which was offset by significant savings against fuel, other 
non-pay areas and additional income in respect of the sale of vehicles.  


v. Policing Neighbourhoods: This heading encompasses all spending 
incurred on local policing as well as Specialist Operational Support, 
Communications Centre and Offender Management functions. Officer 
salary budgets were £57K lower than the level anticipated in the budget 
however overtime overspent by £239K due to a number of significant 
operational challenges. Some significant savings were experiences 
against police staff roles, fuel costs and income which have contributed to 
a net under spend against this heading. 


vi. Investigations: The Force invested in additional capacity during the year 
into cyber-crime capabilities and into Investigative Units working to protect 
vulnerable children and adults which were funded from recurring savings 
generated by the Force through its “Spending Wisely” programme. The 
Force also incurred additional in-year overtime costs as a result of staff 
shortages, major operations and payments in respect of historic on-call 
working in compliance with Police Regulations. The Force also incurred 
additional costs in relation to the provision of medical support at its 
Custody Suites. 
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vii. Scientific Support Department: The significant underspend against this 
heading occurred against forensic and other non-pay budgets due to 
collaborative procurement savings and lower than anticipated volume 
levels in respect submissions. 


viii. Criminal Justice Department: A non-recurring under spend against the 
budget of £71K occurred predominantly against non-pay and income 
headings. 


ix. Professional Standards Department: A non-recurring over spend against 
the budget of £53K occurred against non-pay and ICT headings which 
were funded from savings made elsewhere in the Force. 


x. Staff Associations: The small overspend occurred in respect of premises 
cost headings. 


xi. Central Budget and Income: An under spend of £476K was experienced 
against this centrally managed spending and income heading. This was 
predominantly due to additional income from escort duties in respect of 
windfarms. Savings arising in year against staffing budgets were also 
recorded against these headings which were largely netted off by 
corresponding additional payments against collaboration projects for the 
year. 


5.8 In respect of day-to-day revenue spending, a transfer from reserves of £2.5 million 
was required in 2016/17 which compares to an original budgeted figure of £3.1 
million. A sum of £3.5 million will be transferred from reserves to fund capital 
expenditure for the year which is lower than planned due to capital scheme slippage. 


5.9 The final reserves position for the Commissioner shows a figure of £27.3 million held 
as at 31st March 2017 which incorporates a sum of £16.1 million to support future 
capital budget commitments, a general reserve of £4.5 million for unforeseen events 
and a sum of £6.7 million that is required to fund predicted future MTFP revenue 
contributions and deficits. 


6 Impact of the current economic climate on the Chief Constable 


6.1 Pensions Reform 


6.1.1 In March 2011, Lord Hutton was commissioned by the government to conduct an 
independent review into the future of public service pensions. As the cost of 
pensions has increased by a third in the last 10 years, he concluded that the 
existing scheme designs were not sufficiently robust to be sustainable. 


6.1.2 The Government has introduced a new Local Government Pension Scheme from 
April 2014 and a new Police Pension Scheme was implemented from April 2015. 
The key changes are: 


 A move from final salary to a Career Average Revalued Earnings scheme 


 The normal pension age will be 60 for police officers, whilst for police staff 
the normal pension age will be linked to the State Pension Age 


 The average member contribution will increase, with higher earners paying 
higher contributions than currently  


6.1.3 The reforms outlined above will shift the burden of cost from the employer 
(ultimately the taxpayer) to the employee, ensuring that pensions will be fairer 
and more sustainable in the future.    


6.1.4 The new Career Average Revalued Earnings Pension scheme introduced for 
Police Officers in April 2015 included transitional protection arrangements in 
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respect of officers late in service and therefore the financial impact, although 
significant for some serving officers, will take some time to flow through.  


6.2 The Chief Constable’s Budget for 2017/18 and Medium Financial Plan 


6.2.1 Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner of Dyfed Powys is responsible for allocating a budget to the Chief 
Constable and the Dyfed Powys Police Force. He is also responsible for setting 
the precept for the Force area. Home Office Police Grant and Welsh Government 
funding are all received by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 


6.2.2 The Force has been allocated a net revenue budget of £91.5 million in 2017/18 
by the Police and Crime Commissioner. This incorporates a transfer of budget of 
£3.2 million to the Commissioner in respect of Estates costs which were in 
previous years recorded and managed by the Force. 


6.2.3 This funding will enable the Chief Constable to expand operational capacity in 
terms of police officer and staff numbers overall taking account of the work 
underway through the “Spending Wisely” Programme in relation to efficiency and 
the wider programme of work being taken forward around innovation, 
improvement, workforce planning and change.  


6.2.4 The Force continues to face considerable uncertainty in relation to future 
settlements which is making the formulation of a definitive Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) challenging at this stage. The Medium Term Financial 
outlook for Dyfed Powys Police is heavily influenced by the Home Office Review 
of the funding formula which is due to report its findings in the summer. It is 
expected that general police grant settlements from government will continue on 
a downward trajectory in cash terms despite a more favourable outcome for 
policing from the Comprehensive Spending Review (2015) than was expected. 


6.2.5 On the spending side, although there has been stability in relation to pay and 


inflation cost pressures over recent years, the impact of Brexit on future costs 


and pay inflation is a further source of uncertainty. Changes in National 


Insurance rates for officers and staff have had a major impact on the cost base 


for 16/17 and 17/18 and the challenges posed by the costs of pensions continues 


to be a potential cause of concern over the medium term. 


6.2.6 At a local level, past decisions in relation to council tax freezes and reductions 


have added to financial challenges with £3million of the Force’s 2016/17 budget 


being funded from contributions from reserves which were not sustainable in the 


medium term. Alongside this, the Force has experienced significant increases in 


demand in relation to vulnerability, cyber-crime, serious/ organised crime and 


violent crime that need to be adequately resourced. 


6.2.7 In terms of its assets, capital grants are significantly short of being sufficient to 


service the replacement and maintenance of its estate and vehicles and there are 


a number of national, collaborative and local investment priorities that the Force 


must progress through the use of reserves, transformation fund bids and 


prudential borrowing. 


6.2.8 During the financial year 2016/17 the Force has conducted a significant amount 


of activity aimed at gaining a better understanding of demand for its services 


across the organisation as it has been recommended to do by HMIC. It has used 


this information to assess the capacity and capability of the Force’s workforce 
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and other assets against current and predicted future demands, emerging trends 


and risks.  


6.2.9 This work identified that a significant number of actions and the reshaping of the 


workforce was required which have been incorporated into 2017/18 budget 


allocations where these have been agreed following scrutiny by the Chief Officers 


Group. 


6.2.10 On the 27th January 2017, the Police and Crime Commissioner presented a 


Financial Model that assumed the following level of budgets for the Force 


following consultation with the Chief Constable: 


 


6.2.11 This showed a balanced net position for 2017/18 and the end of 2022/23 based 


on an assumption of a 1.4% reduction in core grant, a £5million reduction from 


the Formula Review, a signed-off efficiency plan over the period of £6.0 million 


and a 5% forward level of precept increase. Pay awards were projected to remain 


at 1% for the period of this Parliament but increase to 2% thereafter.  


6.2.12 The model also catered for the financial implications of the Capital Strategy which 


set out a future capital investment requirement of £36.6 million over the period 


with significant capital investments planned in relation to the Carmarthenshire 


Custody Project, CCTV as well as an ICT investment programme which fully 


incorporates National, collaborative and local investment priorities.  This is 


funded by the use of grants, reserves (£14 million) and prudential borrowing 


(£16.5Million). 


6.2.13 The Force has modelled this scenario further and has identified options for being 


able to negate these short term non-recurring deficits over the period by making 


adjustments to reserves, capital borrowing and spending profile assumptions.   


6.2.14 The Force is progressing further potential efficiency and re-investment 


opportunities that will be available for consideration alongside these measures as 


part of the 2018/19 and future budget setting cycles.  


6.2.15 Should all of these be implemented as set out, then the Force will have a 


balanced budget for each year until 2022/23 even allowing for a £6.6 million 


additional investment / precept reduction/ funding cut over and above those 


already catered for in the above MTFP Model over the period. 


6.2.16 This ambitious Cost Reduction Plan together with the PCCs willingness to 


increase the precept in the event of the worst case scenario coming to pass 


would be sufficient to be able to produce a balanced financial position over the 


Medium Term. 


 


Medium Term Financial Outlook - Police and Crime Panel - 27th January 2017


2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000


Budget Requirement 94,639 95,518 96,329 98,026 99,675 101,306


Projected Allocation -94,639 -94,135 -93,832 -96,232 -98,811 -101,582 


Deficit 0 1,383 2,497 1,794 864 -276 
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6.3 Value for Money 


6.3.1 Spending resources wisely remains a key priority for the Chief Constable and the 
focus of the work that has been ongoing in support of this has been to ensure 
that the resources at the disposal of the Force are channelled towards the 
delivery of strategic priorities in a way that supports the vision, mission and 
values of the Force going forward. 


6.3.2 The Force has a comprehensive Savings Plan covering the period 2016/17 to 
2022/23 and has established appropriate project management arrangements to 
deliver against this. The focus of this work is now on implementing reductions 
through collaboration, continuous improvement, income generation and further 
procurement savings. Further projects are also being implemented looking at 
demand and resourcing options across all activities of the Force. 


6.3.3 The Force has a Capital Programme that is driving some significant investment 
plans in relation to the Estates, ICT and vehicle replacements. The Capital 
Strategy reflects a planned and prioritised approach to our investments and these 
are closely linked to our priorities and focussed on efficiency and improvement.  


6.4 HMIC Profiles 2016 


6.4.1 Each autumn, HMIC produce a number of profiles that compare the budgets, 
people and operational performance of Forces in England and Wales against 
each other with a particular emphasis on Most Similar Group Forces; which for 
Dyfed Powys include the following: 


 Lincolnshire 


 Cumbria 


 Norfolk  


6.4.2 The latest dataset was received in October 2016 which was based on the 
2016/17 original budget. This is available at the following website; 


https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/our-work/value-for-money-
inspections/value-for-money-profiles/ 


6.4.3 It can be seen from this data that Dyfed Powys Police spends a considerably 
higher proportion of its budget on the ‘operational front line’ than the vast majority 
of other Forces and that this is considerably higher than those Forces in its most 
similar group. It is apparent that the vast majority of the difference between DPP 
and its Most Similar Forces is accounted for in the ‘visible’ front line element. 


6.4.4 Similarly, the position on business support costs shows that Dyfed Powys spends 
considerably less on this as a proportion of its budget than the majority of other 
Forces and significantly less as a proportion of budget than other Forces in its 
Most Similar Force grouping. This suggests a good overall baseline position for 
value for money in terms of channelling Force resources towards front line 
policing activity compared to most similar Forces. Areas for improvement have 
already been incorporated into future savings plans for 2017/18 and beyond. 


7. Policing Performance 


7.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner Election was held in May 2016 and this 
resulted in a change, with Mr Dafydd Llywelyn becoming Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys replacing Mr Christopher Salmon. Mr Mark 
Collins was appointed by the Police and Crime Commissioner as the Chief 
Constable (CC) for Dyfed Powys in October 2016; replacing the previous CC Mr 
Simon Prince. 



https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/our-work/value-for-money-inspections/value-for-money-profiles/

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/our-work/value-for-money-inspections/value-for-money-profiles/
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7.2 As at April 2016, the priorities for policing in the local area were detailed in the 
Police and Crime Plan (PCP). A PCP document was compiled by the previous 
PCC in consultation with the CC and published. This PCP had focussed on six 
priorities namely: 


 Preventing and dealing with incidents and crime 


 Protecting vulnerable people 


 Bringing people to justice 


 Enhancing access to policing services 


 Ensuring high standards of professionalism 


 Spending wisely 


7.3 These priorities have remained relevant over the course of the year and much of 
the scrutiny that has been undertaken by the PCC of the Force during 2016/17 
has focussed on these areas.  


7.4 With the election and appointment of the new PCC and CC over the course of the 


year, a new Police and Crime Plan has been agreed following significant 


consultation with the public and staff internally. The new priorities arising take 


account of the views of local people and partners as well as the PCC’s priorities 


as the elected representative. The PCC and CC also take account of Strategic 


Policing Requirements issued by the Home Secretary.  


7.5 The PCP is an important document that sets out four priorities and five key 
delivery principles for the PCC namely: 


Priorities Delivery Principles 


Keeping Communities Safe Delivering Value for Money 


Safeguarding the Vulnerable Public Engagement 


Protecting our communities Working Together 


Connecting with communities Supporting Victims 


 Equality and Fairness 
 


7.6 The CC is responsible for supporting the PCC in the delivery of the priorities set 


out in the Police and Crime Plan. His operational delivery, performance 


monitoring frameworks and financing decisions focus on these priorities. In 


addition, the CC has established the following key priorities that have arisen from 


the ideas and thoughts of staff about how we can improve and deliver the best 


policing service for our Communities. These priorities are:  


 To support and protect the most vulnerable in our communities. 


 To improve standards across the Force – doing the basics brilliantly! 


 To improve victim satisfaction and confidence in Policing. 
 


7.7 These priorities set out what the CC expects staff to be focussing on delivering 
on a daily basis; in every contact with communities, partners and stakeholders.  


7.8 The Commissioner set out a number of commitments within the Police and Crime 
Plan with regards to making data available to the public allowing them to judge 
progress made against the Plan.  An Annual Report is published by the 
Commissioner for this purpose which will be available at the following address:  


http://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/what-i-do/strategy/ 
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Statement of Responsibilities  


The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Chief Constable 
and the Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 


 


The Chief Constable’s responsibilities 


The Chief Constable is required to: 


 make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to 
secure that one of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer; 


 manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources and safeguard its assets; and 


 approve the Statement of Accounts. 


I approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2016/17. 


   
  
        


Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys   Date 


 


The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 


The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 


 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 


 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 


 complied with the Local Authority Code. 


The Chief Financial Officer has also: 


 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 


 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 


I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Chief Constable at the reporting date and of its expenditure and 
income for the year ended 31


st
 March 2017. 


 


 


    


  
           


Chief Financial Officer to the Chief Constable Date 
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Annual Governance Statement  


Introduction 
This Annual Governance Statement is a statutory document that has been prepared by 
the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys Police. It provides a high level summary of the 
Governance arrangements that have been in place for the 2016/17 financial year and 
reports on the outcome of the reviews of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control and governance that have been undertaken during the year.  It also contains 
details of the risks and gaps identified as part of this process and the actions that are 
planned in order to improve governance. The format and content of the document 
follows the CIPFA “Delivering Good Governance” framework which was amended in 
2016. 


Scope of responsibility  
The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) Election was held in May 2016 and this 
resulted in a change, with Mr Dafydd Llywelyn becoming PCC for Dyfed Powys 
replacing Mr Christopher Salmon. Mr Mark Collins was appointed by the PCC as the 
Chief Constable (CC) for Dyfed Powys in October 2016; replacing the previous CC Mr 
Simon Prince. As CC, he is responsible for maintaining the Queen‘s Peace, and has 
direction and control over the Force‘s officers and staff.  


He holds Office under the Crown, and is accountable to the law for the exercise of police 
powers, and to the PCC for the delivery of efficient and effective policing and for the 
management of resources and expenditure by the Police Force.  At all times the CC, his 
constables and staff, remain operationally independent in the service of the communities 
that they serve.  


The CC delivers operational policing in the Dyfed Powys area in accordance with the 
law and to proper standards. He has a duty to ensure that public money is safeguarded, 
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.   


Overview of Police Governance 


The CC is established under legislation as a legal entity or corporation sole in his own 
right. He has in place a governance framework that supports the effective exercise of his 
functions and for the management of risk.  


The governance framework has been in place at the Force throughout the year however 
the arrangements have been reviewed and amended as the year has progressed. The 
Force has undertaken a comprehensive review of governance arrangements internally. 
The main changes that have been implemented as a result are as follows: 


 Policing Board meetings with the PCC are held on fortnightly rather than weekly 
basis. 


 Police Accountability Board meetings with the PCC are held on a quarterly rather 
than monthly basis. 


 Since January 2017, the Force holds Chief Officer Group meetings on a weekly 
rather than on a monthly basis. 


 The Force is now holding a Force Executive Board each quarter with the first 
meeting taking place in March 2017. 


 The Commissioner has drafted a new Police and Crime Plan during the year. A 
delivery plan is being formulated by the Chief Constable which will underpin 
delivery arrangements going forward. 


An overview of the Governance Arrangements in being for the CC is shown below; 
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The Core Principles of Good Governance 


This Annual Governance Statement includes a summary of the governance 
arrangements in place for the CC for each of the seven core principles of good 
governance as identified in the revised “Delivering Good Governance Guidance notes 
for Policing Bodies in England and Wales - 2016 Edition”. 


Core Principle A – behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values and respecting the rule of law 


The Policing Protocol 2011 requires all parties to abide by the seven Nolan principles 
and these are central to the conduct and behaviour of all. The PCC handles complaints 
and conduct matters in relation to the CC and monitors complaints against officers and 
staff. All police officers, including Chief Officers, are subject to the Police Conduct and 
Performance Regulations – Police (Conduct) Regulations 2008, Police (Performance) 
Regulations 2008, Police (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2008 and the 
relevant provisions of the Police (Amendment) Regulations 2008 


The Force has a published a Code of Conduct for Police Staff which defines the 
standards of behaviour expected of staff and the disciplinary procedure which would be 
adopted should the standards not be adhered to.  Staff are made aware during their 
induction of how they are expected to conduct themselves in a professional capacity and 
the disciplinary process that they would be subjected to if these Codes were breached. 


The Force has fully embedded and embraced the “Code of Ethics” and has linked this 
directly to its vision mission and values. This work was progressed through a working 
group to ensure that this was embedded from the “ground up” within the organisation. 


Outline of Financial Governance Arrangements


Legislative Requirements


Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
Policing Protocol 2011


Police Act 1996
Financial Management Code of Practice


CIPFA Statement of Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) PCC and CC


Police and Crime 


Panel
Police and 


Crime 
Commissioner


Chief 
Constable


Chief Officer Briefings
Force Performance Arrangements


Project Management Meetings
Policy Development
Scrutiny of Budgets
Workforce Issues


Matters Requiring Decision
Papers for Policing Board


Issues to be Taken to Policing 
Board


Chief Officer's Group
Force Executive Board


Policing Board
Police Accountability BoardPanel Meetings


Police and Crime Plan 
Revenue and Capital Budgets
Commissioning Framework


Corporate Governance Group
Corporate Governance 


Framework Document
Standing orders on contracts


Financial Regulations


Joint Audit Committee
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Further work was undertaken to assess the leadership changes that are necessary to be 
implemented alongside this and to ensure that the change in culture sticks so that 
officers and staff are empowered to “do the right thing” in their dealings with the public 
and victims. This included refreshing the Force’s vision, mission and value statements. 
The “Ethics” Committee” has a direct link to the Chief Constable and receives referrals 
from officers and staff for due consideration and action. 


The Professional Standards Anti-Corruption Unit (ACU) is responsible for oversight of 
gifts and hospitality arrangements within the Force, issues gifts and hospitality guidance 
and maintains an online Gifts and Hospitality Register.  The ACU actively monitors any 
gifts and hospitality received and provides advice to officers on the realms of 
acceptability.  Professional Standards, via its Marking Plan, raises awareness of gifts 
and hospitality recording requirements. 


The Professional Standards Department has responsibility for maintaining a Business 
Interests / Notifiable Associations Policy and the Secondary Employment Policy.  This 
Policy aims to ensure that no police officer or staff member has a business interest or 
secondary employment that adversely affects or acts as a conflict of interest with their 
role in the Force. 


The Professional Standards Department records and investigates complaints made by 
members of the public about police officers and police staff.  It also investigates internal 
misconduct matters relating to police officers and coordinates investigation of on-duty 
criminal offences relating to police officers and police staff. The findings of a review of 
the Professional Standards Department were implemented during 2015/16 and some 
considerable improvements in the timeliness and completion of reviews can be 
evidenced.  The Force maintains a strong working relationship with the IPCC which has 
a wide remit in terms of investigation and complaints. 


Dyfed Powys was one of the first Forces to introduce a bespoke online system – the 
Dissatisfaction System (dis-sat) for the recording of low level dissatisfaction.  It gives 
responsibility to local policing areas to record and deal with low level dissatisfaction at 
source – this is in line with the ethos of the IPCC Statutory Guidance of ”getting things 
right first time” and it prevents matters being unnecessarily introduced into the formal 
legislative complaints process.  


The Force has a multi-departmental Learning the Lessons Working Group which is 
coordinated by the Legal and Compliance Directorate and chaired by the Deputy CC.  
The forum allows all Departments but in particular the Professional Standards 
Department, to bring forward issues where learning has been identified (e.g. through 
public complaints or conduct investigations) and whereby lessons can be promulgated 
to the Force as is necessary. 


The Force has for many years operated a “Safecall” facility which provides a phone 
based system which is run by a private company for the confidential reporting of corrupt 
or unethical behaviour. The take up in terms of usage of this facility has traditionally 
been very low as people have tended not to want to telephone on the false assumption 
that they would be talking directly to a member of staff in PSD. In addition therefore the 
Force operates a “Bad Apple” facility which provides an internal, web based system 
through which staff can raise concerns around corruption anonymously and online. 


Having such confidential whistleblowing and complaints procedures in place encourages 
staff and the public to feel confident in raising concerns and to question and act upon 
their concerns in practice.  It provides avenues for concerns to be raised in confidence 
and receive feedback on any action taken. The Force has also arranged specific training 
for staff dealing with whistle blowing issues from a QC. 
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The Force has strict rules over procurement and vetting and also supplements this with 
financial probity/ audit, anti-corruption/ probity work and legal advice to ensure that 
conflicts of interest or breaches in meeting legal requirements or standards of 
professional conduct are reported and investigated. The Force has invested in additional 
vetting capacity during the year. 


Core Principle B – ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 


The public are regularly consulted with and individuals are encouraged from all sections 
of the community to engage with, contribute to and participate in the work of the Force. 
Dyfed-Powys Police ‘Community Messaging’ (DPCM) is available Force-wide.  DCPM is 
a system which enables the Force to issue fast time messages to the public, and 
thereby enables the public to play a part in policing. 


The Force works with its local partners in collaboration across Health, Local 
Government, Fire and Rescue, and the Third Sector across a number of key strands of 
its work and attends regular meetings with them e.g. Public Service Boards. 


Victim satisfaction surveys are undertaken by interviewing a randomly selected sample 
of members of the public that have had contact with the Force as a result of a crime.  
The survey provides the Force with valuable feedback about the experiences, 
perceptions and views of victims of crime and anti-social behaviour, which is invaluable 
in shaping the services provided.  


Neighbourhood Policing Teams regularly interact with the public to consider and 
respond to their local concerns and emerging policing issues. Force Tasking Meetings 
focus resources operationally using the National Intelligence Model based upon the 
Strategic Assessment MORILE process and Police and Crime Plan priorities. A 
THRIVES (Threat, Harm, Risk, Investigation, Vulnerability, Engagement and 
Safeguarding) assessment process is applied in determining operational policing 
response requirements.  


Crime Survey for England and Wales confidence data is published quarterly by the 
PCC.  This provides an independent assessment of public perception and this is 
methodologically robust so as to be comparable to other parts of the country. The 
results of such surveys are reported to the public via quarterly reporting of progress 
against the Police and Crime Plan. 


Until recently, the PCC led in terms of strategic public consultation and engagement 
activity. This work is now done jointly by the PCC and CC with the Force investing in 
increased Corporate Communications capacity during the year.  The Force utilises the 
outcomes of public engagement and consultation exercises to inform operational 
policing delivery and broader strategic policing requirements. The PCC and CC have 
media strategies to ensure that priorities are communicated to the public. 


The Force has an Embracing Diversity Board to promote equality in its approach to 
policing and in the way it deals with its diverse workforce and population. The Dyfed-
Powys Police Independent Advisory Group (IAG) provides the valuable role of critical 
friend to the Force and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC). It is a 
forum where independent advisors can give objective advice about specific issues 
identified by the Police and the OPCC. The role of the IAG is not one of scrutiny, but 
provides a safeguard against disadvantaging any section of our communities through a 
lack of understanding, unconscious bias, ignorance or mistaken belief. The IAG consists 
of a cross-representation of the area’s diverse communities of interest, in terms of age, 
gender, gender reassignment, disability, race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, and 
Welsh language. 
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The IT Strategy recognised the potential that social media has to receive feedback from 
and provide information to the public. The Force has developed a range of engagement 
tools and is encouraging officers and staff to engage with the public on social media 
such as through Twitter, Facebook and Instagram regarding key events, to provide 
specific information or regarding operational incidents particularly where the help of the 
public is sought. The public can also rate and comment upon the services provided by 
Dyfed Powys Police online and any comments or issues are followed up and considered 
by staff and officers. 


A joint “Public Service Bureau” has been established by the CC and PCC to consider 
and respond to public feedback and concerns raised by the public on matters of service 
delivery.  


The “School Liaison Programme” provides a further mechanism for engagement and 
interaction with young people and children providing a balance between education and 
safeguarding and this is used to inform long term crime prevention and harm reduction 
strategies linked to Wellbeing of Future Generations Act priorities.  


The CC is committed to maintaining a clear, effective and robust accountability 
framework through the Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.  The Policing Board 
allows the CC to exercise his role in a transparent manner, providing a forum for 
accountability and decision making about issues central to the efficient functioning of the 
Force.  


All decisions made by Chief Officer Group and Policing Board are properly documented, 
published on the Force and OPCC websites and available for inspection at any time.  
Such a process ensures that relevant legal, financial and other considerations are 
properly recorded and considered prior to a decision being taken.  The Publication 
Scheme establishes the means by which information relating to decisions is made 
available to local people, with those of greater interest receiving the highest level of 
prominence, except where operational and legal constrains exist. 


The Force publishes details of all procurement contracts valued over £25K and 
transactions over £500 on-line and all payments made to senior staff and officers are 
published in the Annual Statement of Accounts and online on a quarterly basis. The 
Force employs 3 professionally qualified procurement staff to ensure compliance with 
lawful and transparent procurement processes as part of a Southern Wales 
Collaboration arrangement. The Force has a Freedom of Information unit that supports 
responses to specific information requests.  


The Force engages widely with its own staff through surveys, Chief Officer Roadshows 
and planned visits, staff representatives, staff networks, and its chaplaincy service. 


Core Principle C – defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social 
and environmental benefits 


As at April 2016, the priorities for policing in the local area were detailed in the Police 
and Crime Plan (PCP). A PCP document was compiled by the previous PCC in 
consultation with the CC and published. This PCP had focussed on six priorities namely: 


1. Preventing and dealing with incidents and crime 


2. Protecting vulnerable people 


3. Bringing people to justice 


4. Enhancing access to policing services 


5. Ensuring high standards of professionalism 


6. Spending wisely 
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These priorities have remained relevant over the course of the year and much of the 
scrutiny that has been undertaken by the PCC of the Force during 2016/17 has 
focussed on these areas.  


With the election and appointment of the new PCC and CC over the course of the year, 
a new Police and Crime Plan has been agreed following significant consultation with the 
public and staff internally. The new priorities arising take account of the views of local 
people and partners as well as the PCC’s priorities as the elected representative. The 
PCC and CC also take account of the Strategic Policing Requirement issued by the 
Home Secretary.  


The PCP is an important document that sets out four priorities and five key delivery 
principles for the PCC namely: 


Priorities Delivery Principles 


Keeping Communities Safe Delivering Value for Money 


Safeguarding the Vulnerable Public Engagement 


Protecting our communities Working Together 


Connecting with communities Supporting Victims 


 Equality and Fairness 
 


The CC is responsible for supporting the PCC in the delivery of the priorities set out in 


the Police and Crime Plan. His operational delivery, performance monitoring frameworks 


and financing decisions focus on these priorities. In addition, the CC has established the 


following key priorities that have arisen from the ideas and thoughts of staff about how 


we can improve and deliver the best policing service for our communities. These 


priorities are:  


 1.       To support and protect the most vulnerable in our communities. 
2.       To improve standards across the organisation – doing the basics brilliantly! 
3.       To improve victim satisfaction and confidence in Policing. 


 
These priorities set out what the CC expects staff to be focussing on delivering on a 
daily basis; in every contact with communities, partners and stakeholders.  


The Force is working with partners to meet the requirements of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Act establishes Public Services Boards (PSB) for 
each local authority area in Wales. The Members of the Board include the Local 
Authority, the Local Health Board, the Fire and Rescue Authority and Natural Resources 
Wales. The Chief Constable is an invited participant.  The role of the PSB is to improve 
the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of its area by assessing the 
state of these aspects of well-being and setting objectives that are designed to maximise 
the PSBs contribution to the well-being goals. 


The Force has a number of activities that are consistent with the principles of the Act 
including crime prevention activities e.g. offender management and school liaison and 
sustainability projects e.g. car sharing policy, cycle to work scheme, joint premises, 
energy efficiency schemes, biomass boilers, Carbon Trust feasibility studies, telematics 
in cars and a range of other policy initiatives including Welsh Language Standards. 


Core Principle D – determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes 


The PCP sets out the PCC’s and CC’s intended outcomes and the Force Control 
Strategy and service delivery plan supports the delivery of this. The Policing Board sits 
at the heart of the governance arrangements in Dyfed Powys Police. The Policing Board 
meets every two weeks and the papers focus on the above PCP Priorities. A Police 
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Accountability Board meets on a quarterly basis and focusses in more depth on one 
particular priority. This is a public meeting. The papers from this meeting flow through to 
the Police and Crime Panel meeting which scrutinises the performance of the PCC. 


The CC exercises governance over the Force predominantly through the Chief Officer 
Group and Force Executive Board.  These groups enable the CC to maintain oversight 
of operational policing matters, risks, projects, operational performance and financial/ 
VFM outcomes.  


Chief Officers receive a formal briefing once a week on key operational matters from 
senior police officers. The CC has his own Force Performance arrangements which also 
focus on PCP priorities the structure and contents of which are currently under review as 
part of a wider reconsideration of Force governance. The PCC and CC have media 
strategies to ensure that priorities are communicated to the public. 


Neighbourhood Policing Teams regularly interact with the public to consider and 
respond to their local concerns and emerging policing issues. Force Tasking Meetings 
focus resources operationally using the National Intelligence Model Based upon the 
Strategic Assessment and PCP priorities. A THRIVES (Threat, Harm, Risk, 
Investigation, Vulnerability, Engagement and Safeguarding) assessment process is 
applied in determining operational policing response requirements.  


Job description, role requirements and person specifications exist for all roles within the 
Force.  An updated Performance Development Review Framework applies to all staff 
and officers working for the CC. This sets specific objectives for each position holder in 
the Force linked to PCP priorities. Employees are appraised against these objectives 
and performance throughout the year although no Reviews have been undertaken in 
2016/17. 


The CC ensures that, when working in partnership, all employees are clear about their 
roles and responsibilities both individually and collectively, and in relation to the 
partnership and the Force. Decision making in relation to such matters are made at the 
Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.   


The Force has committed at a Strategic level to maximising the use of information 
technology to streamline processes, to better engage with the public and release 
capacity amongst officers and staff. This has included expansion of mobile data 
provision, electronic case file submission to the Crown Prosecution Service, digital 
interviewing and is currently investing further sums in body worn video and in car 
telematics. This will also enable the Force to better understand demand and channel 
scarce policing resources towards strategic priorities at a local level. 


Core Principle E – developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it 


A Performance Development Review system ensures that objectives are set, 
performance is reviewed and action plans include any training or development needs.   
The “Calon” Senior Leadership Forum is driving enhanced Leadership capacity across 
the organisation through the delivery of a specific Leadership Programme to the Force’s 
top 60 police officers and police staff leaders.  


In response to continuing financial challenges, the Force has developed a four year 
workforce plan that incorporates workforce changes resulting from the Spending Wisely 
Programme and this is directly linked to the Medium Term Financial Plan which is 
updated regularly to take account of National developments including local collaboration 
and procurement plans.  


The CC ensures that his officers and staff receive appropriate induction and that training 
and development programmes are tailored to individual needs and opportunities, linked 
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to the Performance Development Review system. A forward workforce planning 
mechanism is used to determine longer term training capacity and capability needs 
relative to future demand and priorities. 


The Force has a well-developed Coaching and Mentoring Scheme with ongoing 
collaborative delivery of ILM endorsed coaching. The Force considers a range of 
methods to attract and retain appropriate skills including transferees or an initial recruit 
programme.  


A Force Training Plan ensures that skills are developed on a continuing basis to improve 
performance including the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when 
outside expert advice is needed. The Force has also invested significantly in upskilling 
the workforce to meet emerging demands including the development of Job Families, 
multiskilling of staff through planned learning and development and the implementation 
of coaching and mentoring techniques in partnership with other public sector partners 
locally. 


Core Principle F – managing risks and performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial management 


The risk management strategy establishes how risk is embedded throughout the 
organisation, with the CC and his staff and officers all recognising that risk management 
is an integral part of their job.  The risk register is a standing agenda item on Force 
Executive Board Group meetings and this has been strengthened and improved as a 
result of an Internal Audit Review of risk management. Programme Management 
arrangements are established for all major projects in accordance with best practice and 
any significant risks or issues are escalated via Corporate Risk Management 
arrangements. Scarce ICT Development Resources are prioritised through Scrum and 
Sprint methodology which match planned developments to resources available over a 
four week cycle. 


As well as the Policing Board and Police Accountability Board arrangements set out 
above, the CC has his own performance arrangements and “County Performance and 
Tasking Meetings” which also focus on PCP priorities the structure and contents of 
which have been reviewed as part of a wider reconsideration of Force governance. 


Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC), Multi Agency Public Protection 
Arrangements (MAPPA), Offender Management arrangements and Local Safeguarding 
Boards are established to deal with the operational risks associated with dangerous 
offenders and protecting the most vulnerable children and adults. The Force has also 
established a Central Referral Unit. 


The Financial Management Code of Practice builds on the Policing Protocol and sets 
out the financial working relationship between the PCC and the CC and their CFO(s), 
having regard to the role performed by the PCC’s Chief of Staff.  The roles and 
responsibilities of the CFO(s) are set out in the Financial Management Code of Practice. 
The Corporate Governance Framework provides further details about the key roles of 
the PCC, Chief of Staff, CC and the CFO(s) and this has been in operation through the 
2016/17 financial year. 


There are legislative requirements upon the CC to appoint a suitably qualified Chief 
Finance Officer (CFO) and this has been in place throughout the year. 


There is a thorough focus on value for money (VFM) through the analysis of financial 
data e.g. HMIC VFM profiles to identify areas of high spend and resource to consider 
the extent to which resources are efficiently channelled towards delivering against PCP 
priorities. The Force has completed the implementation of the “Public First” programme 
which has reduced business support function costs and is now implementing a 
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“Spending Wisely Programme” which is focussed upon making further changes to the 
workforce including workforce modernisation of police officer roles where appropriate, a 
focus on supervisory ratios and rota revision to better align resources to demand. It also 
involves taking forward further collaboration in procurement and across a range of other 
operational and business support functions. The focus throughout this time has been to 
maintain delivery against the Force vision and PCP priorities whilst responding to the 
significant financial challenges facing the Country. 


The Force has engaged with AMs, MPs, partners, staff and external stakeholders 
including Police and Crime Panel and Joint Audit Committee members in relation to the 
Medium Term Financial outlook and formula funding issues for the Force at various 
seminars held during the year. 


Core Principle G – implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and 
audit to deliver effective accountability 


The CC is committed to a clear, effective and robust accountability framework through 
the Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.  The Policing Board allows the CC to 
exercise his role in a transparent manner, providing a forum for accountability and 
decision making about issues central to the efficient functioning of the Force.  


All decisions made by Chief Officer Group and Policing Board are formally documented, 
published on the Force and OPCC websites and available for inspection at any time.  
Such a process ensures that relevant legal, financial and other considerations are 
properly recorded and considered prior to a decision being taken.  The Publication 
Scheme establishes the means by which information relating to decisions is made 
available to local people, with those of greater interest receiving the highest level of 
prominence, except where operational and legal constrains exist. 


The Corporate Governance Framework identifies the parameters for decision-making, 
including the delegations, financial limits for specific matters and standing orders for 
contracts. These limits are embedded into the main financial system so that purchase 
orders are appropriately budgeted and approved at the appropriate level of Authority. 
The Force publishes details of all contracts over £25K and transactions over £500 on-
line and all payments made to senior staff and officers are published in the Annual 
Statement of Accounts and online on a quarterly basis. The Force employs 3 
professionally qualified procurement staff to ensure compliance with lawful and 
transparent procurement processes. 


The decision making protocol sets out principles behind how decisions are taken by, and 
on behalf of the CC and the standards to be adopted.  This ensures that those making 
decisions are provided with information that is fit for purpose – relevant, timely and 
accurate and gives clear explanations of technical issues and their implications. 


The National Decision Model is applied to spontaneous incidents or planned operations, 
by officers or staff within the Force as individuals or teams, and to both operational and 
non-operational situations. 


Internal Audit focusses on compliance with procedures and processes including 
compliance with the Corporate Governance Framework. Reporting arrangements exist 
via the Joint Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Group.  


The CC observes all specific legislative requirements placed upon him, as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular to integrate the key principles of good 
administrative law – rationality, legality and natural justice into this procedures and 
decision making processes. 
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Review of effectiveness 


The CC has responsibility for conducting at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 
of the governance framework, including the system of internal control.   The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Corporate Governance Group, managers 
within the organisation who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of 
the governance environment, the head of internal audit’s annual report and also by 
comments made by the external auditor and other review agencies and inspectorates. 


Corporate Governance Group 


The Corporate Governance Group has been delegated responsibility for undertaking the 
process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. 
The Corporate Governance Group has met four times in the last year to collate evidence 
and assess developments that could be considered to strengthen further corporate 
governance arrangements in the form of a Corporate Government Matrix, which is 
structured around the above core principles.  This matrix forms the evidence base for 
this Annual Governance Statement. 


The Group met on the1st of March and subsequently on the 12
th
 June 2017 to undertake 


an Annual Review of the Corporate Governance arrangements and concluded that good 
progress had been made in taking forward the governance framework during 2016/17 
particularly in relation to the following areas: 


 A high level post implementation assessment of “Public First” had been 


completed. 


 Work to embed the “Code of Ethics” document and the new mission, vision and 


values has been completed and leadership development work is ongoing. 


 Work to establish Force Governance around Collaboration had been completed. 


 The outstanding recommendation in relation to Business Continuity needs had 


been addressed during 2015/16 and 2016/17. 


 Work has been initiated to review Corporate Governance arrangements of the 


Force and for the PCC was continuing however good progress had been made. 


 The Force had received negative press coverage in relation to the scale of 


relocation expenses paid under the Police Authority’s previous policy in 


accordance with Police Regulations. These policies have already been amended.  


 The IPCC investigation following referral by the Force into allegations received 


against the Director of Legal and Compliance has been completed. The 


allegations relate to payments made by Dyfed Powys Police for legal services 


over a number of years to a barrister’s chamber where her then husband worked 


and concluded that there was no case to answer for misconduct.  


Set against this progress the following issues had been noted and the following actions 
were noted 


 The HMIC PEEL (Police Efficiency, Effectiveness, Leadership and Legitimacy) 


Inspection that took place in 2016 assessed the Force as “Requires 


Improvement”. Some considerable work has been undertaken during the year to 


progress action plans and to better prepare for the 2017 inspection. Delivery of 


elements of these remains in progress. 


 The Force has self-referred details of information security breaches to the 


Information Commissioner’s Office involving the unintended release of 


confidential personal data to a third party by the Force. This arose as a result of 
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human error and weaknesses in Force systems involving auto population of email 


addresses.  As a result the Force has taken steps to address these significant 


issues however a fine of £120,000 was paid in 2016/17. 


In considering the Corporate Governance Framework for 2016/17 the Force identified a 


number of areas of improvement and development that would be taken forward during 


the 2017/18 year. These are listed in the Table below. 


 
Joint Audit Committee 
Joint Audit Committee Members received training on their roles and responsibilities 
during 2016/17.  Under the terms of reference, the Joint Audit Committee is responsible 
for conducting, at least annually, a review of the governance framework, including the 
system of internal audit and the system of internal control. 


These reviews are completed and informed by the work of the Corporate Governance 
Group, internal auditors and also officers and staff within the Force, who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment.  In 
addition comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates inform this review.  


Following an external recruitment campaign to fill three vacancies on the Joint Audit 
Committee, Mr Alasdair Kenwright had been appointed for a further term and Mr Andre 
Morgan had been appointed as a member of the Joint Audit Committee as from March 
2017.  


The Joint Audit Committee met on the 29th of March 2017 to consider the Corporate 
Governance Framework and this Annual Governance Statement.  


Internal audit 


The primary role of internal audit is to give an assurance to the CC on the effectiveness 
of the controls in place to manage risks.  To this end the Internal Auditor delivers an 
annual opinion of the effectiveness of the controls reviewed by the internal audit team 
during the year.  This annual opinion, set out in the annual report of the Internal Auditor, 
is one of the key sources of evidence in support of the Annual Governance Statement.  
With reference to 2016/17 the internal auditor, TIAA Ltd expressed the following opinion; 


“I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow me to 
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Dyfed Powys 
Police's risk management, control and governance processes.  In my opinion, the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys Police has adequate and 
effective management, control and governance processes to manage the achievement 
of its objectives.” 


The Joint Audit Committee received two reports providing a limited assurance rating in 
relation to internal controls and these were in respect of the Public Service Bureau and 
Creditor Payments. All other audits conducted during 2016/17 received an overall 
assurance rating of reasonable or substantial and all of the highest priority agreed 
actions have been completed. Progress with implementing Audit recommendations is 
monitored by the Joint Audit Committee. 


External Audit 


The external auditor, the Wales Audit Office audits the financial statements of the CC 
and also reviews this Annual Governance Statement.  External audit plans and reports, 
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including the Annual Audit letter, are considered by the Joint Audit Committee at 
appropriate times in the annul cycle of meetings.  


 


Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) 


Processes for dealing with complaints against the police are governed by Acts of 
Parliament, Home Office guidance and Independent Police Complaints Commission 
(IPCC) statutory guidance. New regulations introduced in the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 prompted revisions to Home Office guidance and IPCC statutory 
guidance. Force policies and procedures have been reviewed and amended to 
accommodate these.  


Information Commissioner's Office 


The Information Commissioner's Office is an independent body set up to promote 
access to official information and to protect personal information. The Information 
Commissioner's Office ensures compliance by helping the Force understand what the 
Data Protection Act, Freedom of Information Act and related issues mean and advises 
us on how to protect personal information. 


Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 


The role of the HMIC is to inspect policing in the public interest and promote 
improvement in policing to make everyone safer.  HMIC also provides advice and 
support to the tripartite partners (Home Secretary, PCC and Forces) and play an 
important role in the development of future leaders.  


During 2016/17, the Force experienced a significant level of HMIC Inspection activity. 
The Police Effectiveness, Efficiency, Leadership and Legitimacy Programme have all 
reported with the Force being graded as “Requiring Improvement” overall and against 
each area. 


HMIC Inspection activity does provide an important level of governance and assurance 
over the management of the Force, but the busy pace of Inspection activity over the last 
year has resulted in the Force putting in place additional arrangements to co-ordinate 
and manage all HMIC related work within the Force.  The Chief Constable and Police 
and Crime Commissioner have committed to Complete the Areas for Improvement 
included in HMIC PEEL inspections and work towards improving the grading across the 
four strands to at least good over coming years. 


HMIC reports are sent to the CC for consideration and appropriate action.  HMIC, 
working, alongside the Wales Audit Office play a key role in informing the PCC and the 
public on the operational efficiency and effectiveness of the Force and, in so doing, 
facilitate the accountability of the CC to the public. Updates and significant actions 
undertaken as a result of the HMIC activities are reported and monitored through the 
Chief Officer’s Group and the Joint Audit Committee.  


Significant governance issues and actions 


The Corporate Governance Framework was fully updated early in 2015/16 and this 
completed the action that was outstanding from the 2014/15 Annual Governance 
Statement.  The CC has concluded that the governance framework was adequate in 
terms of the 2016/17 year however has recognised that it is in need of review and 
updating in the light of recent developments and the election of a new PCC. 


The Force has been advised on the implications of the results of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework by the Corporate Governance Group, the 
Joint Audit Committee and the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose. 
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The areas already addressed during the year and those to be specifically addressed 
with new actions planned to strengthen these arrangements further are outlined below. 


 


Governance area Action 


Core Principle A – Behaving with integrity, 
demonstrating commitment to ethical 
values and respecting the rule of law 


Consider determining how well 
understood the Code of Ethics referral 
process is and reporting mechanism for 
feedback 


Core Principle A – Behaving with integrity, 
demonstrating commitment to ethical 
values and respecting the rule of law 


Ensure that ethics and integrity are 
reinforced through the new PDR 
process 


Core Principle B – ensuring openness 
and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 


Consider establishing a Professional 
Reference Group of internal staff to 
advise the Chief Constable in relation to 
policies and matters in development 


Core Principle B – ensuring openness 
and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 


Finalise a Corporate Communications 
Strategy and utilise Community Profiling 
tools 


Core Principle C – defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits 


Consider sustainable development 


principles for all key developments as 


part of a new front door process for 


ideas, business cases and future 


planning 


Core Principle D – determining the 
interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes 


Embed the PCP delivery plan into the 


organisation through appropriate 


governance arrangements including 


performance structures 


Core Principle E – developing the entity’s 


capacity, including the capability of its 


leadership and the individuals within it 


Create a repository of staff skills and 


qualifications and finalise the 


Leadership and Wellbeing Strategy. 


Implement the Transformational 


Leadership Programme 


Core Principle F – managing risks and 
performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial 
management 


Complete the Historic Areas for 
Improvement included in HMIC PEEL 
inspections to improve the grading 
across the four strands. 


Core Principle G – implementing good 


practices in transparency, reporting and 


audit to deliver effective accountability 


Establish and publish a plan of our own 
audit of processes and systems and 
compliance testing. Link corporate 
governance action plan to risk register. 
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Declaration 


We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address 
the need for improvements that were identified in our reviews of effectiveness over the 
year and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual 
review. 


Signed: Signed: Signed: 


   


   


   


Mark Collins Edwin Harries Darren Davies 


Chief Constable 


Date: 


Chief Finance Officer 


Date: 


Deputy Chief Constable 


Chair of the Corporate 
Governance Group 


Date: 
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Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


   
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 


 Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys; and 


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


for the year ended 31
st
 March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet. 
The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 
Account and the Net Assets Statement.  
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2016-17 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor 
General for Wales 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts set out on page 12, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the statement of accounts, including the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 
Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that 
the accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and the 
Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting 
statements and related notes. 
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report 
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related 
notes and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing 
the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I 
consider the implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 
In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 


Powys as at 31
st
 March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year then 


ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund  


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  
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 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31
st
 March 2017 and of the amount and disposition of 


the fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 


Opinion on other matters 
In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 
accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  


Certificate of completion of audit 
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 
Powys and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements 
of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit 
Practice. 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of        
Huw Vaughan Thomas       
Auditor General for Wales      
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff 
CF11 9LJ 
25


th
 July 2017   
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  


This Statement has been completed in accordance with the new reporting requirements introduced by 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. The 2015/16 
figures have been restated accordingly. 


 


2015/16 (Restated)  2016/17 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


0 0 0 
Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 


 
0 0 0 


1,783 0 1,783 Chief Constable’s Office  2,289 0 2,289 


7,645 0 7,645 
Central 
Budgeting/Finance 


 
6,694 0 6,694 


9,761 0 9,761 Resources Directorate  9,516 0 9,516 


2,036 0 2,036 
Legal and Compliance 
Directorate 


 
2,085 0 2,085 


5,676 0 5,676 Finance Directorate  6,345 0 6,345 


59,421 0 59,421 Neighbourhoods  53,996 0 53,996 


19,383 0 19,383 Investigations  25,710 0 25,710 


1,650 0 1,650 Scientific Support  1,578 0 1,578 


1,512 0 1,512 Criminal Justice  1,310 0 1,310 


1,057 0 1,057 Professional Standards  1,134 0 1,134 


257 0 257 Staff Associations  212 0 212 


4,030 0 4,030 
Holding Accounts/Self- 
Funded areas 


 
6,460 0 6,460 


114,211 0 114,211 Cost of Services  117,329 0 117,329 


0 0 0 
Other operating 
expenditure 


 
0 0 0 


34,076 0 34,076 
Financing and 
investment income and 
expenditure 


 


7 35,913 0 35,913 


0 (148,287) (148,287) 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 


 
0 (153,242) (153,242) 


148,287 (148,287) 0 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
153,242 (153,242) 0 


  (66,541) Actuarial (gains)/losses 
on pension 
assets/liabilities 


   271,423 


  66,541 Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


   (271,423) 


  0 Other comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 


   0 


  0  Total comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 


   0 
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Balance Sheet 


31
st


 March 2016   Note 31
st


 March 2017 


£’000   £’000 


0 Property, plant & equipment  0 


0 Investment property  0 


0 Intangible assets  0 


0 Assets held for sale  0 


1,011,919 Long term debtors 19 1,312,506 


1,011,919 Long term assets  1,312,506 


0 Short term investments  0 


368 Inventories 9 429 


339 Short term debtors 10 291 


0 Cash and cash equivalents  0 


(707) Intra-group transfer  (720) 


0 Current assets  0 


0 Bank Overdraft  0 


0 Short term borrowing  0 


(5,607) Short term creditors 11 (5,180) 


0 Provisions  0 


5,607 Intra - group transfer  5,180 


0 Current liabilities  0 


0 Long term creditors  0 


0 Long term borrowing  0 


(1,011,919) Other long term liabilities 19 (1,312,506) 


0 Provisions  0 


0 Grant receipts in advance  0 


(1,011,919) Long term liabilities  (1,312,506) 


0 Net assets/liabilities  0 


0 Usable reserves  0 


0 Unusable reserves  0 


0 Total reserves  0 
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Police Pension Fund  


Chief Constable Fund Account  Chief Constable 


2015/16   2016/17 


 £’000   £’000 £’000 


  Contributions receivable:    


(10,348)   Employer contributions  (10,236)  


(168)   Other income  (373)  


(5,865)  Officers’ contributions  (5,770)  


 (16,381)    (16,379) 


(772)  Transfers in from other pension funds  78  


  Benefits payable:    


22,557   Pensions  23,273  


7,281   Commutations and lump sum 
retirement benefits 


 7,286  


 29,066    30,637 


  Payments to and on account of 
leavers: 


   


(476)   Transfers out to other pension 
funds 


 (58)  


0   Refunds of contributions  5  


319   Other expenditure  20  


 (157)    (33) 


 12,528 Net amount payable for the year   14,225 


 (12,528) Additional contribution from the 
Police Fund (re Home Office grant) 


  (14,225) 


 0    0 


 


Chief 
Constable  


Net Assets Statement Chief 
Constable  


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


 Current Assets  


49 Deficit due 0 


49  0 


   


 Current Liabilities   


(49) Surplus owed 0 


(49)  0 


   


0  0 


 


Details on how the Police Pension Fund is administered are included in the 
Explanatory Foreword and in the Accounting Policies Section of these accounts. 


Funding Shortfall to be met by Police Fund 


In 2016/17 Employer Police Officer Pension scheme contributions reduced from 
24.2% to 21.3%. The difference of 2.9% has been retained by the exchequer 
which represents the funding shortfall to be met by Police Fund. 
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Notes to the Accounts 


1. Accounting policies  


 
General Principles  
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Chief Constable’s transactions for 
the 2016/17 financial year and the position at the year-end of 31st March 2017. 
The Chief Constable is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by 
the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended), which require 
them to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These 
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2016/17, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current 
assets and financial instruments.  
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates 
and Errors  
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies 
or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do 
not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information 
about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the financial 
position or financial performance of the Chief Constable. Where a change is 
made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had 
always been applied.  
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received. In particular:  


 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption 
they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 


 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made. 


 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is 
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance 
of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that 
might not be collected. 
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Overheads and Support Services  
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in 
accordance with the Chief Constable’s arrangements for accountability and 
financial performance.  
 
Exceptional Items  
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is 
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (CIES) or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how 
significant the items are to an understanding of the financial performance of the 
Chief Constable.  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date  
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can 
be identified:  
 


 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events.  


 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – 
the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where 
a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  


 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in 
the Statement of Accounts.  
 
Inventories  
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 2 states that Inventories should be measured at the 
lower of cost and net realisable value. The policy does not therefore comply with 
IAS 2 but the difference is not material.  
 
Employee benefits  
 
Benefits Payable During Employment  
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave 
and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current 
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
the employees render service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (including time off in lieu and flexi leave) earned by employees but 
not taken before the year-end, which employees can carry forward into the next 
financial year. The accrual is made at salary rates applicable in the following 
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The 
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then 
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday 
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday 
absence occurs.  
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Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief 
Constable to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date 
or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy or early retirement and 
are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Chief Constable is 
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or 
group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Chief Constable to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid 
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end.  
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to one of two 
separate pension schemes relevant to them: 


 Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension 
Fund  


 Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire 
County Council.  


Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Chief Constable.  
This Police Officer Pension scheme is “unfunded” which means that no 
investment assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, 
and therefore no provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is 
included in the balance sheet. The relevant service is charged with the 
employer’s contributions payable to Police Officer Pensions in the year.  
Information on the long term pensions liability can be found in Note 19.  
 
Local Government Pension Scheme  


The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:  


The liabilities attributable to the Chief Constable are included in the Balance 
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment 
of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee 
turnover rates etc. and projections of earnings for current employees.  


Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 
3.6% (based on the indicative rate of return on a high quality corporate bond).  


The assets attributable to the Chief Constable are included in the Balance Sheet 
at their fair value:  


- Quoted securities – current bid price 


- Unquoted securities – professional estimate  


- Unitised securities – current bid price  
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- Property – market value.  


The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following 
components:  


Service cost comprising: 


 Current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year – allocated in the appropriate Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the 
employees worked.  


 Past service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme 
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned 
in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part 
of Non Distributed Costs. 


 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net interest 
expense for the Chief Constable – the change during the period in the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time 
charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated 
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit 
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in 
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of 
contribution and benefit payments.  


Re-measurements comprising: 


 The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on 
the net defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve 
as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 


 Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last 
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their 
assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure. 


 Contributions paid to the pension fund: cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense.  


In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Chief Constable to the 
pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated 
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and 
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners 
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative 
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial 
impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits 
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.  
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Discretionary Benefits 
The Chief Constable also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of 
retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to 
arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of 
the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are 
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
 
Leases  
The Chief Constable as Lessee (Operating Leases) 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from the 
use of leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a straight line 
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of 
payments (e.g. where there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the 
lease). 


 


2. Previous Period Adjustments 


Note 8 – Financial Instruments  


Following the completion of this note for the 2016/17 closure exercise, the figure entered 
within the actuarial gain part of the financial liabilities section for 2015/16 was incorrect. 


An adjustment has been made in respect of this note in 2015/16 but it has had no 
impact upon the balance sheet as this was correct. 


 


Previous 
Amount 


Carrying 
amount 


31
st


 March 
2016 


£’000 


Previous 
Amount 


Fair value 


 


31
st


 March 
2016 


£’000 


Financial Liabilities Restated 
Amount 


£’000 


Difference 


£’000 


 


(1,011,819) (1,011,819) Liability relating to Defined Benefit 
Pension Scheme 


(1,011,819) 0 


(100) (100) Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension 
assets/liabilities 


(66,541) (66,441) 


(1,266) (1,266) Trade Payables (Creditors) (1,266) 0 


(1,013,185) (1,013,185) Total Financial Liabilities (1,079,626) 0 


 


3. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have  not yet been 
adopted 


The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information relating 
to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new accounting 
standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.  The following changes 
will be required from 1 April 2017: 


 Amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme transaction costs: 
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- the total amount of transaction costs of all major asset classes, including an 
explanation to enable users to understand the nature of the transaction costs and 
how they arise for different types of investment; 


 


 Amendment to the reporting of investment concentration 


- Details of any single investment exceeding 5% of the net assets available for 
benefits 
 


In the Financial Statements for 2017/18, the effect of the changes will be assessed and 
where necessary, the comparative figures restated, however, it is anticipated that the 
changes will not have a material impact. 
 


4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies  


Police Pension Legal Challenge - Career Average Revalued Earnings.  


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the Home 
Office, initially had 14 claims lodged against them with the Central London Employment 
Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising from the 
Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.  Claims of unlawful 
discrimination have also been made in relation to the changes to the Judiciary and 
Firefighters Pension regulations. In the case of the Judiciary claims the claimants were 
successful and in the Firefighters case the respondents were successful. Both of these 
judgements are subject to appeal, the outcome of which may determine the outcome of 
the Police claims. The Tribunal has yet to set a date for a preliminary or substantive 
Police hearing.  Legal advice suggests that there is a strong defence against the Police 
claims.  The quantum and who will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are 
partially or fully successful.  For these reasons, no provision has been made in the 
2016/17 Accounting Statements. 


Undercover Policing Inquiry 


On 12 March 2015 the then Home Secretary established an inquiry into undercover 
policing under the Inquiries Act 2005. The purpose of this inquiry is to investigate and 
report on undercover police operations conducted by English and Welsh police forces in 
England and Wales since 1968. The inquiry will examine the contribution undercover 
policing has made to tackling crime, how it was and is supervised and regulated, and its 
effect on individuals involved – both police officers and others who came into contact 
with them. 


The work of the Inquiry ranges across the full scope of undercover policing work and will 
look at the work of the Special Demonstration Squad, the National Public Order 
Intelligence Unit and police forces across England and Wales. The inquiry will also 
examine whether people may have been wrongly convicted in cases involving 
undercover police officers, and refer any such cases to a separate panel for 
consideration. 


At this stage, the inquiry is not far enough progressed to establish whether or not the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys will have a liability.  


 


5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 
made by the Chief Constable about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  
Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other 



http://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/March%202015/12%20March%202015/31.HOME-Undercover-policing.pdf
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relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, 
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet at 31
st
 March 2017 for which there is 


a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 


Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 


Pensions 
liability 


Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at 
which salaries are projected to increase, changes 
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 
returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of 
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide expert 
advice about the assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net pensions liability of 
changes in individual assumptions can be 
measured.  For instance, an increase of 
0.1% in pay award for the police officer 
pension scheme would result in an 
increase to the pension liability of £1.080 
million. 


6. Events after the balance sheet date  


There are no events after the balance sheet date that would affect the Chief Constable’s 
financial position for 2016/17. 


7. Financing and investment income and expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from involvement in 
financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest. 
 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


0 Interest payable and similar charges 0 


34,076 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 35,913 


0 Interest receivable and similar income 0 


0 Investment Properties income and expenditure 0 


0 Specific capital grants available during year 0 


34,076 Total 35,913 


 


8. Financial Instruments 


A Financial Instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such 
as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial 
instruments. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Chief 
Constable and can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial 
assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity 
that are potentially unfavourable to the Chief Constable. 
The Chief Constable’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are 
measured at amortised cost and comprised: 


 


 Trade Payables (Creditors), 


 Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme. 
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Financial Assets 
A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Chief 
Constable that is represented by cash or other instruments or a contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset. The financial assets held by the Chief 
Constable during the year are held under the following classification: 


 Loans and receivables (financial assets that have fixed or determinable 
payments and not quoted in an active market) comprising: 


 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 


 


Financial Instruments – Balances 


The financial assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the 
following categories: 


*An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts based on the net current asset position as the Chief Constable is 
unable to hold cash balances. 


**An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts for the pensions liability related to the Chief Constable’s staff. 


Income, Expense, Gains and Losses  


No gains and losses have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in relation to financial instruments. 


Fair Values  


The Chief Constable’s long-term financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at 
amortised cost.  


The 2010 Code of Practice requires the Fair Values of these assets and liabilities to be 
disclosed for comparison purposes.  Fair Value is defined in Financial Reporting 
Standard 26 (FRS 26) as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  
The Fair Value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the transaction 
price.  


 


 


 


 


 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st
  March 2016 31


st
  March 2017 31


st
  March 2016 31


st
  March 2017 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Trade Payables (Creditors)* 0 0 (1,266) (2,042) 


Liability related to Defined Benefit 
Pension Scheme** 


(1,011,819) (1,312,684) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (1,011,819) (1,312,684) (1,266) (2,042) 


Loans and receivables:     


Trade Receivables (Debtors)* 0 0 338 291 


Total Financial Assets 0 0 338 291 
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Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st
   March 
2016 


31
st
 March 2016 


31
st
   March 
2017 


31
st
 March 


2017 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:   


(1,011,819) (1,011,819) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension 


Scheme 
(1,312,684) (1,312,684) 


(66,541) (66,541) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension 


assets/liabilities 
271,424 271,424 


(1,266) (1,266) Trade Payables (Creditors) (2,042) (2,042) 


(1,079,626) (1,079,626) 
Total 


Financial Liabilities 
(1,043,302) (1,043,302) 


  Financial Assets:   


338 338 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 291 291 


338 338 Total Financial Assets 291 291 


Financial Liabilities 


The liability related to the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme has been assessed on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be 
payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels 
etc.  The fair value of this liability at the Balance Sheet date is therefore the same as the 
carrying amount. 
 
For trade payables, the carrying value has been used as a reasonable approximation of 
fair value therefore the fair value at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the carrying 
amount. 


 
Financial Assets 
For trade receivables, the carrying value has been used as a reasonable approximation 
of fair value therefore the fair value at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the 
carrying amount. 


 


9. Inventories 


 Franking and 
uniform consumable 


stores 


Fleet maintenance 
materials 


Total 


 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


322 292 80 76 402 368 


Purchases 316 392 247 196 563 588 


Recognised as an expense in the 
year 


(336) (329) (251) (198) (587) (527) 


Written off balances (10) 0 0 0 (10) 0 


Reversals of write offs in 
previous year/average price 
adjustment 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year 
end 292 355 76 74 368 429 
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10. Short-term Debtors  


31
st


 March 2016  31
st


 March 2017 


£’000  £’000 


0 Central Government bodies 0 


3 Local authorities 0 


0 Other Police Bodies 0 


0 Other Public Bodies 1 


327 Limited Companies 290 


9 Other entities and individuals 0 


0 Value added tax claims 0 


339 Total 291 


 


11. Short-term Creditors 


31
st


 March 2016  31
st


 March 2017 


£’000  £’000 


379 Central Government bodies 73 


692 Local authorities 622 


1,848 Other Police Bodies 2,424 


36 Other Public Bodies 19 


1,400 Limited Companies 1,110 


1,252 Other entities and individuals 932 


5,607 Total 5,180 


 


12. Agency services 


Pension services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council  


The council administer the Local Government and Police Pension schemes and levy an 
annual fee based on the number of active and deferred members, as well as actual 
pensioners. A cost is also incurred for maintenance and the annual benefit statements. 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


82 Expenditure incurred in administering the Police and Local 
Government Pension Schemes 


81 


82 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 81 


13. Collaborative Arrangements  


Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop 
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former Police 
Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven by the need to 
satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes of the Regional Strategic 
Assessment of threats, risks and harm to the southern region of Wales.  


 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for 
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met.  As part of this, he will look to work in 
collaboration with other Commissioner’s and forces to provide the most effective service 
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possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the Police Act 1996, as 
amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.  
 
The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner and 
Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled Budgets’ with 
agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to time, and certain 
Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively hosted by the 
Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the four police forces in 
Wales.  
  
The CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration requires the Commissioner and 
Force to assess all collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint operations 
or joint ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure income, assets and 
liabilities in their individual accounts.  
 
The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements are 
provided below:  
 
2016/17 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 4,792 459 4,551 4,121 1,791 10,358 26,072 


Non Pay Expenditure 1,700 27 358 1,174 381 1,366 5,006 


Gross Expenditure 6,492 486 4,909 5,295 2,172 11,724 31,078 


Specific Grant Income (6,471) (486) (4,909) (2,706) (500) 0 (15,072) 


Income (21) 0 0 (55) (55) 0 (131) 


Total Income & Grants 
(6,492) (486) (4,909) (2,761) (555) 0 (15,203) 


(Surplus) or Deficit  - to be 
funded from Force 
Contributions as follows: 


0 0 0 2,534 1,617 11,724 15,875 


Force Contributions (Net):        


Dyfed-Powys 0 0 0 (528) (345) (3,331) (4,204) 


Gwent 0 0 0 (674) (441) (2,854) (3,969) 


North Wales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


South Wales 0 0 0 (1,332) (831) (5,539) (7,702) 


Total Force Contributions 
0 0 0 (2,534) (1,617) (11,724) (15,875) 
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The tables below show each Force’s contribution towards Expenditure and Income:  


 


Note 1: North Wales Police are basing their costs and income on actual costs rather than an allocation on Welsh 
population or agreed Financial Contribution.  Furthermore, they are not included in the Regional Organised 
Crime Unit as they contribute to the North West region of England and North Wales. Also they do not contribute 
towards  the Regional Task Force and Joint Firearms Unit which operate in the Southern Welsh Forces.  


 


Each Police and Crime Commissioner may hold their own reserves for collaborative purposes. 


 


 
 
 
 


2016/17 Counter 
Terrorism 


Intelligence 
Unit 


Counter 
Terrorism 
Specialist 
Advisors 


Counter 
Terrorism 


Port/Dedicated 
Security 


Regional 
Organised 
Crime Unit 


Regional 
Task           
Force 


Joint 
Firearms 


Unit 


TOTAL 


Service 
Classification 
and agreed 
basis of 
apportionment 


National 
Policing 


(Population 
– national 


benefit 
basis) 


National 
Policing 


(Population 
– national 


benefit 
basis) 


National 
Policing 


(Population – 
national benefit 


basis) 


Intelligence/ 


Investigation 
(Population 
– national 


benefit 
basis) 


Intelligence 
(Agreed 


Financial 
Contribution 


– local 
delivery) 


Specialist 
Operations 


(Agreed 
Financial 


Contribution 
– local 


delivery) 


 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Dyfed-Powys 1,081 81 513 1,136 456 3,475 6,742 


Gwent 1,219 91 578 1,281 543 2,817 6,529 


North Wales 1,455 109 2,518 Note 1 Note 1 0 4,082 


South Wales 2,737 205 1,300 2,878 1,173 5,432 13,725 


Gross 
Expenditure   6,492 486 4,909 5,295 2,172 11,724 31,078 


Dyfed-Powys (1,081) (81) (513) (592) (116) 0 (2,383) 


Gwent (1,219) (91) (578) (668) (139) 0 (2,695) 


North Wales (1,455) (109) (2,518) Note 1 Note 1 0 (4,082) 


South Wales (2,737) (205) (1,300) (1,501) (300) 0 (6,043) 


Total Income & 
Grants  


(6,492) (486) (4,909) (2,761) (555) 0 (15,203) 
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14.  Officers’ remuneration  


Senior employees - The remuneration paid to the Chief Constable’s senior employees is as follows: 


      


Salary 
(including fees 


and 
allowances) 


Benefits in 
kind - lease 


cars 


Benefits in 
kind - 


relocation 
expenses 


Pay in Lieu of 
Notice / Exit 


Payment 


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributions 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


          Note 1         


  Year Note £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 


Chief Constable  
2016/17  2 91,537 2,973 0 0 94,510 0 94,510 


2015/16   127,465 4,192 0 0 131,657 27,517 159,174 


Chief Constable 
2016/17  3 39,894 757 0 0 40,651 9,420 50,071 


2015/16   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Deputy Chief Constable  
2016/17 4 67,927 0 0 0 67,927 15,291 83,218 


2015/16 5 115,856 3,501 0 0 119,357 27,034 146,391 


Deputy Chief Constable 
2016/17 6 10,988 217 0 0 11,204 2,285 13,490 


2015/16  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


T/Deputy Chief Constable 
2016/17 7 105,041 5,591 895 0 111,526 24,775 136,301 


2015/16 7 44,558 1,570 0 0 46,128 10,783 56,911 


Assistant Chief Constable 
2016/17 8 10,162 574 0 0 10,737 2,459 13,196 


2015/16 8 36,669 2,382 30,139 0 69,190 8,874 78,064 


T/Assistant Chief Constable 
2016/17 9 103,422 3,706 0 0 107,128 25,028 132,156 


2015/16  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


T/Assistant Chief Constable 
2016/17  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


2015/16 10 64,014 1,846 0 0 65,860 13,953 79,813 


Director of Finance / Chief 
Financial Officer to the Chief 
Constable 


2016/17   69,903 0 0 0 69,903 8,109 78,012 


2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


Director of Resources 2016/17   69,903 0 0 0 69,903 8,109 78,012 
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 2015/16 
 


68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


Director of Legal and 
Compliance 


2016/17 11 73,934 0 0 95,301 169,235 0 169,235 


2015/16   69,498 0 0 0 69,498 0 69,498 


Total 2016/17     642,710 13,818 895 95,301 752,724 95,475 848,199 


Total 2015/16     594,074 13,491 30,139 0 637,704 103,939 741,643 
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Note 1: Under the Chief Officer Relocation Package Policy, Chief Officers who relocate their main 
home to the force area are entitled to receive reimbursement of their relocation expenses. This is 
in accordance with Police Regulations. 
 
Note 2: The Chief Constable retired on 17/12/16. The annualised salary for this post in 
2016/17 was £125,853. 
 


  Note 3: The new Chief Constable was appointed on the 18/12/16.  The annualised salary for this 
post in 2016/17 was £135,324. 
 


 Note 4: The Deputy Chief Constable retired from this seconded post on 23/10/16. The annualised 
salary for this post was £113,295. The salary cost of this post was recharged 1/3 Dyfed Powys, 
1/3 Gwent and 1/3 South Wales for 2016/17. 
 
Note 5: The Deputy Chief Constable was seconded to the role of "Deputy Chief Constable - All 
Wales" from 08/11/15 onwards. There was no change in remuneration as a result of this 
appointment. 
 
Note 6: The new Deputy Chief Constable was appointed on the 26/02/17.  The annualised salary 
for this post in 2016/17 was £113,295. 


 
Note 7: The Temporary Deputy Chief Constable was in post between 08/11/15 - 25/02/17. The 
annualised salary for this post in 2016/17 was £113,295. 
 
Note 8: The Assistant Chief Constable held this post from 01/04/15 – 07/11/15 and then reverted 
back to this post from 26/2/2017 onwards. The annualised salary for this post in 2016/17 was 
£110,148. 
 
Note 9: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was in post from 01/04/2016 onwards. 
 
Note 10: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was in post between 01/04/2015 - 27/06/2015 
and 15/11/2015 - 31/03/2016. The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £97,509. 
 
Note 11: The Director of Legal and Compliance left the organisation on 03/03/17. The annualised 
salary for this post in 2016/17 was £70,192. 
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Other employees (excludes senior officers – itemised above) 


The other Chief Constable employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for 
the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following 
amounts: 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


Number of employees  Number of employees 


4 £60,000 - £64,999* 6 


5 £65,000 - £69,999 3 


1 £70,000 - £74,999* 2 


3 £75,000 - £79,999 3 


3 £80,000 - £84,999 3 


2 £85,000 - £89,999 0 


0 £90,000 - £94,999 2 


0 £95,000 - £99,999 1 
 


  Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new 
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information.  Remuneration 
includes Basic salary, overtime, allowances and benefits in kind: 
 


a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable during the year to which the 
accounts relate 


b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s employees in post 
at 31


st
 March 2017; and 


c. the ratio of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-paragraph (b);  
 


The remuneration of the Chief Constable for 2016/17 was £137,052. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’s 
employees as at 31


st
 March 2017 was £35,772. 


The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable 
employee’s remuneration was 3.83:1. 


 


Exit Packages 


One member of staff exited the organisation during 2016/17. 


The number of exit packages per band, along with total cost of the departures 
agreed for 2016/17 and 2015/16 are set out in the table below: 


Exit package cost 
band 


2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 


Number of 
Departures agreed in 


each band 


Departure  cost 
(including payment 


in lieu of notice) 


Number of 
Departures agreed in 


each band 


Departure  cost 
(including payment 


in lieu of notice) 


£’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 1 6 0 0 


£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0 


£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 1 95 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000 + 0 0 0 0 


 1 6 1 95 
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Flexible Retirement 


The Force has recently adopted this policy and 4 police staff are currently employed 
under this policy option. Due to these early retirements, an actuarial strain has been 
applied to the Local Government Scheme which resulted in a cost of £13k to the Force.  


 


Audit Committee members 


The Commissioner and Chief Constable have appointed a Joint Audit Committee to 
provide an additional source of assurance to the Commissioner and the Chief Constable 
that systems of internal control are working effectively and that internal audit are 
operating within their Code of Practice. Payments made to these members are included 
within this note. 


The Scheme of Governance states that the Joint Audit Committee members’ expenses 
should be split equally between the Commissioner and Chief Constable. In 2016/17, 
50% of the cost of allowances and expenses paid is not material and has not been 
accounted for in the Chief Constable’s accounts. 


 


15. External audit costs 


The Chief Constable has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the 
Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-
audit services provided by the Chief Constable’s external auditors: 
 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


41 Fees payable to the Auditor General for Wales with regard to external audit services 
carried out under the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Auditor General for Wales 


39 


0 Fees payable to the Auditor General for Wales in respect of statutory inspections 0 


0 Fees payable to the Auditor General for Wales for the certification of grant claims and 
returns for the year 


0 


41 Total 39 


 


16. Related parties 


The Chief Constable is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, i.e. 
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Chief Constable 
or to be controlled or influenced by the Chief Constable.  Disclosure of these 
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Chief Constable might 
have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have secured the 
ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Chief Constable. 


Central Government 


Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Chief 
Constable; it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Chief 
Constable operates and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Chief 
Constable has with other parties.   


The Chief Constable has business relationships with Central Government Bodies, giving 
rise to income and expenditure transactions as follows:  
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2015/16  2016/17 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 764 Home Office 0 994 


0 3 Welsh Government 0 5 


 


Joint Audit Committee Members 


The Joint Audit Committee provides an additional source of assurance to the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable that systems of internal control are working 
effectively and that internal audit is operating within their Code of Practice. 


None of the Joint Audit Committee members, or parties related to them, have 
undertaken any material transactions with the Chief Constable in 2016/17.   


Senior Officers 


There were no material transactions between the Chief Constable and Senior Officers, 
or parties related to them in 2016/17.  


Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government) 


The Chief Constable has business relationships with the Precepting Bodies, giving rise 
to income and expenditure transactions as follows: 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 4,300 Carmarthenshire County Council 0 4,808 


0 139 Ceredigion County Council 0 149 


0 264 Pembrokeshire County Council 0 283 


0 197 Powys County Council 0 155 


 


Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Chief Constable 


There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Chief Constable. 


  


17. Leases 


Chief Constable as Lessee 


Finance Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any Finance Leases. 


Operating Leases 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys leases property from other property owners where 
appropriate and affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational policing 
and support. Dyfed Powys also has operating leases for plant and equipment which 
includes photocopiers.  


The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years 
are: 


 







 Single Entity Statement of Accounts 2016/17 
 
 


50 


 


31st March 2016  31st March 2017 


£’000  £’000 


168 Not later than one year 175 


416 Later than one year and not later than five years 485 


977 Later than five years 884 


1,561 Total 1,544 


 


The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
during the year in relation to these leases was: 


 


2015/16  2016/17 


£’000  £’000 


235 Minimum lease payments 217 


0 Contingent rents 0 


0 (Sublease payments receivable) 0 


235 Total 217 


 


Chief Constable as Lessor 


Finance Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any finance leases. 


Operating Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any operating leases. 
 


18. Termination benefits  


During 2016/17, 1 member of staff accepted an offer of benefits in exchange for the 
termination of employment.  


 


19.  Defined benefit pension schemes  


Participation in Pension schemes 


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Chief Constable 
makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these 
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Chief Constable has a 
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that 
employees earn their future entitlement. 


 


The Chief Constable participates in two post-employment schemes: 


 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Carmarthenshire 
County Council – this is a funded defined benefit CARE (Career Average Revalued 
Earnings) scheme, meaning that the Chief Constable and employees pay 
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions 
liabilities with investment assets. It should be noted that all staff are employed by the 
PCC, however for the majority of staff direction and control lies with the Chief 
Constable. Costs have been apportioned to reflect this. 


 The Police Officer Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded defined benefit CARE 
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(Career Average Revalued Earnings) scheme, consequently the fund has no 
investment assets. Benefits payable are funded by contributions from employers and 
employees with any difference between benefits payable and contributions 
receivable being met by the top-up grant from the Home Office via the 
Commissioner. 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when 
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. 


These costs are reversed out of the Chief Constable’s accounts into the 
Commissioner’s accounts as the Chief Constable is not responsible for holding any 
reserves. This is shown below as an intra-group transfer: 
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 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


  2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


     


Cost of services:      


 Current service cost  (4,189) (4,139) (19,508) (16,484) 


 Past service cost  0 0 (3,199) 0 


 Other  (94) (120) (0) 0 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


     


 Net interest cost  (988) (969) (33,088) (34,944) 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


 (5,271) (5,228) (55,795) (51,428) 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


     


Re-measurement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 


     


 Return on plan assets (excluding the 
amount included in the net interest 
expense) 


 (3,960) 19,987 0 0 


 Experience (gain)/loss  (0) 6,603 0 0 


 Re-measurement gains and losses 
arising on changes in demographic 
assumptions 


 0 1,743 0 0 


 Re-measurement  gains and losses 
arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 


 8,711 (35,919) 61,790 (263,838) 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


 (520) (12,814) 5,995 (315,266) 


Commissioning Costs (intra–group 
transfer) 


 520 12,814 (5,995) 315,266 


Total net cost  0 0 0 0 


Movement in Reserves Statement:      


 Reversal of net charges made to the 
Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of 
Services for post-employment 
benefits in accordance with the 
Code 


 0 0 0 0 


Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 


     


 Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme 


 0 0 0 0 


 Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme  


 0 0 0 0 


 


An intra-group transfer has been processed to the Chief Constable’s accounts, as the 
Chief Constable is not responsible for managing reserves. 


 


 







 Single Entity Statement of Accounts 2016/17 
 
 


53 


 


Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 


The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore 
assets and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief 
Constable accounts. 


The net liability arising from the defined benefit obligation: 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Present value of the defined 
benefit obligation 


(123,284) (159,043) (982,911) (1,273,413) 


Fair value of plan assets 94,376 119,772 0 0 


Net liability arising from 
defined benefit obligation 


(28,908) (39,271) (982,911) (1,273,413) 


 


The total liability recorded in the Chief Constable’s accounts is £1,312.506 million.  
Due to materiality levels no split is available between the Chief Constable’s and 
Commissioner’s accounts, therefore the figure stated above is for the Group. 


 


Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets: 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening fair value of scheme 
assets 


93,830 94,376 0 0 


Interest income 3,214 3,435 0 0 


Re-measurement gain / (loss)     


 The return on plan 
assets, excluding the 
amount included in the 
net interest expense 


(3,960) 19,987 0 0 


Contributions from employer 2,596 2,749 0 0 


Contributions from employees 
into the scheme 


1,238 1,298 0 0 


Benefits paid (2,448) (1,953) 0 0 


Other (if applicable) (94) (120) 0 0 


Closing fair value of scheme 
assets 


94,376 119,772 0 0 
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 


 


 Funded Liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: Police 
Pension Scheme 


2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening Balance at 1st April: (124,805) (123,284) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


Current service cost (4,277) (4,236) (19,508) (16,484) 


Interest cost (4,223) (4,427) (33,088) (34,944) 


Contributions from scheme participants (1,238) (1,298) (5,862) (5,771) 


Actuarial gains and (losses)     


 Actuarial gains / losses arising 
from changes in demographic 
assumptions 


0 1,743 0 0 


 Actuarial gains / losses arising 
from changes in financial 
assumptions 


8,811 (36,097) 61,790 (263,838) 


 Other (if applicable) 0 6,603 0 0 


Past service cost 0 0 (3,199) 0 


Losses / (gains) on curtailment (where 
relevant) 


0 0 0 0 


Benefits Paid 2,448 1,953 33,264 30,535 


Closing balance at 31st March (123,284) (159,043) (982,911) (1,273,413) 


 


Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 


 


 Fair value of Scheme assets 


2015/16 2016/17 


£’000 £’000 


Cash and cash equivalents 397 959 


Equity instruments 65,214 84,438 


Bonds 18,252 23,236 


Property 10,513 11,139 


Total Assets 94,376 119,772 


 


Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities 


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on 
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. 


Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by 
Mercer Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
LGPS Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2016. 
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The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 


 Local Government Pension Scheme Police Pension Scheme 


 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 


Mortality assumptions:     


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) for 
current pensioners: 


    


 Men 23.4 22.8 27.6 27.8 


 Women 25.9 25.5 30.2 30.3 


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) for 
future pensioners: 


    


 Men 25.7 25.0 30.3  30.1 


 Women 28.2 27.8 32.5 32.6 


Other assumptions:     


Rate of  inflation 2.0% 2.3% 2.0% 2.3% 


Rate of increase in salaries 3.5% 3.8% 3.5% 3.8% 


Rate of increase in pensions 2.0% 2.3% 2.0% 2.3% 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.6% 2.6% 3.6% 2.6% 


The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions 
set out in the table above.  


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and 
assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other 
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume 
that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The 
estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the 
scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The 
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below 
did not change from those used in the previous period. 


Local Government Police Scheme 2016/17 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 3,015  


Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 3,531  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 1,080  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


 3,454 


Police Pension Scheme 2016/17 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 30,940  


Rate of inflation (increase of decrease by 0.1%) 26,726  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 6,801  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


 26,127 


Impact on the Group’s Cash flows 


The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a 
rate as possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to 
achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was 
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completed on 31
st
 March 2017 and details of the future employers’ rates are shown 


below: 


Year Employer rate 


2017/18 13.5% 


2018/19 13.5% 
2019/20 13.5% 


 


20. Contingent Liabilities 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the Home 
Office, initially had 14 claims lodged against them with the Central London Employment 
Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising from the 
Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.  Claims of unlawful 
discrimination have also been made in relation to the changes to the Judiciary and 
Firefighters Pension regulations. In the case of the Judiciary claims the claimants were 
successful and in the Firefighters case the respondents were successful. Both of these 
judgements are subject to appeal, the outcome of which may determine the outcome of 
the Police claims. The Tribunal has yet to set a date for a preliminary or substantive 
Police hearing.  Legal advice suggests that there is a strong defence against the Police 
claims.  The quantum and who will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are 
partially or fully successful.  For these reasons, no provision has been made in the 
2016/17 Accounting Statements. 


 
Police Officers who have accrued 30 years’ service are entitled to opt out from the 
Pension Scheme. This only applies to officers who are members of the 1987 pension 
scheme. There is the potential that some officers may claim that they have overpaid 
pension contributions and as such, they might be entitled to make a claim. No claims 
have been submitted to date and it would be difficult to provide a reliable estimate for 
such costs at this point in time. We have estimated that there would be a maximum of 7 
Dyfed-Powys Police Officers affected.  
 


21. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 


Credit Risk 


Trade Receivables 


The following analysis summarises the Chief Constable’s potential maximum exposure 
credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five financial years on the 
level of default on trade debtors, adjusted for current market conditions. As per the 
Code of Practice requirements, the disclosure below includes details only of debtors 
that have arisen as a result of trading activities. Balances and transactions arising from 
statutory functions (i.e. tax and NNDR payments) are excluded from this disclosure 
note, as they have not arisen from contractual trading activities. 


Bad Debt Provision is calculated on a Group Level as the Chief Constable does not 
hold provisions. These figures are therefore for information only. 


 


Group Gross Debtors 


£’000 


 


Bad Debt Provision for 
the Group 2016/17 


£’000 


Bad Debt Provision for 
2016/17 as a % of 


Group Trade Debtors 


1,837 63 3.42 
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Glossary of Terms 
 


Term Definition 


2016/17 This refers to the period covered by these accounts – 1 April 
2016 to 31 March 2017 


2015/16 This refers to the period covered by these accounts - 1 April 
2015 to 31 March 2016. 


Accounting policies These are a set of rules and codes of practice the used when 
preparing the accounts. 


Actuarial gains and losses For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial 
deficits or surpluses that arise because: 


 Events have not coincided with the actuarial 
assumptions made in the last valuation ;or 


 The actuarial assumptions have changed. 


Carrying value The carrying value of an asset is the value of the asset included 
in the Balance Sheet. 


CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, one 
of the professional accountancy bodies in the UK.  CIPFA 
specialises in the public services and has responsibility for 
setting accounting standards for these services. 


Commissioning The entire cycle of assessing the needs of people in a local 
area, designing services, and then securing them. 


Consumer Price Index (CPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in 
the retail price of goods and services – excludes mortgage 
interest payments, council tax and other housing costs. 


Contingent liabilities These exist where: 


 a possible obligation arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
organisations control; or 


 a present obligation arises from past events but is not 
recognised because: 


i. it is not probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
or 


ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
with sufficient reliability. 


Corporate and democratic 
core costs 


 


These represent the costs of delivering public accountability and 
representation in policy-making and meeting the 
Commissioner’s statutory reporting obligations. 


Corporation sole A corporation sole is a legal entity consisting of a single ("sole") 
incorporated office, occupied by a single ("sole") man or woman 
i.e. the Commissioner and Chief Constable are both 
corporations sole under the PRSRA. 


Current assets 


 


Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash.  


By convention the items are ordered by reference to the ease 
that such conversion into cash can be carried out. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Juristic_person
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Term Definition 


Current liabilities 


 


Current liabilities are items that are due immediately or in the 
short – term. 


Current service cost 
(Pensions) 


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s 
liability expected to arise from employee service in the current 
period. 


Curtailment Changes in liabilities relating respectively to actions that relieve 
the employer of primary responsibility for a pension obligation 
(e.g. a group of employees being transferred to another 
scheme) or events that reduce the expected years of future 
service of employees or reduce the accrual of defined benefits 
over their future service for some employees (e.g. closing a 
business unit). 


Defined benefit scheme A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a 
defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define 
the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the 
benefits are not directly related to the investments of the 
scheme. The schemes may be funded or unfunded. 


Defined contribution 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an 
employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or as a 
percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not 
have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior periods. 


Delegation Is the partnership of authority and responsibility to another 
person to carry out specific activities. The person who delegated 
the work remains accountable for the outcome of the delegated 
work. 


Fair value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be 
exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where 
applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase of the 
asset. 


Finance lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a non-current asset to the lessee. Such a transfer 
of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the 
inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease 
payments, including any initial payment, amounts to 
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset. 


Financial instrument Any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 


A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract that 
derives its value from changes in underlying assets or indices. 


FRS Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK 
accountancy profession and the Accounting Standards Board.  
These include Statements of Standard Accounting Practice 
(SSAPs). 


Group accounts The financial statements of the group i.e. the two corporations 
sole, presented as a single economic entity. 
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Term Definition 


Interest cost (Pensions) For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the 
period in the present value of the scheme liabilities because the 
benefits are one period closer to settlement. 


Merger accounting Merger accounting should be applied where there is a transfer of 
functions in full from the responsibility of one authority to 
another. Where merger accounting applies it is assumed that 
the merger took place at the beginning of the accounting period. 


National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) 


The non-domestic rates, or business rates, collected by local 
councils are the means by which businesses and others who 
occupy non-domestic property make a contribution towards the 
cost of local services. The rates are pooled by central 
government and redistributed to local councils and 
Commissioner according to a formula. 


Past service cost For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value 
of the scheme liabilities related to employee service in prior 
periods arising in the current period as a result of the 
introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 


Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act (PRSRA) 


An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which 
transferred the control of police forces from police authorities to 
elected Police and Crime Commissioners 


Prudential borrowing  Borrowing by local authorities without government financial 
support, but in accordance with the CIPFA prudential code of 
local authority borrowing  


Retail Price Index (RPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in 
the retail price of a basket of goods and services, including 
mortgage costs, council tax and other household costs. 


Revenue Budget The estimate of annual income and expenditure requirements, 
which sets out the financial implications of policies and the basis 
of the annual precept to be levied on collection funds. 


Revenue Support Grant 
(RSG) 


A general government grant in support of local authority 
expenditure (including Commissioners) and fixed each year in 
relation to spending levels. 


Senior Employee An employee whose salary is more than £150,000 per year, or 
one whose salary is at least £60,000 per year (calculated pro 
rata for a part-time employee) and who is the designated head 
of paid service, chief of staff or a statutory chief officer. Typically 
the Commissioner’s Chief of Staff and statutory Chief Officers. 


Single entity accounts The individual accounts of each corporation sole. 


 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Act_of_Parliament

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parliament_of_the_United_Kingdom

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Police_and_Crime_Commissioner
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Internal Audit Annual Report 


INTRODUCTION 


This is the 2016/17 Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control 


environment at the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys and Chief 


Constable Dyfed-Powys Police. The annual internal audit report summaries 


the outcomes of the reviews we have carried out on the organisation’s 


framework of governance, risk management and control. This report is 


designed to assist the Joint Audit Committee in making its Annual 


Governance Statement. 


HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S ANNUAL OPINION  


I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken 
to allow me to draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and 
effectiveness of Dyfed Powys Police's risk management, control and 
governance processes.  In my opinion, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys Police has 
adequate and effective management, control and governance 
processes to manage the achievement of its objectives. 


INTERNAL AUDIT PLANNED COVERAGE AND OUTPUT  


The 2016/17 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Joint Audit Committee was 


for 171 days of internal audit coverage in the year.  During the year there 


was one change to the Audit Plan and these changes were approved by the 


Joint Audit Committee. 


All planned work that has been carried out and the associated reports which 


have been issued are detailed at Annex A. 


Two planned audits did not take place within the financial year, the review of 


the strategic control arrangements and the review of the assurance 


framework.  On 7
th
 October 2016, TIAA issued a letter following a meeting 


with the Project Manager (Corporate Governance), which confirmed the 


basis of not undertaking the assurance framework review which linked to the 


review of the strategic control arrangements.   


There was one review carried out which was in addition to the work set out in 


the Annual Audit Plan.  This was the Commissioned Services review and the 


days for the Governance – Strategic Control and Corporate Governance 


were utilised for this review. 
 


ASSURANCE 


TIAA carried out 17 reviews, and two advisory reviews (Governance – 


Assurance Framework Letter and Commissioner’s Fund) which were designed to 


ascertain the extent to which the internal controls in the system are adequate 


to ensure that activities and procedures are operating to achieve the Force’s 


objectives. For each assurance review an assessment of the combined 


effectiveness of the controls in mitigating the key control risks was provided. 


Details of these are provided in Annex A and a summary is set out below. 


Assurance Assessments Number of Reviews Previous Year 


Substantial Assurance 4 4 


Reasonable Assurance 11 12 


Limited Assurance 2 - 


No Assurance 0 - 


The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can 


only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement 


or loss and their effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit 


recommendations made during the year have not been fully implemented. 
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We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work 


carried out in 2016/17.  


Urgent Important Routine 


2 (0) 30 (32)  32 (40)  


 


AUDIT SUMMARY 


Control weaknesses: There were two areas reviewed by internal audit 


where it was assessed that the effectiveness of some of the internal control 


arrangements provided ‘limited' or 'no assurance’. Recommendations were 


made to further strengthen the control environment in these areas and the 


management responses indicated that the recommendations had been 


accepted. 


Recommendations Made: We have analysed our 


findings/recommendations by risk area and these are summarised below. 


Risk Area Urgent Important Routine 


Directed 0 (0) 2 (4) 6 (3) 


Compliance 2 (0) 14 (25) 13 (32) 


Operational 0 (0) 12 (2) 12 (1) 


Reputational 0 (0) 2 (1) 1 (4) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Operational Effectiveness Opportunities: One of the roles of internal audit 


is to add value and during the financial year we provided advice on 


opportunities to enhance the operational effectiveness of the areas reviewed 


and the number of these opportunities is summarised below. 


Operational 


23 (25) 


 


INDEPENDENCE AND OBJECTIVITY OF INTERNAL AUDIT 


There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service 


which impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service 


provided. 


PERFORMANCE AND QUALITY ASSURANCE  


The following Performance Targets were used to measure the performance 


of internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan. 


Performance Measure Target Attained 


Completion of Planned Audits 100% 100% 


Audits Completed in Time Allocation 100% 100% 


Final report issued within 10 working days of 
receipt of responses 


  95%   95% 


Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 


100% 100% 


Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year and we 


continue to comply with ISO 9001 standards. An independent external 


review was carried out of our compliance of the Public Sector Internal Audit 


Standards (PSIAS) in 2016 and in particular to meet the requirement of an 







 


Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and Chief Constable Dyfed Powys Police 


Internal Audit Annual Report 
2016/17 


 


 Page 3 
 


independent 5 year review, the outcome confirmed full compliance with all 


the standards.  


 


RELEASE OF REPORT 


The table below sets out the history of this Annual Report. 


Date Report issued: 16
th


 May 2017 
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Annexes 


 


Annex A 
Actual against planned Internal Audit Work 2016/17 


System Type 
Planned 


Days 
Actual 
Days 


Assurance Assessment Comments 


Governance – Strategic Control and Corporate 
Governance 


Assurance 6 - - Deferred 2017/18 


Neighbourhood – (Uniformed Policing) Management Team Compliance 10 10 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Public Services Bureau - Complaints Management Appraisal 6 6 Limited  Final Report issued 


Electronic Expenses and Travel Claims Appraisal 4 4 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Risk Management – Mitigating Controls Compliance 6 6 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


ICT Security – Data Assurance Assurance 10 10 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Counter Fraud (Payroll Anti-Fraud) Compliance 6 6 Substantial  Final Report issued 


HR – Duty Resource Management Appraisal 7 7 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


HR – Flexi Time Management Assurance 7 7 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Driver Retraining Programme Assurance 6 6 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


ICT Security – Cyber Security Assurance 10 10 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Business Continuity Planning Assurance 10 10 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Governance – Assurance Framework Assurance 5 1 No Assessment Letter Issued 


Treasury Management Assurance 7 7 Substantial Final Report issued 


General Ledger Assurance 6 6 Substantial Final Report issued 


Payroll Assurance 8 8 Substantial Final Report issued 


Creditors Assurance 8 8 Limited  Final Report issued 


Fixed Assets Assurance 8 8 Reasonable  Final Report issued 
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System Type 
Planned 


Days 
Actual 
Days 


Assurance Assessment Comments 


Commissioning Services  Assurance  - 8 Reasonable  Final Report issued 


Commissioner’s Fund  Operational 6 6 No Assessment  Final Report issued  


Interim Follow Up - 
10 


5 - Final Report issued 


Follow Up - 5 - Final Report issued 


Liaison with WAO  3 3   


2016/17 Annual Plan  2 2  Final Report issued 


Strategic Plan  2 2  
Final Report issued 


2016/17 Annual Report  2 2  


Audit Management  16 16   


 Total Days 171 169   
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INTRODUCTION 


1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at Dyfed-Powys Police as at 13
th
 July 2017. 


PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2017/18 ANNUAL PLAN  


2. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2017/18 is set out in Appendix A. The results of the finalised reviews are summarised at Appendix B. 


INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK 


3. The key strategic governance, risk management and control matters identified from the four reviews completed from the 2017/18 Audit Plan are summarised 


below:  


 Key Strategic Governance, Risk Management and Control Matters 


Review High level  


Governance - Collaborations 


 The Force is in the process of implementing a new governance structure which was in its infancy at the time 


of this review. 


 A Force Collaboration Board has been established as part of the new meeting structure.  The Board is to 


report to a Futures Board which is yet to meet.  


 In addition to the Police and Crime Plan and subsequent Delivery Plan a joint Collaboration Strategy has 


been developed which sets out the principles for the Force entering into collaborative opportunities. 


Fleet Management Strategy 


 The Fleet Strategy is overdue for review. 


 The Vehicle Replacement Strategy is overdue for review. 


 Twelve vehicles were identified as being overdue for servicing. 


HR Management – Learning and 


Development 


 An overall Policy and Procedures document needs to be formulated by the Learning & Development (L&D) 


Department. 


 The current process for determining training requirements is going through a change whereby the annual 


Costed Training Plan is built directly from the i-Trent system. 


Vetting 


 The Force has appropriate vetting arrangements in place supported by a Policy that adopts the ACPO 


National Vetting Policy. 


 The Vetting Unit has a backlog of workforce who do not hold up-to-date security clearance and there is no 


process in place in order to effectively manage persons with expired Non-Police Personnel Vetting who 


require renewal.  


 There is no process in place to inform sponsors in advance of clearances that are due to expire. 


 The Vetting Unit does not have a Review, Retention and Disposal schedule. 
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EMERGING GOVERNANCE, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED ISSUES 


4. We have identified no emerging risks which could impact on the overall effectiveness of the governance, risk and internal control framework of the organisation to 


date. A summary briefing on recent sector developments in risk/governance is given at Appendix C 


AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE 


5. The table below details of audits completed for 2017/18 since the previous meeting of the Joint Audit Committee. 


  Key Dates 
Number of 


Recommendations 


Review Evaluation 
Draft 


issued 
Responses 
Received 


Final 
issued 


1 2 3 OE 


Governance - 
Collaboration 


Reasonable 16/06/17 23/06/17 26/06/17 - 1 1 - 


Fleet Management - 
Strategy 
 


Reasonable 22/05/17 26/06/17 26/06/17 - 3 2 3 


HR Management – 
Learning and 
Development 


Reasonable 


 


24/05/17 27/06/17 28/06/17 - 1 1 - 


Vetting 
Reasonable 09/05/17 06/07/17 07/07/17 - 3 3 3 


 
 


CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2017/18    


6. There is one change proposed to the Annual Plan at this time. Senior Management have requested a review of compliance with the Welsh Language Standards.  


This is to replace the Business Assurance Framework review as the organisation have not formally adopted or commenced any work on the assurance framework 


to date.   


FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES 


7. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last summary report was issued.   


LIAISON 


8. Liaison with external audit: We have ongoing liaison with Wales Audit Office and have provided working paper files and the report on key financial systems. 
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PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 


9. The previous SICA reported two Priority 1 recommendations, one recommendation has now been implemented and will be removed from this report at the next 


update and one is in the process of being implemented. See Appendix B. 


RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER 


10. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written 


consent.  The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. 


No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any 


duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is 


caused by their reliance on our report. 


. 
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Progress against the Annual Plan for 2017/18 
 


System 
Planned 
Quarter 


Days Revised 
Quarter 


Current Status Comments 


Governance - Collaborations 1 6 1 Final report issued 28
th


 June 2017  


Risk Management – Mitigating 
Controls 


1 6 2 APM Issued Planned start date 24
th


 July 2017 


ICT Security – Network Security 1 10 1 Fieldwork in progress 
Site work commenced 30


th
 and 31


st
 May but 


put on hold due to staff absence 


ICT Security – Change Management 1 10 2  APM issued Planned start date 14
th


 August 2017 


Fleet Management - Strategy 1 6 1 Final report issued 26
th


 June 2017  


HR Management – Learning and 
Development 


1 7 1 Final report issued 26
th


 June 2017  


Investigations – Duty of Care, HR and 
Financial systems 


1 10 2 APM issued Planned start date 21
st
July 2017 


Corporate Communications 1 6 3 APM issued Planned start date 9
th


 – 13
th


 October 2017 


Firearms Licensing 1 8 1 Draft Report issued 12
th


 June 2017  


Vetting 1 6 1 Final report issued 7
th


 July 2017  


Governance – Assurance Framework 2 4 2 
To be replaced by Welsh Language Standards 
compliance review 


 


Governance – Strategic Control and 
Corporate Governance 


2 6 3 
To be deferred to Q3 at the request of OPCC – Chief 
Finance Officer 


 


Capital Projects 2 8 3 To be deferred to Q3  


Counter Fraud 2 6 2 Start date and scope to be discussed with PSD   


Estates Strategy 2 10 2 Fieldwork in progress  


Budgetary Control 3 8 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  
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System 
Planned 
Quarter 


Days Revised 
Quarter 


Current Status Comments 


General Ledger 3 6 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Payroll 3 6 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Creditors 3 8 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Debtors 3 6 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Pensions 3 6 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Overtime and additional allowances 3 6 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Crime Recording 3 6 3 Planned dates provided and awaiting confirmation  


Interim Follow Up 2 5 3 Planned start 6
th


 September 2017  


Year-end Follow Up 4 5 4   


Liaison with WAO 1-4 3 3   


2017/18 Annual Plan 1 2 1   


2017/18 Annual Report 4 2 2   


Audit Management 1-4 16 1-4   


   KEY: 


 = To be commenced 


 = Site work commenced 


 = Draft report issued 


 = Final report issued 
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Appendix B 
 
 


Recommendations – Priority 1 Only 


Audit Report: Creditors – 2016/17 - Report Issued: 12
th


 January 2017 


Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 


Comments 


Implementation 


Timetable 


(dd/mm/yy) 


Responsible 


Officer 


(Job Title) 


1 Compliance A review of the cash book and all 


transactions on the ABW system 


confirmed that no credit notes were 


received for duplicate payments and 


payments to the wrong suppliers 


identified in paragraph 10.24. All 


findings and information for the 


payments identified was promptly 


passed to the Financial Processing 


Supervisor to commence the recovery 


process.  


Duplicate payments and payments 


to the wrong supplier be recovered 


as soon as possible and the 


recovery process be monitored to 


ensure all amounts are received. 


1 A review has been undertaken by 


the BSU of all payments appearing 


to be duplicates for the 2015/16 


and 2016/17(to date) financial 


years. The Business Support 


Officer is now in the process of 


making contact with each of the 


suppliers in question to discuss 


reimbursement. To capture this 


information a spreadsheet of these 


payments has been created and is 


being used to monitor receipt of this 


money. 


In addition a quarterly review will be 


undertaken by the BSU Co-


Ordinator of all payments to identify 


any future duplicate payments. 


31/03/2017 (for 


full 


reimbursement 


of monies, 


however process 


in place to 


monitor these 


payments 


moving forward) 


In the process 


of being 


implemented 


The majority of 


the payments 


have been 


recovered.  This 


should be fully 


implemented 


and the process 


in place by the 


end of July 


2017 


BSU Officer / 


BSU Co-


Ordinator  
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Audit Report: Fixed Assets – 2016/17 - Report Issued: 9
th


 February 2017 


Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 


Comments 


Implementation 


Timetable 


(dd/mm/yy) 


Responsible 


Officer 


(Job Title) 


2 Compliance A review of the Land and Buildings 


Asset Register identified that there are 


12 radio masts available to the Force. 


It was noted that the Property 


Valuation Spreadsheet, used to obtain 


insurance cover for land and buildings, 


listed 11 radio masts and did not 


include the second radio mast in 


Aberystwyth.  


The insurance brokers be 


contacted at the earliest 


opportunity to ensure that the radio 


mast situated in Aberystwyth is 


insured. 


1 Details of the Aberystwyth mast 


provided to Ryan Ho, updated 


details for Friars Park also issued 


along with advice that all masts will 


be revalued in February and a new 


value will then be issued. Ryan will 


immediately advise the Insurance 


brokers of the Aberystwyth mast 


site today. 


02/02/17 


 


Implemented 


This will be 


removed at the 


next update 


Director of 


Estates 
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Appendix C 


Briefings on Developments in Governance, Risk and Control 


TIAA produce regular briefing notes to summarise new developments in Governance, Risk, Control and Counter Fraud which may have an impact on our clients.  These 


are shared with clients and made available through our Online Client Portal. A summary list of those CBNs issued in the last three months which may be of relevance to 


Dyfed Powys Police are given below. Copies of any CBNs are available on request from your local TIAA team. 


Date Issued CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 


13/07/2017 CBN-17022 All - The Criminal Finances Act 2017 For Possible Action 


Audit Committees and Boards/Governing Bodies are advised to 


consider this new legislation, and identify any new systems and 


controls required to mitigate the risks relating to it. Clients may find 


HMRC’s draft guidance useful regarding the systems and controls to 


help mitigate the future risks in this area. 


11/07/2017 CBN-17021 
All - Cyber Security Vulnerability leads to 


£100,000 fine 
For Action 


Audit Committees and Boards/Governing Bodies are advised to 


seek independent assurance from their IT supplier (whether in-


house or external) that all IT systems are subject to timely and 


effective security patching. Likewise that vulnerability assessment 


and scanning are regularly performed, to demonstrate that 


appropriate measures are being taken and maintained. 


28/06/2017 CBN-17019 
All - National Audit Office Briefing – “Round-


up for Audit Committees” 
For Information 


Audit Committees to note the availability of this 6 monthly summary 


of NAO reports. 


28/06/2017 CBN-17018 
All - Audit Scotland Report on ICT Projects 


Lessons Learned 
For Possible Action 


Audit Committees to note the implications of this Lessons Learned 


report.  Where organisations have strategic plans including any 


significant ICT Projects and system procurements then assurance 


should be sought over the effectiveness of their project 


management, risk and governance processes. 



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/22/contents/enacted

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/560120/Tackling_tax_evasion_-_Draft_government_guidance_for_the_corporate_offence_of_failure_to_prevent_the_criminal_facilitation_of_tax_evasion.pdf
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Date Issued CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 


20/06/2017 CBN-17015 
All – ICO Draft Guidance on How to Comply 


With the New General Data Protection 


Regulations (GDPR) regarding Consent 


For Possible Action 


Audit Committees are advised to note the implications of the draft 


guidance, and review their assurance and controls over readiness 


and resourcing for the implementation of GDPR. 


Where organisations have concerns over their readiness for GDPR, 


they may wish to consider commissioning assurance work to ensure 


they have identified any control gaps and have workable solutions.  


TIAA are undertaking GDPR reviews at many clients during 


2017/18, and would be happy to undertake a detailed analysis and 


build an appropriate workplan to develop the necessary compliance 


measures. 


23/05/2017 CBN-17013 
All – Cyber Security advice note if hit by a 


Malware Attack 
For Possible Action 


Audit Committees are advised to consider the organisation’s level of 


staff training and preparedness about what to do in the event of a 


malware attack. 


15/05/2017 CBN-17012 
All – Cybersecurity update following Major 


Ransomware Attack 
For Action 


Audit Committees and Boards/Governing Bodies are advised to 


seek assurance over their organisation’s level of Cyber Resilience. 


27/04/2017 CBN-17010 
All - Government Pushes for Wider Use of 


Cyber Essentials Scheme 
For Possible Action 


Audit Committees and Boards/Governing Bodies are advised to 


understand the organisation’s approach to ensuring cyber security, 


and to ascertain what independent assurances are held regarding 


the risk of cyber-crime. 
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Business Support Unit – Creditors Payment Statistic Reporting 


Introduction 


The below report has been written with a view to outline the recommendations made during the 


internal audit report for the Creditors function, which took place during November and December of 


the 2016/17 financial year. It will detail the recommendations, what work has been carried out to 


improve these areas and also the impact this has had on the time taken to process invoices. 


Audit Outcome 


During November and December 2016, the Creditors function was audited as part of the annual 


internal audit plan. During this audit 5 recommendations were raised, with an additional 1 


Operational Effectiveness Matter also raised. These recommendations resulted in an audit outcome 


of Limited Assurance.  


A brief synopsis of each recommendation is listed below, however the full audit report can be found 


in appendix a: 


1) A number of duplicate payments to wrong suppliers were identified with no record of credit 


notes being received against these. All suppliers to be contacted for duplicate payments to 


be recovered as promptly as possible. 
2) A review of all direct debits to be undertaken and a copy of the Direct Debit (DD1) form to 


be obtained and reviewed on an annual basis. 


3) A process for checking duplicate payments and payments to wrong suppliers be introduced 


to ensure that said payments are taken into consideration. 


4) Investigation to be conducted by BSU Co-Ordinator to identify reasons for delays in 


timeliness of submission of invoices. 


5) New process for coding and authorising of Non Purchase Order (PO) invoices be included 


within the Financial Control Procedures (FCP). 


Operational Effectiveness Matter 


1) Consideration be given to contacting suppliers who submit numerous low value invoices to 


discuss potential of consolidation of invoices. 


Actions 


Given the above recommendations the Business Support Co-Ordinator met with Financial Processing 


Team to discuss these recommendations in full. From these discussions a number of proposals were 


raised for ways in which each could be progressed to ensure that each was improved upon.  These 


actions are listed below: 


1) Duplicate payment list provided to Business Support Officer and Financial Services 


Supervisor to progress recouping of overpayments.  
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2) List of direct debit payments collated for the financial year 2016/17. Business area leads 


then contacted asking them to confirm if these payments are still required and if so, to 


complete the necessary DD1 form. 


3) After discussion with the representative from TIAA (internal auditors), a decision was taken 


that a duplicate payment audit would be undertaken by the Business Support Co-Ordinator 


and Business Support Officer for Financial Services, on a quarterly basis. TIAA agreed that 


this was appropriate. 


4) A monthly review of any invoices paid in excess of 30 days to be undertaken by the Business 


Support Co-Ordinator and Business Support Officer for Financial Services to identify reasons 


for their late payment. 


5) Discussions were to continue with departments regarding possible consolidation of invoices 


wherever this is possible. Incidentally, these discussions had already taken place with some 


departments resulting in limited consolidation with some Fleet services suppliers. 


During the monthly reviews mentioned in point 4 above, the BSU Co-Ordinator identified a  series of 


actions which, if progressed would allow the process to become more effective. These matters 


where discussed with Creditors staff, as well as key business leads. The aim of these would be to 


improve the speed of receipt of invoices into the Business Support Unit, as well as the time taken for 


these to be processed. Principally, these include the below highlighted matters: 


1) Invoice Consolidation – as mentioned above work has been carried out with the main 


internal customers to look to identify consolidation opportunities. This included a number of 


Fleet Service suppliers, where monthly invoices where introduced to reduce overall invoice 


volumes.  


2) First Point Contact processing – As mentioned earlier in the report, a proposal was put 


forward to amend the process that the Business Support Unit adopts when they receive 


invoices from external suppliers or internal departments. This process change would see the 


Creditors staff review each invoice on receipt and make a decision as to which financial code 


the invoice should be processed against, if these are not supported by a purchase order. 


These invoices would then be processed to an appropriate authoriser via Agresso Business 


World (ABW), rather than invoices being sent manually via internal mail. This changed aimed 


to speed up the time taken to move invoices through the necessary stages of the process, 


whilst reducing the necessity to transfer hard copy invoices using internal mail. In addition, 


this would allow the Creditors staff to monitor the movement of invoices through the 


process from the initial receipt into the organisation. 


3) Targeted Chasing – In addition to the above point, a new process was introduced into the 


Creditors team, whereby staff would routinely report upon invoices currently awaiting 


authorisation on ABW. This allowed the Creditors team to identify invoices which were due 


to go overdue and to target these specifically. This would be done by contacting the 


necessary authorisers who need to approve the invoice. This again, aimed to speed up the 


payment of all invoices. 


4) Supplier Specific Issues – During the monthly payment reviews, it was identified that certain 


suppliers were forwarding invoices to Dyfed Powys Police which were already overdue. This 


was largely due to certain supplies sending in multiple months invoices at one time (i.e 


September and October’s invoices received in November). These specific matters were 
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raised with the relevant business areas and have since been resolved. This has reduced the 


number of invoices being paid in excess of 30 days. 


 


Reporting 


On a monthly basis the Creditors invoice payment statistics have been analysed and reported to 


both Mr Andrew Edwards – Assistant Director Business Support and Mr Adrian Williams – Director of 


Resources, with a more comprehensive report being presented at the quarterly Business Support 


Unit – Performance Monitoring Group (PMG). This forum allows this data along with others, to be 


scrutinised and questioned as appropriate. 


 During these PMG meetings, discussions have been had regarding the data being used to generate 


the overall payment statistics. Initially the data being used was purely accounts payable data, but 


excluded purchase card data, or any other payment methods. This data was displayed in two 


separate measures, showing both the total time taken for invoices to be processed, but also the time 


taken for the invoice to be processed, post receipt in the Business Support Unit. This is shown below: 


 


 


Whilst this allowed the Business Support Unit to identify the improvements mentioned earlier within 


the report, it did not fall in line with requirements for national reporting.  In view of this, more 


recently the reporting methods have amended to include all payment methods. This includes all 


purchasing card data, standing order payments as well as direct debit payments. This falls in line 


with reporting methods of other police forces and local authorities and allows Dyfed Powys Police 


data to be compared more readily across the public sector. 


More broadly, this data will be released on an annual basis, as required by the Public Contracts 


Regulations 2015 – “Statutory guidance for contracting authorities and Suppliers on paying 


undisputed invoices in 30 days down the supply chain”. A copy of this can be found in appendix B 


below.  


Blue line represents 


the BSU receipt date 


to pay date 


Green line represents 


the invoice date to 


pay date 
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This change in reporting methods not only shows a greater level of comparison between Dyfed 


Powys Police and other authorities, it also shows a true reflection of the performance of the 


Creditors team, allowing the full breadth of payment statistics to be shown. This format is shown 


below: 


 


 


These reporting methods will continue through this coming financial year and will be reported in this 


manner at future Performance Monitoring Group meetings and any other forum where this is 


required. 


 


David Harris 
Business Support Officer – HR & Payroll 
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Appendices 


Appendix Document Hyperlink 


Appendix A: Creditors Internal Audit Report 


Creditors Audit 
Report


 
Appendix B: Public Contracts Regulations 2015 – Statutory Guidance for 
paying invoices in 30 days. 


Statutory Guidance - 
Payment of invoices
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Corporate Governance Group 


 


MINUTES  


 


12th June, 2017   


ACPO, Police Headquarters 
 


 


Attendees:    Darren Davies (Chair)   Deputy Chief Constable 


Edwin Harries     Director of Finance 


  Jayne Woods    Chief Finance Officer, OPCC 


Carys Morgans    Chief of Staff, OPCC   


  Paul Morris     Collaboration & Efficiency 


  Malcolm MacDonald   Joint Audit Committee  


                       Adrian Williams                                     Director of Resources 


  Sharon Richards    OPCC 


 


Apologies:      Gawain Evans    Chair of the Joint Audit Committee 


Lynne Goddard                                     Legal Services 


 


 


1. Disclosure of any other business items 
 


 


After discussion with the group and consulting the terms of reference, it was agreed that 


Deputy Chief Constable, Darren Davies will Chair this group in the future. 


 


 


 


 


2. Minutes of Corporate Governance Group – 1st March, 2017 


 


It was agreed that the minutes of the last meeting held on the 1st March, 2017 were a correct 


record of proceedings. 


 


 


3 & 4. Update from Working Group/Revised Board/Governance Structure & PCP Delivery Plan 


 Determine how well understood the Code of Ethics and referral process is – It was 


agreed that this action remain valid over the next 12 months.  


 Ensure induction sessions cover ethics and reinforces Mission, Vision and Values - It was 


agreed for this to remain to ensure that it is rolled out appropriately. 


 Establish Professional Reference Group – DCC to discuss with CC. 


 Increase community engagement at corporate level – It was agreed that this would 


remain. 


 Consider sustainable development principles (from Well-being Act) in all new business 


cases and ideas – It was agreed for this to remain under ‘something to achieve’. 


 Develop a process for discussing and implementing new ideas/business 


plans/legislation (front door process) – This will link in with the piece of work on the 


governance structure.   


 Develop and embed performance structures to support the Delivery Plan and to 
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develop the Commissioner’s performance measures and incorporate it into the 


Policing Plan - The 5 outcomes within the Delivery Plan has been achieved.  It was 


agreed that these will be developed and embedded within the corporate 


performance structure.   


 Create a repository of staff skills and qualifications to facilitate best utilisation of 


available resources and skillsets – on-going.    


 Develop a Strategic Resources Plan to incorporate Succession Planning and 


Recruitment for our Future needs – The 4 year plan is done.   


 Develop Leadership and Wellbeing Strategy – completed and will remain until it has 


been signed off. 


 Roll out Regenesis Phase II - on-going. 


 Develop Force Management Statement - achieved.   


 


 


Group Annual Governance Statement 2016-17 


Jayne Woods drew attention to the ‘Conclusion’ statement on Page 6.  It was agreed to 


remove the ‘working effectively’ from the statement. 


 


Action Plan 


 


It was agreed that the Action Plan should be linked to the Risk Register.  This issue to be 


added to Core Principle G of the actions to be taken. 


Action:- Jayne Woods to check accuracy in terms of reference being made to the Police 


Accountability Board, to amend to the Policing Accountability Board. 


 


 Partnership Working – The CC has completed the development of governance 


arrangements for collaborations.  It was agreed to change this to, ‘has completed the 


development of internal governance arrangements for collaboration’.  


 Regarding the investigation by the West Mercia Constabulary a change in wording 


was agreed following advice from Ch Supt Richard Lewis as follows - ‘An allegation 


was referred to the IPCC for local investigation by the West Mercia Constabulary 


……… and the matter is concluded.  The subjects of the review have both left the 


organisation’.    


 Delivery plan – the final draft of the Delivery Plan has been well circulated in both 


Welsh and English. 


 Draft Structure of the Boards – Carys Morgans suggested that there may be an 


opportunity to merge the governance arrangements and have one structure, 


particularly in relation to forming joint boards.   


Action:- Carys Morgans to meet with Ch Supt Richard Lewis and Paul Morris to 


progress.   


 Terms of Reference – DCC confirmed that agreement had been received to refresh 


the membership of this group.  It was agreed to invite representation from the 5 boards 


which will be clarified in due course. 
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5.  Review of Current Issues that may have an impact on Governance Arrangements  


 


Force Risk Register  


No.3 - Crime Recording – Integrity of Crime Data.  As Chair of the Crime Recording and 


Management Strategic Project Board, ACC Liane James will provide resources in due 


course.  A discussion will be held to examine the inclusion of ‘Out of Court disposals’ to this 


data. 


Action:-  Det Ch Insp Andy Williams to discuss with Sharon Richards. 


 


No.15 – Delay in implementing NFLMS/STORM interface – there has been a delay by GUCCI 


in providing a technical solution.  Roll-out of the system is anticipated at the end of 


August/September.  


 


No.16 – Introduction of new provisions/legislation regarding pre-charge bail.  Risk Register to 


be amended to reflect progress on this issue.  


 


No.17 – Randox Toxocology Forensic Provision – this is a new risk where there have been 


problems nationally with their processes.  A Gold Group has been set up to provide advice 


and guidance on retesting of samples and to look at what implications there may be for the 


force and any impact on confidence or convictions. 


 


Operational Issues and Performance - As discussed at the last Force Executive Board, the 


performance regime is linking into the Delivery Plan at BCU and force level – work is on-


going.  A Force Day of Action was held on the 17th May, 2017 – a successful day with 25 


arrests and a significant amount of activity which will be evaluated pending the next event 


scheduled in early September.   


Ethics Committee – Ch Supt Richard Lewis and Dr Tristan Nash (Trinity St Davids) are the new 


joint Chairs for the Ethics Committee.  The first meeting will be held shortly.  


Force Executive Board – the second meeting was held on the 8th June, 2017.  


One particular issue raised at that meeting was in relation to police officers not attending 


welfare checks with members of the public people who have activated their emergency 


cord or the emergency button.  There is an on-going discussion being held with partners in 


this regard as it creates a significant demand on our organisation. 


Ed Harries mentioned that the latest statistics around victim satisfaction were reported at the 


FEB had improved from 32nd Position to 17.  


Board structures – the Assistant Directors held an Away Day on the 2nd June, 2017 and 


presented some on-going projects and how these are linked into the Delivery Plan. 


Financial Matters – The Statement of Accounts was almost complete.  The outcome of a 


Formula Funding meeting is awaited.   


Collaboration – a report by internal audit on governance arrangements is in progress.  The 


HMIC approach this year focussed more around partnership, demand and the withdrawal of 


service for partners and how that impacts on the organisation.   


Ed Harries had compiled a spreadsheet of financial costs and the savings target and the 


Force Collaboration Board met recently to progress matters.    


 Carys Morgans wished to record that as from the 1st June, 2017 the Public Service 


Bureau has developed a new approach which is supported by the Chief Constable 


and Deputy Chief Constable.  Early indications are very positive.  
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6.  Monitoring of On-going Tasks and Actions from AGS 


 


 On-going Tasks and Actions – nothing to raise. 


 


 


7. Any Other Business 


There were no further issues to discuss.  


 


 


8. Date of Next meeting 


The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, 23rd August, 2017 at 10.30am. 
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